Annual Report 2017-18





NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA

3, Siri Institutional Area, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi-110016 Phone: 26861988,26861472, Fax: 011-26863248,01126865350 E-mail: ncuidel@ndb.vsnl.net.in Website: www.ncui.coop





Hon'ble President of India Shri Ram Nath Kovind being greeted by Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, MP, Rajya Sabha and President, NCUI.



Hon'ble Prime Minister of India Shri Narendra Modi meeting a delegation of cooperative leaders comprising of Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, MP, Rajya Sabha and President, NCUI. Dr. Bijendra Singh, President, NCCF, Shri Dileep Sanghani, President, NAFSCOB and Shri V.R. Boda, Chairman, NAFED are also seen.



Hon'ble Prime Minister of India Shri Narendra Modi speaking on occasion of Birth Centenary Celebration of Laxman Rao Inamdar in New Delhi on Sept. 21, 2017.



Release of NCUI publication by Hon'ble Prime Minister of India Shri Narendra Modi on the occasion of Birth Centenary Celebration of Laxman Rao Inamdar in New Delhi on Sept. 21, 2017.

GOVERNING COUNCIL MEMBERS OF NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA (As on 31-03-2018)



Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, MP President



Dr. Bijender Singh, Ex-MLA Vice-President



Shri G.H. Amin Vice-President



Shri V.P. Singh



Shri V.R. Boda



Shri Balvinder Singh Nakai



Shri H.K. Patil, MLA



Shri K. Sivadasan Nair, Ex-MLA





Shri S.N. Sharma, MLA Shri Vinayakrao D. Patil



Shri D.S. Thakur



Shri G.T. Devegowda,



Shri Swarna Kamal Saha, MLA



Shri Kiran Kakati



Shri R.G.N. Mule



Shri P.K. Singh



Shri Gurpratap Singh Khushalpur



Shri Rajender Singh Negi



Shri Lakhan Lal Sahu



Shri Jyotindra Mansukhalal Mehta (Govt. Nominee)



Ms. A. Amudha Arunachalam (Co-opted Member)



Shri N. Satyanarayana **Chief Executive**

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 - 2018



NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA

3, SIRI INSTITUTIONAL AREA, AUGUST KRANTI MARG NEW DELHI-110 016

Phones: 26512750, 26861472, 26861988, 26565146 Fax: 011-26865350/26863248

Fax: 011-26865350/26863248 E-Mail: ncuidel@ndb.vsnl.net.in website: www.ncui.coop

ANNUAL REPORT

2017 - 2018

CONTENT	rs
Chapter	Page No.
Report of the Governing Council of NCUI	i-iii
Management and Administration National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI	1
2. Cooperative Education	3
3. General Cooperative Policies	64
4. Information Technology	66
5. Publications, Publicity and Public Relations	67
6. राजभाषा का विकास	69
7. International Relations	73
8. Brief Reports of National Level Cooperative	e Organisations78
Important Activities of State Level Coopera Organisations	tive102
Appendix	
List of Members of the NCUI Governing Co	ouncil128

Report of the Governing Council of NCUI

Dear Fellow Cooperators,

on behalf of the Governing Council of National Cooperative Union of India, I have the pleasure in placing before you the Annual Report of NCUI for the year 2016-17.

During the year under review, the NCUI continued to function as nodal agency of the Indian Cooperative Movement. Its main objectives are to educate, guide and assist its member organizations in strengthening the cooperative sector. A brief report relating to various aspects of cooperative development during 2017-18 is as under:

Membership

At the close of the year, there were 250 cooperative organizations representing various sectors of the cooperative movement as members of NCUI. In the year 2017-18, 5 new members have been enrolled.

Meetings of the Governing Council

During the year, five meetings of the Governing Council were held. Besides this, one meeting of the Executive Committee was held. Matters relating to administrative and financial management of NCUI, and various issues confronting the cooperative sector to make it strong and vibrant were discussed in the meetings.

Cooperative Education

The National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE), New Delhi organised 165 training programmes against the target of 75 programmes during the year, including a 12 week Diploma Programme in Cooperative Education and Development. 5497 persons from various sectors of the cooperative movement, in different states, were trained. Emphasis was placed on organising training programmes for strengthening relatively weaker sectors like labour, fishery, tribal cooperatives, handloom and handicrafts etc. 54 such programmes with 1860 participants were organised for weaker sector cooperatives. Out of 5531 beneficiaries, 1663 SC/ST participants were trained. Due to the important role played by women in the development of cooperatives, 1938 women were trained in different programmes, while 22 programmes were organised exclusively for women participants. Under the Coop Connect Programme, training programmes for students of Bhagat Phool Singh Mahila University and Central University, Mahendragarh gained momentun during the year. Fresh initiatives for organising sensitisation programmes for students of universities like Indira Gandhi Krishi Vishwavidyalaya, etc. were taken. Besides Delhi, training programmes for Kendriya Vidyalaya School Teachers were also organised in Lucknow and Ahmedabad.

Cooperative Education Field Projects

During the Year 2017-18, the NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects including North-East and Women Projects conducted wide ranging programmes on various issues of cooperative development. Under UDS projects, new societies registered during the year were 30, and the number of persons benefitting from income generating programmes were 15029, while 119 SHGs were formed with 1492 members. Under the Women Cooperative Education Field Projects, 228 SHGs with a membership of 2926 women were formed by the lady mobilisers of the

Cooperative Education Field Projects. Through various income generating activities, 12366 women were benefitted under this programme. A total number of 85973 women were imparted education under various educational activities.

General Cooperative Policies

A One Day Conference on Opportunities and Challenges for Cooperatives in Northern states such as Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Rajasthan, Jammu and Kashmir and Delhi was organised on August 12, 2017 by NCUI at ICM, Chandigarh. The Conference came up with farreaching recommendations like granting loans for allied agricultural activities like dairy, poultry, fisheries, the urgent need for a separate Ministry of Cooperation at the Centre, introduction of "Cooperation" in 12th Class syllabus as an optional subject, etc. A one day Zonal Conference for Southern States was also organised by NCUI at RICM, Bangalore successfully. Major recommendations of the Conference are the need for state governments to formulate state cooperative policies, promotion of ARDBs into full-fledged banks, technology upgradation of cooperatives, etc. Preparatory work for organising 17th Indian Cooperative Congress has been initiated. The Governing Council of NCUI has approved "Cooperatives for Sustainable Development" as the theme of 17th Indian Cooperative Congress.

Public Relations and Publications

The 64th All India Cooperative Week was celebrated from 14th to 20th November, 2017. The theme of the Cooperative Week was "Empowering People through Digitalisation of Cooperatives". A Special Issue of "The Cooperator" on the theme of the Cooperative Week was also brought out on this occasion. All the 12 issues of "The Cooperator" from April, 2017 to March, 2018 and "Indian Cooperative Review" journals were printed and posted to the subscribers well in time. With a view to generate awareness for cooperatives amongst the employees of national level federations, a National level Cooperative Quiz Competition was also organised by NCUI on the occasion of Cooperative Week celebrations. The birth centenary celebrations of Shri Laxmanrao Inamdar were organised by Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare in collaboration with Sahkar Bharati on 21st September, 2017 at Vigyan Bhavan, New Delhi. Around 2000 delegates from cooperative institutions across the country attended the event. On this occasion, the Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi released two books: one on Shri Laxmanrao Inamdar, and the other titled "Nine Gems of Indian Cooperative Movement".

International Relations

To sensitize the members of NCUI about the Sustainable Development Goals, a Symposium was organised by NCUI along with the Annual General Body Meeting held on 20th September, 2017, in which the Key Note Speaker was Mr. Balu G. Iyer, Regional Director, ICA-AP. NCUI in collaboration with the National Cooperative Business Association (NCBA) and Cooperative League of USA (CLUSA) organised a study and exposure visit to selected cooperatives in USA for a nine member delegation from the Indian Cooperative Movement. Understanding the need for organising international training programmes, NCUI and CICTAB jointly organised a programme on training techniques for the trainers of cooperative and rural financing institutions at New Delhi from 8th – 12th January, 2018. Delegations from countries viz., China, Nepal, Mauritus, etc. visited NCUI to gain experience from the functioning of the Indian Cooperative Movement. The visit of representatives of Indian cooperative organisations to other countries through participation in many international fora provided a good opportunity for them to share, as well as exchange views on various issues of cooperative development. The member

organisations of NCUI were encouraged to depute personnel to attend international training programmes to enable their learning from the best cooperative practices in other countries and applying them in their respective areas of functioning.

Acknowledgments

Our sincere thanks and gratitude to the Hon'ble Minister of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Minister of State for Agriculture, Cooperation & Farmers Welfare, officials of the Department of Agriculture & Cooperation for their cooperation and the support given by them, both in the form of Grants and otherwise. We also express our thanks to the representatives of NCDC, International Bodies like ICA, IRU, ILO, NEDAC and FAO, different Ministries, Members of Parliament, State Legislatures and all such prominent persons who took keen interest in the functioning of NCUI. Thanks are also due to the member institutions of NCUI, RCS of different States, State Cooperative Unions and other constituent members of NCUI for their valuable support towards achieving the organizational goals. Our heartfelt thanks to the officers and employees of NCUI for their hard work, dedication and commitment for achieving the objectives of the NCUI in the year of reporting.

On behalf of the Governing Council of NCUI

CPNI

(Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav)

President National Cooperative Union of India

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 – 2018



NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA 3, SIRI INSTITUTIONAL AREA, AUGUST KRANTI MARG NEW DELHI-110 016

Phones: 26512750, 26861472, 26861988, 26565146

Fax: 011-26865350/26863248 E-Mail: ncuidel@ndb.vsnl.net.in website: www.ncui.coop

ANNUAL REPORT

2017 - 2018

CONTENTS

Cha	apter	Page	No.
	Report of the Governing Council of NCUI		i-iii
1.	Management and Administration National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI)		1
2.	Cooperative Education		3
3.	General Cooperative Policies		64
4.	Information Technology		66
5.	Publications, Publicity and Public Relations		67
6.	राजभाषा का विकास		69
7.	International Relations		73
8.	Brief Reports of National Level Cooperative Organisations		78
9.	Important Activities of State Level Cooperative Organisations		102
	Appendix		
	List of Members of the NCUI Governing Council		128

Report of the Governing Council of NCUI

Dear Fellow Cooperators,

n behalf of the Governing Council of National Cooperative Union of India, I have the pleasure in placing before you the Annual Report of NCUI for the year 2017-18.

During the year under review, the NCUI continued to function as nodal agency of the Indian Cooperative Movement. Its main objectives are to educate, guide and assist its member organizations in strengthening the cooperative sector. A brief report relating to various aspects of cooperative development during 2017-18 is as under:

Membership

At the close of the year, there were 250 cooperative organizations representing various sectors of the cooperative movement as members of NCUI. In the year 2017-18, 5 new members have been enrolled.

Meetings of the Governing Council

During the year, five meetings of the Governing Council were held. Besides this, one meeting of the Executive Committee was held. Matters relating to administrative and financial management of NCUI, and various issues confronting the cooperative sector to make it strong and vibrant were discussed in the meetings.

Cooperative Education

The National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE), New Delhi organised 165 training programmes against the target of 75 programmes during the year, including a 12 week Diploma Programme in Cooperative Education and Development. 5497 persons from various sectors of the cooperative movement, in different states, were trained. Emphasis was placed on organising training programmes for strengthening relatively weaker sectors like labour, fishery, tribal cooperatives, handloom and handicrafts etc. 54 such programmes with 1860 participants were organised for weaker sector cooperatives. Out of 5531 beneficiaries, 1663 SC/ST participants were trained. Due to the important role played by women in the development of cooperatives, 1938 women were trained in different programmes, while 22 programmes were organised exclusively for women participants. Under the Coop Connect Programme, training programmes for students of Bhagat Phool Singh Mahila University and Central University, Mahendragarh gained momentun during the year. Fresh initiatives for organising sensitisation programmes for students of universities like Indira Gandhi Krishi Vishwavidyalaya, etc. were taken. Besides Delhi, training programmes for Kendriya Vidyalaya School Teachers were also organised in Lucknow and Ahmedabad .

Cooperative Education Field Projects

During the Year 2017-18, the NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects including North-East and Women Projects conducted wide ranging programmes on various issues of cooperative development. Under UDS projects, new societies registered during the year were 30, and the

number of persons benefitting from income generating programmes were 15029, while 119 SHGs were formed with 1492 members. Under the Women Cooperative Education Field Projects, 228 SHGs with a membership of 2926 women were formed by the lady mobilisers of the Cooperative Education Field Projects. Through various income generating activities, 12366 women were benefitted under this programme. A total number of 85973 women were imparted education under various educational activities.

General Cooperative Policies

A One Day Conference on Opportunities and Challenges for Cooperatives in Northern states such as Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Rajasthan, Jammu and Kashmir and Delhi was organised on August 12, 2017 by NCUI at ICM, Chandigarh. The Conference came up with far-reaching recommendations like granting loans for allied agricultural activities like dairy, poultry, fisheries, the urgent need for a separate Ministry of Cooperation at the Centre, introduction of "Cooperation" in 12th Class syllabus as an optional subject, etc. A one day Zonal Conference for Southern States was also organised by NCUI at RICM, Bangalore successfully. Major recommendations of the Conference are the need for state governments to formulate state cooperative policies, promotion of ARDBs into full-fledged banks, technology upgradation of cooperatives, etc. Preparatory work for organising 17th Indian Cooperative Congress has been initiated. The Governing Council of NCUI has approved "Cooperatives for Sustainable Development" as the theme of 17th Indian Cooperative Congress.

Public Relations and Publications

The 64th All India Cooperative Week was celebrated from 14th to 20th November, 2017. The theme of the Cooperative Week was "Empowering People through Digitalisation of Cooperatives". A Special Issue of "The Cooperator" on the theme of the Cooperative Week was also brought out on this occasion. All the 12 issues of "The Cooperator" from April, 2017 to March, 2018 and "Indian Cooperative Review" journals were printed and posted to the subscribers well in time. With a view to generate awareness for cooperatives amongst the employees of national level federations, a National level Cooperative Quiz Competition was also organised by NCUI on the occasion of Cooperative Week celebrations. The birth centenary celebrations of Shri Laxmanrao Inamdar were organised by Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare in collaboration with Sahkar Bharati on 21st September, 2017 at Vigyan Bhavan, New Delhi. Around 2000 delegates from cooperative institutions across the country attended the event. On this occasion, the Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi released two books: one on Shri Laxmanrao Inamdar, and the other titled "Nine Gems of Indian Cooperative Movement".

International Relations

To sensitize the members of NCUI about the Sustainable Development Goals, a Symposium was organised by NCUI along with the Annual General Body Meeting held on 20th September, 2017, in which the Key Note Speaker was Mr. Balu G. Iyer, Regional Director, ICA-AP. NCUI in collaboration with the National Cooperative Business Association (NCBA) and Cooperative League of USA (CLUSA) organised a study and exposure visit to selected cooperatives in USA for a nine member delegation from the Indian Cooperative Movement. Understanding the need for organising international training programmes, NCUI and CICTAB jointly organised a programme on training

techniques for the trainers of cooperative and rural financing institutions at New Delhi from 8th – 12th January, 2018. Delegations from countries viz., China, Nepal, Mauritus, etc. visited NCUI to gain experience from the functioning of the Indian Cooperative Movement. The visit of representatives of Indian cooperative organisations to other countries through participation in many international fora provided a good opportunity for them to share, as well as exchange views on various issues of cooperative development. The member organisations of NCUI were encouraged to depute personnel to attend international training programmes to enable their learning from the best cooperative practices in other countries and applying them in their respective areas of functioning.

Acknowledgments

Our sincere thanks and gratitude to the Hon'ble Minister of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Minister of State for Agriculture, Cooperation & Farmers Welfare, officials of the Department of Agriculture & Cooperation for their cooperation and the support given by them, both in the form of Grants and otherwise. We also express our thanks to the representatives of NCDC, International Bodies like ICA, IRU, ILO, NEDAC and FAO, different Ministries, Members of Parliament, State Legislatures and all such prominent persons who took keen interest in the functioning of NCUI. Thanks are also due to the member institutions of NCUI, RCS of different States, State Cooperative Unions and other constituent members of NCUI for their valuable support towards achieving the organizational goals. Our heartfelt thanks to the officers and employees of NCUI for their hard work, dedication and commitment for achieving the objectives of the NCUI in the year of reporting.

On behalf of the Governing Council of NCUI

(Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav)

President

National Cooperative Union of India

CHAPTER-1

Management and Administration of National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI)

Membership

The membership of NCUI is open to national cooperative societies, state cooperative unions, state level cooperative federations and multi state cooperative societies. At the beginning of the year, 245 cooperative institutions were the members of NCUI. These institutions represent different sectors of the Indian cooperative movement.

During the year 2017-2018, following cooperative institutions were admitted as members of NCUI:

- Chhattisgarh Rajya Sahakari Vipran Sangh Maryadit, Raipur.
- 2. Central Warehousing Corporation Employees Cooperative Society Ltd., Chennai.
- 3. Carmel Alumni Multi State Cooperative Society Ltd., Kochi Kerala.
- 4. The Vishweshwar Sahakari Bank Ltd., Pune.
- 5. Jharkhand Cooperative Federation Ltd., Ranchi, Jharkhand.

Thus, at the close of the year, 250 cooperative institutions are members of NCUI, which comprises as below:

- 1. National Level Cooperative Societies.
- 2. State Cooperative Unions.
- 3. Cooperative Unions of Union Territories.
- 4. State Cooperative Marketing Federations.
- 5. State Cooperative Banks.
- State Cooperative Land Development Banks (Agriculture and Rural Development Banks).

- 7. State Cooperative Consumer's Federations.
- 8. State Cooperative House Building/Housing Finance Societies/Federations.
- 9. State Urban Coop. Banks and Credit Societies/ Associations/ Federations.
- 10. Other State Cooperative Federations:
 - Dairy/Milk Marketing
 - Handloom/Spinning Mills
 - Sugar/Cane
 - Labour
 - Fisheries
 - Miscellaneous
- 11. State Tribal Development Cooperatives/ Corporations/Societies/State Cooperative Banks Associations.
- 12. Multi State Cooperative Societies.

Management

Management of National Cooperative Union of India

The management of National Cooperative Union of India is carried out through three organs :

- General Body, which is comprised of delegates of member institutions of NCUI.
- 2. Governing Council, comprised of office bearers, elected and co-opted members.
- Executive Committee, which is a subcommittee of the Governing Council of NCUI.

General Body

As per the provisions of the Multi State Cooperative Societies Act 2002 and bye-laws of NCUI, the General Body of NCUI is comprised of one delegate from each member institution. The Annual General Body Meeting of NCUI for the year 2016-2017 was held on 20th September, 2017 in the Auditorium of National Cooperative Union of India. The General Body deliberated on various issues concerning the Cooperative Movement in the country.

Governing Council

During the year under review, five Governing

Council Meetings were convened on 26.04.2017, 05.08.2017, 20.09.2017, 27.12.2017 and 10.03.2018. The Governing Council in its meetings dealt with various subjects related to the development of the Cooperative Movement.

Executive Committee

During the year under review, one meeting of the Executive Committee of NCUI took place on 03.11.2017. The Executive Committee dealt with matters relating to the administrative and financial management of NCUI.

CHAPTER-2

Cooperative Education

NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION (NCCE)

uring the year 2017-18 the National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE) conducted 165 training programmes with an achievement of 221% against the target of 75 programmes including 12 week Diploma programme on Cooperative Education and Development. 5497 participants benefitted from these training programmes against the target of 2250, an achievement of 244%. Emphasis was placed on up-gradation of weaker cooperative sectors by conducting 54 programmes with 1860 participants like labour, fishery, tribal cooperatives, handloom and handicrafts etc. Out of 5531 beneficiaries, 1663 SC/ST participants were trained. In recognition of the important role played by women in the development of cooperatives. 1938 women were trained in different programmes with 22 programmes being organized exclusively for women participants. NCCE is organizing programmes in the following main areas:

- Diploma Programme in Cooperative Education and Development (3 months) for Indian and participants from other countries.
- One year and 2 year courses in "Cooperative Management" for students of (Central and State Universities)
- Orientation Course on "Cooperation and Cooperative Management" for Faculty Members of Kendriya Vidyalaya Sangathan (KVS).
- Cooperation and Cooperative Management Programmes for Personnel of IFFCO & KRIBHCO and other reputed cooperatives.
- 5. Leadership Development Programmes (3-5 days) for the Chairmen/Directors of different sectors of the Cooperative Movement of India and SAARC & neighbouring countries including Mauritius.

- 6. Refresher Courses for Farm Guidance Instructors of NCUI (Project).
- 7. Refresher cum Research Oriented Course on "Cooperatives" for Lecturers/ Readers of College/University (one week).
- 8. Refresher Courses for the Faculty of Junior Cooperative Training Centers.

The details of the programmes organised during the year are given at Annexure I to III as detailed below:

Annexure I: Programmes organised during 2017 - 2018 (Date-wise) categorised as programmes for SC/ST, Women, OBC etc.

Annexure II: Programmes conducted during 2017 – 2018 (Sector-wise).

Annexure III: Programmes conducted during 2017 – 2018 (State-wise).

FIELD PROJECTS ON COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

NCUI is implementing a Central Sector scheme for the intensification of cooperative education through 43 cooperative education field projects, including Women projects and North Eastern projects located in cooperatively under developed states / under developed areas of developed states and union territories as detailed given below:

State wise List of Education Projects

Zone	SI. No.	State	Project Location	No.
South	1.	Karnataka	Gulbarga (Yadgir) & Shimoga	2
	2.	Kerala	Thiruvanathapuram	1
	3.	Andhra Pradesh	Vijayawada	1
	4.	A & N Islands	Port Blair	1
				5

Zone	SI. No.	State	Project Location	No.
West	5.	Goa	Panaji	1
	6.	Gujarat	Ahmedabad & Surendranagar	2
	7.	Madhya Pradesh	Raghogarh, Ujjain, Bhopal, & Ratlam	4
	8.	Chattisgarh	Raipur	1 8
East	9.	Bihar	Hazipur & Arrah	2
	10.	Orissa	Khurda, Aska & Cuttack (Jagatsingpur)	3
	11.	West Bengal	Raiganj	1
				6
North	12.	Jammu & Kashmir	Jammu & Anantnag	2
	13.	Himachal Pradesh	Bilaspur&Hamirpur	2
	14.	Punjab	Bathinda & Jalandhar	2
	15.	Rajasthan	Sawai Madhopur, Jhunjhunu, & Jodhpur	3
16. U.P.		U.P.	Pilibhit, Fatehpur, Baghpat, Jhansi, Deoria, Unnao & Sultanpur (Amethi)	7
				16
North East	17.	Assam	Morigaon & Jorhat	2
	18.	Manipur	Thoubal & Imphal	2
	19.	Meghalaya	Shillong	1
	20.	Nagaland	Kohima	1
	21.	Mizoram	Aizwal	1
	22.	Sikkim	Sikkim	1
				8

Project Activities:

Project activities are divided mainly into four components:

- Educational / developmental activities: Aimed at strengthening and developing cooperative societies with sound democratic character and strong financial base.
- Farm / technical guidance activities: Aimed at increasing farm production by adopting improved farm technology.
- Socio developmental activities: Aimed at increasing functional literacy / adult education, better living conditions, health care, family welfare, drinking water facilities.
- Women development activities: Aimed at increasingly involving women in cooperatives as well as raising their socio—economic conditions by promoting exclusive women cooperatives.

Progress

Project-wise activities, achievements and progress are given at Annexures IV to VIII as elaborated below:-

Annexure-IV	•	Activity wise Education Programmes organized under Cooperative Education Field Projects excluding North East & Women Projects, 2017-18 (Consolidated)
Annexure-V	:	Cooperative Education Programmes organized under Cooperative Education Field Projects, 2017-18 (Project wise)
Annexure- VI	:	Highlights of Achievements, 2017-18 (Consolidated)
Annexure- VII	:	Project wise Achievements of Main Indicators during the year 2017-18
Annexure- VIII	:	Project wise Progress of Self Help Groups organized by CEI as on 31 st March, 2018.

NCUI WOMEN COOPERATIVE EDUCATION PROGRAMME UNDER COOPERATIVE EDUCATION FIELD PROJECTS FOR THE YEAR 2017-2018

NCUI is conducting Cooperative Education and Development Socio-economic Programmes aimed at the employment and income generation of women, through imparting capacity as well as skill upgradation training. The training is imparted by the personnel of its 43 Cooperative Education Field Projects, four of which based at Shimoga (Karnataka), Aska (Orissa), Bhopal (Madhya Pradesh) and East Imphal (Manipur) are exclusive women projects. 50% of the expenditure incurred on these projects is met through the grants received from the Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare and the balance 50% is met through the funds collected from the cooperative movement in the form of Cooperative Education Fund.

The progress relating to organisation of Self Help Groups (SHG) and other educational and income generation activities has been organized projectwise for the year i.e. 1st April 2017 to March 2018, at Annexures IX & X respectively.

During the year under report, 228 SHGs with a membership of 2926 women were formed by the lady mobilisers of the Cooperative Education Field Projects. The figure of SHG formed under these projects from inception till date is an impressive total of 3405 Self Help Groups having a membership base of 39991 women. The activity details of Women Education projects may be seen at Annexure-I. Through various income generating activities, 12366 women were benefited under this programme. On an average, each woman beneficiary was enabled to earn about Rs. 4000/- per month. During the year, a total of 85973 women were imparted education under various educational activities as shown at Annexure-I. The Self Help Groups were able to mobilize Rs. 13,65,36,786 from their own savings, during the year under report. During the year Rs. 9,98,00,970/- was loaned to SHG members for taking up income generating activities. 63 cooperative societies, with the members of Self Help Groups organised by NCUI cooperative education field projects, have been registered under various State Cooperative Societies Acts.

COOPERATIVE EDUCATION FIELD PROJECTS IN UNDER DEVELOPED STATES/ AREAS OF THE DEVELOPED STATES OF NORTH EAST

The Government of India has been giving grants to NCUI under a Central Sector Scheme as a special measure for strengthening the cooperative movement and reducing regional imbalances in the North East. Under the Scheme, NCUI implements 7 cooperative education field projects in the North East Region, which cover the under-developed areas of the region. 50% of the expenditure incurred on these projects is met through the grants received from the *Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare* and the balance 50% is met through the funds collected from cooperative movement in the form of Cooperative Education Fund.

During 2017–2018, all 6 projects (Sikkim Project is not functioning due to absence of manpower) achieved the set targets and objectives as per the overall guidelines. A total of 35,580 participants were trained.

Activity and project wise achievements/ progress and highlights of special activities are exhibited at Annexures XI, XII, XIV & XV.

GENERAL COOPERATIVE EDUCATION PROGRAMMES/SCHEMES CONDUCTED BY STATE COOPERATIVE UNIONS

In furtherance of its objectives to promote and develop the cooperative movement in India in accordance with cooperative principles, NCUI monitors the cooperative education programmes to popularize the principles and practices of cooperation. The overall objective of the cooperative education programme is to create enlightened, participatory and responsive membership and cooperative leadership; to improve the management efficiency of board members and office bearers of cooperative societies; to develop dynamic and forward looking leadership and to create cooperative awareness amongst the masses, particularly youth and women.

Presently, three types of Cooperative Education Programmes are being conducted in

the country – (1) General cooperative education programmes for agriculture cooperatives that are implemented by state cooperative unions; (2) specific cooperative education programmes covering dairy, fishery, women, urban credit, consumer, housing, industrial activities, handicrafts, forest, and labour/ contract construction, marketing cooperatives etc. (3) Special cooperative education projects based on an area development approach. The target group of this programme consists of members and managing committee members of primary agriculture cooperative societies and self-help groups wherever they are developed by the concerned state cooperative union at village level.

The programmes at the state level are implemented by state cooperative unions through the adoption of two types of approaches namely; peripatetic approach and intensive approach.

Progress

During the year 2017-2018, 4970 training programmes were conducted resulting in190857 persons being educated/trained, including 69842 SC/ST and 51820 women participants.

Many of the state cooperative unions have diversified their education programmes and also organised cooperative education programmes for other sectoral cooperatives . These programmes were conducted for many sectors i.e. dairy, urban credit, fishery, industrial / weavers, marketing, labour contract and forest labour cooperatives, cooperative law etc. in the rural as well as urban areas in the country. Some state cooperative unions such as Himachal Pradesh and Kerala state cooperative unions implemented special education programmes for SC/STs in selected areas of the states. Additionally, some states organized classes/courses for SC/ST and backward community members / potential members as a part of on going cooperative education programme. During the reporting year, a total of 69842 individuals belonging to the SC/ST categories as well as 51520 women were trained. Further, in response to the Government of India's 15 Point Welfare Programme for minority communities in 40 identified districts, consistent efforts were made to cover minority communities under the on going cooperative education

programme. The programme is also being implemented through state cooperative unions and cooperative education field projects / units and benefits of cooperative education programme are provided to the minority communities.

A total 4970 courses were conducted and 190857 persons were trained by the state cooperative unions during the year. The unions of Gujarat, Delhi, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Kerala, Tripura, West Bengal, Chhattisgarh, and Assam conducted these programmes regularly.

FOR WOMEN AND YOUTH THROUGH STATE COOPERATIVE UNIONS

The Cooperative Education Programmes for Women are being implemented through the state cooperative unions in the states of Arunachal Pradesh, Assam, Bihar, Delhi, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh, Kerala, Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Manipur, Mizoram, Orissa, Rajasthan, Tamil Nadu, Uttar Pradesh and West Bengal. Cooperative education programmes/classes under this programme are conducted by the Lady Cooperative Education Instructors in rural as well as in urban areas. The duration of these programmes varies from 1 to 7 days which covers classes/ meetings for women and potential women members of cooperative societies, managing committee members, office bearers and employees of women cooperatives etc.

Over the year, 2614 events in total were organized and as many as 78223 women were imparted knowledge in different areas in the various classes as a part of this Programme. The progress during the year is detailed below:

Progress:

SI. No.	Name of the Programme	Events	Partici- pants
1.	Programme for Socio-economic Development of Housewives	702	18681
2.	Programmes for Managing Committee Members focusing on the Functioning of the Society	342	7770
3.	Programmes for ordinary Members Focusing on their Role and responsibilities	431	12981

No. Programme pants 4. Seminars /Meetings/Shiviris 565 14472 on Different Subjects 5. Dairy Seminars 171 7084 6. Kheda Project (Gujarat) 76 4775 7. Training/Course for Women Employees		Total	2614	78223
No. Programme pants 4. Seminars /Meetings/Shiviris on Different Subjects 5. Dairy Seminars 171 7084 6. Kheda Project (Gujarat) 76 4775 7. Training/Course for Women 184 6197	8.	Other Miscellaneous Activities	143	6263
No. Programme pants 4. Seminars /Meetings/Shiviris on Different Subjects 5. Dairy Seminars 171 7084	7.	3	184	6197
No. Programme pants 4. Seminars /Meetings/Shiviris 565 14472 on Different Subjects	6.	Kheda Project (Gujarat)	76	4775
No. Programme pants 4. Seminars /Meetings/Shiviris 565 14472	5.	Dairy Seminars	171	7084
	4.	3	565	14472
			Events	Partici- pants

The Youth Education Programme is being implemented as a part of the ongoing activity of the Cooperative Education Pprogramme by the state cooperative unions. There is no earmarked staff for this programme.

The following activities are being organised for youth :

- Cooperative Education Classes of one week duration for students and other youth organised in collaboration with educational institutions and youth organizations.
- 2. Youth rallies, Camps, Essay, Drawing, Painting and Debating competitions

As a part of this Programme, a large number of youth were imparted cooperative education during the year under report. The details of the

events & participants are given below:

No. of Events : 1395

No. of participants : 60012

COOP CONNECT

During the year, effort were made to popularise cooperative model of development amongst the schools, colleges and universities in the country. The training programmes with Kendriya Vidyalaya Sangathan gained momentum. These two day programmes were organised for KVS school teachers at Delhi, Lucknow and Ahmedabad. Around 150 teachers of KVS schools were trained on the theoretical as well as practical aspects of the functioning of cooperatives. The teachers desired that long duration programmes may be organised in future, and also such programmes may be organised for the Principals of KVS Schools too. The training programmes to popularise cooperative education in the colleges and universities were further strengthened during the year. Training programmes for Diploma and Certificate Courses for the students of Bhagat Phool Singh Mahila University, Sonipat (Haryana), and Central University, Mahendragarh were organised regularly. A one day Sensitisation Programme for Students of Diploma in Cooperative Management of CSRM, Randheja (Gujarat), and students of Indira Gandhi Krishi Vishwavidyalaya (Raipur) was also organised during the year.

_									
Annexure - I	Venue	NCCE, New Delhi	NCCE, New Delhi	BPSMV, Khanpur Kalan	IFFCO Phulpur (UP)	NSRICM, Kalyani	IGICM, Lucknow	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Dehradun
	o O	12-04-17	19-04-17	18-04-17	20-04-17	21-04-17	26-04-17	26-04-17	26-04-17
8	Date From	10-04-2017	17-04-207	18-04-2017	19-04-2017	19-04-2017	24-04-2017	24-04-2017	24-04-2017
N h, 2018	뵘	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
UCATIO	Other	22	18	^	17	18	4	22	
VE EL oril, 20′	OBC	18	9	7	4	~	0	12	က
NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION ammes organised during the year April, 2017 - March	Women	9	0	15	~	23	4	10	-
-ORCC Iring th	ST	_	0	0	0	0	0	က	-
ENIRE I	SC	2	10	9	13	o	က	~	4
JNAL C	Total	46	8	15	25	8	16	39	19
NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION Programmes organised during the year April, 2017 - March, 2018	Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Coops. of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Multi State Coop Societies of India	Training Programmme for the Students of Bhagat Phool Singh Mahila Vishwavidyalaya, Sonipat (Haryana)	Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management for the Personnel of IFFCO Plant, Phulpur Unit, Allahabad (UP)	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	Management Development Training Programme for the coopertive Personnel of SCU and JTC of U.P.	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCB's and Credit Societies of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of of State/ Distt. Cooperative Banks of U.P./ Uttrakhand
	SI. No.	_	8	က	4	2	9	~	∞

-	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	뿔	Date From	으	Venue
S G E	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Multi State Coops. Societies of India	35	0	S	12	ო	27	13	01-05-2017	03-05-17	NCCE, New Delhi
ËΰŠ	Training Programme for the Students of CUH on Cooperative Management at CUH, Mahendragarh (Haryana)	23	0	0	2	17	7	0	11-05-2017	12-05-17	CUH, Mahendragarh
OOE	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperatives of India	26	0	0	~	18	ω	0	11-05-2017	13-05-17	NCCE, New Delhi
Car	Trainers Training Programme for Coop. Edu. Personnel of State/ Distt. Coop. Unions and Faculty Members of Junior Training Centres of India	24	-	7	-	~	10	0	15-05-2017	19-05-17	NCCE, New Delhi
3 O O	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperatives of West Bengal	19	4	0	0	0	ω	0	16-05-17	18-05-17	NSRCIM, Kalyani
0 O L	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of Coops. of NE States	33	0	0	33	7	31	33	17-05-17	19-05-17	ICM, Manipur
∝ O ≥	Review cum Refresher Course for Project Officers of NCUI Coop. Edu. Field Projects of India	2 8	-	~	10	~	0	9	22-05-17	24-05-17	NCCE, New Delhi
0 O L	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of Uttar Pradesh	92	0	0	ო	89	ø	0	22-05-17	24-05-17	IGICM, Lucknow
I I O E	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Handloom & Handicrafts Cooperatives of Rajasthan	22	თ	~	-	~		0	22-05-17	24-05-17	ICM, Jaipur

S. So.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	뷜	<u>Date</u> From	e To	Venue
18	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives Societies of A & N Islands	36	_	-	36	9	28	0	29-05-17	31-05-17	RGCTC, A&N Islands
19	Review cum Refresher Course for CEIs of NCUI Coop. Edu. Field Projects of India	4		က	ω	∞		က	05-06-17	07-06-17	NCCE, New Delhi
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	56	က			4	19		06-06-17	08-06-17	NSRICM, Kalyani
2	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of India	4	_	က	4	10	15	Θ	12-06-17	14-06-17	NCCE, New Delhi
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	18		16	7				14-06-17	16-06-17	NSRICM, Kalyani
83	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Horticulture Coops. Northern States	7	~			4	ဖ		19-06-17	21-06-17	RICM, Chandigarh
24	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs of India	84	က	2	7		27		19-06-17	21-06-17	NCCE, New Delhi
25	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperatives of India	28	_	4	∞	15	8		27-06-17	29-06-17	NCCE, New Delhi
36	Leadership Development Programme for Cooperative Societies of Madhya Pradesh	31				23	ω		27-06-17	29-06-17	MPSCU M.P.
27	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperatives of Uttar Pradesh/ Uttrakhand	23			_	o			28-06-17	30-06-17	30-06-17 ICM, Dehradun

Nan	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	Ä	<u>Date</u> From	e To	Venue
Leaders Chairpe Coopera	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of Andhra Pradesh/ Telangana	49	4	ည	49	25	ω	0	03-07-17	05-07-17	ICM Hyderabad
Leader Chairm Societi	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of India	37	~	4	ဖ	10	22	4	03-07-17	05-07-17	NCCE, New Delhi
Leader Chairp Coope	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of Rajasthan	4	o	∞	44	20	4	0	05-07-17	07-07-17	ICM, Jaipur
Leadel Chairn of U.P.	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Marketing Coops. of U.P.	23			4	o o	4		05-07-17	07-07-17	IGICM Lucknow
Leaders Chairm of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs of Cooperatives of India	27 s	4	7	7	o o	10	0	10-07-17	12-07-17	NCCE, New Delhi
Progra Manaa Aonla	Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management for Officers of IFFCO Plant Aonla Unit Bareilly (U.P.)	30	Ŋ	0	~	0	24	0	13-07-17	14-07-17	IFFCO Aonla
Leader; Chairm of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ ST Coops. of India	52	15	37	4	0	0	9	17-07-2017	19-07-17	NCCE, New Delhi
Leader Chairm Tripura	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Coops. of Tripura	92	51	0	±	7	^	92	19-07-17	21-07-17	Apex Fisher Coop. Society Agartala
Leade Chairr Coope	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Consumer Cooperative Societies of U.P.	36			တ	4	22		20-07-17	22-07-17	IGICM, Lucknow

S. So	. Name of the Programme o.	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	빙	Date From	e To	Venue
37	' Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of India	28	2	7	28	25	ю	23	24-07-17	26-07-17	NCCE, New Delhi
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Joint Farming Cooperative Societies of A.P.	4	34	7	7	∞	0	0	26-07-17	28-07-17	ICM, Hyderabad
98	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Vaanopaj Cooperative Societies of M.P.	15		15	ω				24-07-17	26-07-17	CTC, Jabalpur
4	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Consumer Coop. of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh	38	ю	~	ω	7	10		01-08-17	03-08-17	ICM, Hyderabad
4	Review and Refresher Course for Lady Mobilisers of the NCUI Coop. Education Field Projects of India	16	7		16	က	7	4	01-08-17	03-08-17	NCCE, New Delhi
42	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of NE States	32	0	7	Ω	-	19	32	01-08-17	03-08-17	ICM, Guwahati
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of M.P.	38	~		38	19	18		02-08-17	04-08-17	CTC, Indore
4	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of West Bengal	45	2	~		12	12		08-08-17	10-08-17	NSRICM, Kalyani
45	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Coops. of Andhra Pradesh	33		33					09-08-17	11-08-17	ICM, Hyderabad

<u>유</u> 양	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	뮏	<u>Date</u> From	te To	Venue
46	Leadership Development Programme for 53	53		-	12	=	29		16-08-17	18-08-17	NCCE,
47	Cooperatives of A. N. Islands Cooperatives of A. N. Islands	35	7	က	32	15	15		17-08-17	19-08-17	RGCTC A & N Islands
84	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tourism Cooperatives of A & N Islands	8					30		17-08-17	19-08-17	RGCTC, A&N Islands
49	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Agriculture Rural Development Banks of Karnataka	30	7	~		ø	23		21-08-17	23-08-17	RICM, Bengaluru
20	Refresher Course on Cooperative Policy and Development for Faculty of Universities/ Colleges of India	44	ø		10	21	16	0	21-08-17	25-08-17	NCCE, New Delhi
51	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Coops. of India	49	4	12	7	6	4		28-08-17	30-08-17	NCCE, New Delhi
25	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Urban Credit Societies of M.P.	8			18	13	2		29-08-17	31-08-17	CTC, Indore
23	Training Programme for Kendriya Vidyalaya School Teachers of Delhi/ NCR Region	47	10	က		10	24		31-08-17	01-09-17	NCCE, New Delhi
22	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Cooperative Societies of Andhra Pradesh	51	7	9	4		8		04-09-17	06-09-17	ICM, Hyderabad
55	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of Manipur	23	9	7		ω	7	23	04-09-17	06-09-17	ICM, Imphal

S. So.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	빙	<u>Date</u> From	0 To	Venue
56	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCB and T/C Societies Coops. of India	35	2		7	4			04-09-17	06-09-17	NCCE, New Delhi
22	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Cooperative Societies of India	46	10	7	7	25	6	10	11-09-17	13-09-17	NCCE, New Delhi
28	Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management for the Personnel of IFFCO Plant Paradeep (Odisha)	59			~	2	13		13-09-17	14-09-17	IFFCO Plant Paradeep (Odisha)
29	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Joint Farming Cooperative Societies of Telangana	33	4	9		10			18-09-17	20-09-17	ICM, Hyderabad
9	Certificate of Proficiency in Cooperative Management for the students of BPS Mahila Vishwavidyalaya Khanpur Kalan, Sonipat (Haryana)	21 aryana)			27				27-09-17	27-09-17	BPSMV, Sonipat
64	Diploma of Proficiency in Cooperative Management for the students of BPS Mahila Vishwavidyalaya Khanpur Kalan, Sonipat (Haryana)	~			_		~		27-09-17	27-09-17	BPSMV, Sonipat
8	22nd Session of Diploma in Cooperative Education & Development	58		~		9	52	9	03-10-17	21-12-17	NCCE, New Delhi
8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Central & Apex Level Coops. of A & N Islands	28		0	က	15			04-10-17	06-10-17	A & N Islands
22	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Urban Coop. Bank in Maharashtra	23	4	0	2	ო	16	0	04-10-17	06-10-17	ICM, Pune

Venue	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Nagpur	RGCTC, A& N Islands	RGCTC, A& N Islands	NCCE, New Delhi	NSRICM, Kalyani	Gajapati (Odisha)	ICM, Hyderabad	NCCE, New Delhi	MICM, Bhubaneshwar
ا ا	11-10-17	11-10-17	12-10-17	18-10-17	25-10-17	26-10-17	26-10-17	27-10-17	01-11-17	03-11-17
<u>Date</u> From	09-10-17	09-10-17	10-10-17	16-10-17	23-10-17	24-10-17	24-10-17	25-10-17	30-10-17	01-11-17
쀨	က								9	
Other			15	13			10		4	
OBC	က		13	13				9	10	
Women OBC	13	2	2	7		~	9		34	
ST	15	7	-	0	4	20	വ	-	ო	29
SC		28	-	0	2		10	16	7	
Total	30	4	30	30	19	20	42	33	34	58
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Coops. of Maharashtra	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Coops. of A & N Islands	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Youth Coops. of A & N Islands	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Cooperatives of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Cooperatives	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Coop. / PACS/ LAMPS of Odisha	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Joint Farming Cooperative Societies of Andhra Pradesh	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Cooperatives of Odisha
<u>유</u>	59	99	29	89	69	02	7	72	73	47

	i									1
Venue	CTC Jabalpur	NSRICM, Kalyani	BPSMV Sonipat	ICM, Imphal	NCCE, New Delhi	BPSMV Sonipat	NCCE, New Delhi	NCCE, New Delhi	NCCE, New Delhi	CTC, Bhopal
е То	03-11-17	03-11-17	06-11-17	10-11-17	10-11-17	13-11-17	15-11-17	22-11-17	29-11-17	29-11-17
<u>Date</u> From	01-11-17	01-11-17	06-11-17	08-11-17	08-11-17	13-11-17	13-11-17	20-11-17	27-11-17	27-11-17
뮏				34	35					
Other		Ω		13				13	15	4
OBC		က	-	15					16	4
Women OBC	~		32		∞	26	4	13	32	
ST		-			35					-
SC		10		9					_	∞
Total	27	19	32	34	35	56	59	13 dia	32 dia	27
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for the Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperatives of M.P.	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of West Bengal	Training Programme for the students of BPSMV of Certificate/ Diploma in Coop. Management	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Manipur	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of LAMPs & MPCS of Arunachal Pradesh	Training Programme for the students of BPSMV of Certificate/ Diploma in Coop. Management	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Agriculture & Marketing Societies of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors Coops. of India	Leadership Development Programme for 3 Chairpersons/ Women Directors Coops. of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative of Madhya Pradesh
SI.	75	92	1	78	62	80	8	82	83	8

Name of the Programme		Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	岁	<u>Date</u> From	[e] [안	Venue
Leadership Development Programme for 21 Chairmen/ Directors of Consumer Cooperative of India	2		~		~	13	_	4	04-12-17	06-12-17	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadership Development Programme for 60 Chairpersons/Women Directors Coops. of Karnataka	09		4		09	4			09-12-17	11-12-17	Udutani
Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management for Personnel of KRIBHCO, HQ, Noida	40		10		က	12	18		11-12-17	12-12-17	12-12-17 KRIBHCO, HQ
Leadership Development Programme for 37 Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ ST Cooperative Societies of India	37		∞	59	ß			4	11-12-17	13-12-17	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperative Societies of M.P.	4		28				16	7	14-12-17	16-12-17	CTC, Indore
Leadership Development Programme for 47 Chairpersons/Women Directors Coops. of India	47		~	7	47	32	9		18-12-17	20-12-17	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadership Development Programme for 20 Chairmen/ Directors of Self Employed Cooperatives of Rajasthan State	20		4		10	o	~		20-12-17	22-12-17	ICM, Jaipur
Leadership Development Programme for 45 Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Coops. of LAMPS of Odisha	45		4	25	9				21-12-17	23-12-17	Mohana (Odisha)
Leadership Development Programme for 48 Chairmen/ Directors of Fishery Cooperative Societies of India			7	7	13	35	6	cy.	26-12-17	28-12-17	NCCE, New Delhi

	S S	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	뿔	Date From	o To	Venue
	8	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors Coops. of Kerala	4	o		14		36		27-12-17	29-12-17	ICM, Kannur
	32	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs and Credit Society of India	19	~		4	4		4	02-01-18	04-01-18	NCCE, New Delhi
	96	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Engineering Coops. of West Bengal	22	က			7	17		08-01-18	10-01-18	RICM, Kalyani
	26	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of India	24	7		24	7	7	က	08-01-18	10-01-18	NCCE, New Delhi
18	86	Training Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management for the Technocrates of IFFCO Plant, Kandla (Gujarat)	31	^			12	12		08-01-18	09-01-18	IFFCO Unit,Kandla
	66	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Cooperatives of Rajasthan	12		4		∞			08-01-18	10-01-18	ICM, Jaipur
	100	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Coops. of A&N Islands	30		30	72				09-01-18	11-01-18	NCCE, New Delhi
	101	Training Programme for the Students of Diploma Programme in Cooperative Management of CSRM, Gujarat	28	_	2	10	15	7		09-01-18	11-01-18	CSRM, Randheja, Gandhinagar
	102	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Tribal Cooperatives of A & N Islands	30		30	72				09-01-18	11-01-18	RGCTC, A&N Islands
	103	Training Programme on Cooperation and Cooperative Management for the Technocrates of IFFCO Plant, Kalol (Gujarat)	59	9			9	17		10-01-18	11-01-18	IFFCO Unit, Kalol

Venue	NCCE, New Delhi	BPSMV, Sonipat (Haryana)	BPSMV, Sonipat (Haryana)	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Lucknow	CUH, Mahendragarh	NCCE, New Delhi	DGICM, Nagpur	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Imphal
e To	17-01-18	19-01-18	19-01-18	24-01-18	24-01-18	28-01-18	31-01-18	03-02-18	07-02-18	07-02-18
<u>Date</u> From	15-01-18	18-01-18	18-01-18	22-01-18	23-01-18	27-01-18	29-01-18	01-02-18	05-02-18	05-02-18
N N				23						32
Other	ဇ	9	ro	12	16	4	2	0	24	24
OBC	26	4	7	15	12	10	39	4	6	_
Women OBC		10	_	55	12	4	∞	27	4	9
ST				œ			က	O		
SC	2			19	19		∞	0	S)	-
Total	31	10	~	22	48	41	22	27	42	32
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fishermen Cooperatives of India	Training Programme for the Students of Certificate Course in Cooperative Management students of BPSMV, Sonipat	Training Programme for the Students of Diploma in Cooperative Management of BPSMV, Sonipat	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/ Women Directors of India	Training Programme for Kendriya Vidyalaya School Teachers of Lucknow Region	Training Programme for the Students of 1st & 2nd Semester of CUH, Mahendragarh (Haryana)	Workshop/ LDP for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs & T/C Societies of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperative societies of Maharashtra	Training Programme on Digital & Cashless Banking for Members of Board of Senior Officers of UCBs & Credit Sector of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Dairy Coop. Society of Manipur
SI. No.	104	105	106	107	108	109	110	11	112	113

Venue	DGICM, Nagpur	NCCE, New Delhi	Bidar Distt. (Karnataka)	Mangah North Sikkim	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Thiruvanan- thapuram	ICM, Imphal	ICM, Imphal	Gangtok, Sikkim
e To	08-02-18	09-02-18	11-02-18	14-02-18	14-02-18	14-02-18	15-02-18	15-02-18	17-02-18
Date From	06-02-18	08-02-18	10-02-18	12-02-18	12-02-18	12-02-18	13-02-18	13-02-18	15-02-18
뮏				30	20		36	38	30
Other	7	ю	10		9		6	17	
OBC	17	∞	52				17	9	17
Women OBC	2		21	ω	28	10	39		10
ST	18			30	15	35			12
SC	11		8		_	35	5	15	_
Total	48	±	80	30	28	35	39	38	30
SI. Name of the Programme No.	114 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperatives of Maharashtra	115 Training Programme for the Students of Diploma in Coop. Management of CUH, Mahendragarh	116 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Bidar Distt. Coop. Societies of Karnataka	117 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Unemployed Educated Youth/ Women/ Labour Contractor of Cooperatives of Sikkim, Mangan, North Sikkim	118 Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of India	119 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Cooperatives of Kerala State	120 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Handloom Cooperative Society of Manipur	121 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Manipur	122 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of MPCS of Sikkim

	i									
Venue	MICM, Bhubaneshwar	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Thiruvanan- thapuram	Kurud, DCU, Dhamtari	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Imphal	ICM, Imphal	ICM, Imphal	NCCE, New Delhi	DCCB, Purnia, Bihar
.е То	17-02-18	17-02-18	17-02-18	18-02-18	21-02-18	21-02-18	21-02-18	21-02-18	24-02-18	27-02-18
<u>Date</u> From	15-02-18	15-02-18	15-02-18	16-02-18	19-02-18	19-02-18	19-02-18	19-02-18	22-02-18	25-02-18
N N	0				8	35	34	35		
Other			2		18	16	72	33	თ	က
OBC	4			63	17	19		ო	17	27
Women OBC	ಬ	19	က	4	4	33	4	32	თ	30
ST	_		4	16	~		∞		c)	
SC	24		~	သ	16		7	~	~	
Total	29	26	58	48	52	35	8	35	32	30
Name of the Programme	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of Odisha	Leadership Development Programme for Cooperators of Nepal	Leadership Development Programme for President/ Board of Directors of Labour Cooperatives of Kerala	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of PACS of Chhattisgarh	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of India	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Handicraft Cooperative Societies of Manipur	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperative Societies of Manipur	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Multi Industrial Cooperative Societies of Manipur	Sensitisation Programme for the Students of Diploma in Cooperative Management of CSRM, Randheja (Gandhinagar), Gujarat	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperative Societies of Bihar State
S. No.	123	124	125	126	127	128	129	130	131	132

133 Training Programme on Digital Banking and Gashless Tarsactions for Urban Cooperative Clearly Search of India Cooperative Societies of Telangana and Andhra Programme for Chairment Directors of Different Type of Cooperative Societies of Planachal Pradesh 134 13 2 3 14 27 26-02-18 28-02-18 Vallu Leadership Development Programme for Chairment Directors of Different Type of Cooperative Societies of Himachal Pradesh 136 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15		SI. No.	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	뿐	<u>Date</u> From	e To	Venue
134 Leadership Development Programme for Cooperative Societies of Falloment Directors of Labour Cooperative Societies of Falloment Directors of Labour Cooperative Societies of Falloment Directors of Utilizent Type of Cooperative Societies of Himachal Pradesh 28		133	on Digital Banking al s for Urban Coop.	35	_		ω	2	32		26-02-18	28-02-18	NCCE, New Delhi
136 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Different Type of Cooperative Societies of Himachal Pradesh 43 13 2 9 1 27 28-02-18 <		134	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperative Societies of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh	49	19	ø	က	23			26-02-18	28-02-18	ICM, Hyderabad
136 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Director of Dairy Coops. in Kerala 20 7 4 9 26-02-18 28-02-18 137 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperatives Societies in West Bengal 49 10 5 16 10 21 26-02-18 28-02-18 138 Training Programme on Cooperatives for Kendriya Vidyalaya of Ahmedabad Region 40 5 16 10 21 27-02-18 28-02-18 139 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs & Credit Societies of India 40 07-03-18 09-03-18 140 Leadership Development Programme for the President/ Directors of Weavers Cooperative Cooperative Societies of Kerala 35 5 17 25 5 07-03-18 09-03-18		135	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Different Type of Cooperative Societies of Himachal Pradesh	43	13	7	တ	-	27		26-02-18	28-02-18	Kullu District
Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Cooperatives Societies in West Bengal 138 Training Programme on Cooperatives for Ahmedabad Region 139 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs & Credit Societies of India 140 Leadership Development Programme for Cooperative Societies of Kerala 141 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Weavers Cooperative Societies of Kerala 142 Leadership Development Programme for Societies of Meavers Cooperative Societies of Kerala 143 Leadership Development Programme for Societies of Meavers Cooperative Societies of Kerala 144 Leadership Development Programme for Societies of Kerala 155 Societies of Kerala 166 Societies of Kerala 176 Societies of Kerala 177 Societies of Kerala 188 Societies of Kerala 189 Societies of Renala 190 Societies of Renala 190 Societies of Kerala 191 Societies of Kerala 192 Societies of Kerala 193 Societies of Kerala 194 Societies of Kerala 195 Societies of Kerala 196 Societies of Kerala 197 Societies of Kerala		136	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Director of Dairy Coops. in Kerala	36	27	15	36				26-02-18	28-02-18	ICM, Kannur
Training Programme on Cooperartives for Ahmedabad Region Leadership Development Programme for Cooperatives of Meavers Cooperative Leadership Development Programme for Societies of India Leadership Development Programme for Goops. in Kerala Leadership Development Programme for Societies of Kerala Region 10	22 ===	137	>	50	^		4		O		26-02-18	28-02-18	NSRICM, Kalyani
Leadership Development Programme for A0 Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs & Credit Societies of India Leadership Development Programme for 35 5 17 25 5 07-03-18 09-03-18 Leadership Development Programme for 36 5 10 07-03-18 09-03-18 Leadership Development Programme for 36 5 07-03-18 09-03-18 Coops. in Kerala Leadership Development Programme for 36 09-03-18 Chairmen/ Directors of Weavers Cooperative Societies of Kerala		138	Training Programme on Cooperartives for Teachers of Kendriya Vidyalaya of Ahmedabad Region	49	10	2	16	10	77		27-02-18	28-02-18	RICM, Gandinagar
Leadership Development Programme for 35 5 17 25 5 07-03-18 09-03-18 the President/ Directors of Weavers Coops. in Kerala Leadership Development Programme for 36 10 07-03-18 09-03-18 Chairmen/ Directors of Weavers Cooperative Societies of Kerala		139	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of UCBs & Credit Societies of India	40			က		40		07-03-18	09-03-18	NCCE, New Delhi
Leadership Development Programme for 36 10 07-03-18 09-03-18 Chairmen/ Directors of Weavers Cooperative Societies of Kerala		140	Leadership Development Programme for the President/ Directors of Weavers Coops. in Kerala	32	5		17	25	ഹ		07-03-18	09-03-18	ICM, Kannur
		141	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Weavers Cooperative Societies of Kerala	36			10				07-03-18	09-03-18	ICM, Kannur

n S S	Name of the Programme	Total	SC	ST	Women OBC	OBC	Other	岁	Date From	e 안	Venue
142	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of SC/ST Cooperative Societies of Manipur State	43	34	n	36	5	-	43	09-03-18	11-03-18	ICM, Imphal
143	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Cooperative Societies of U.P.	22	7		4	9	4		12-03-18	14-03-18	NCCE, New Delhi
4	One Day Sensitization Programme for Students of Indira Gandhi Krishi Vishwavidyalaya (C.G.), Raipur	43	9	5	21	12	12		13-03-18	13-03-18	NCCE, New Delhi
145	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Agriculture Cooperative Societies of Chhattisgarh	28		4		24			15-03-18	17-03-18	NCCE, New Delhi
146	Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Cooperatives of Karnataka	30	_		30	26	က		15-03-18	17-03-18 \ S	17-03-18 Yashwini Mahila Souharda Credit Coop. Ltd.
147	Refresher Course for FGI of NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects of India	t 13			8	က	10	~	15-03-18	18-03-18	NCCE, New Delhi
148	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Labour Coop. of India	4	7			7			19-03-18	21-03-18	NCCE, New Delhi
149	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Fisheries Cooperatives of India	23	ო	∞	4		က	ဖ	19-03-18	21-03-18	NCCE, New Delhi
150	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Different Types of Coop. Societies of Himachal Pradesh	113	16		15	7	92		19-03-18	21-03-18	Sahkar Bhawan, Kullu(H.P.)
151	Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Poultry Cooperative Societies of Jhabua Distt., Madhya Pradesh	42	-	4	5				21-03-18	23-03-18	CTC, Jhabua (M.P.)

Venue	RGCTC, A&N Islands	ICM, Imphal	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Imphal	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Nagpur	RICM, Chandigarh	NCCE, New Delhi	ICM, Kannur
e To	23-03-18	24-03-18	24-03-18	24-03-18	25-03-18	25-03-18	28-03-18	28-03-18	28-03-18
<u>Date</u> From	21-03-18	22-03-18	22-03-18	22-03-18	23-03-18	23-03-18	26-03-18	26-03-18	26-03-18
뿐		30		30					
Other	31	4	22	4		19	7	19	26
OBC		თ	ო	ო	ဖ	50	4		
Women OBC	31	23		30		19	∞	~	10
ST		7		4					
SC		4	~	∞	8	8		~	7
Total	31	30	26	30	33	4	27	32	78
 Name of the Programme Io. 	152 Leadership Development Programme for Chairpersons/Women Directors of Women Cooperatives of A & N Islands	153 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Multi Industrial Cooperative Societies of Manipur	154 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Credit Cooperative Societies of Gujarat	155 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Handloom Cooperative Societies of Manipur	156 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Agriculture Cooperatives of Gujarat State	57 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Urban Cooperative Banks of Maharashtra State	158 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Horticulture Coop. Society of Northern States	159 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Farm Forestry Cooperatives of India	160 Leadership Development Programme for Chairmen/ Directors of Housing Cooperatives of Kerala State
S. So	15	15	15	15	15	157	15	15	16

Total
31
21
35
33
78
5497

Annexure - II

NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

Sector wise Break-up of Programmes Conducted by NCCE during 2017-18

SI. No.	Sectors	No. of Programme
	COOPERATIVE EDUCATION	
1	Trainers' Training Programme	2
2	University/ Lecturer	1
3	NCUI Coop. Edu. Field Project	4
4	Diploma in Cooperative Education and Development	1
5	Certificate and Diploma Course in Coop. Management	14
6	Kendriya Vidyalaya School	3
	FERTILISER	
7	IFFCO	5
8	KRIBHCO	1
	AGRICULTURE CREDIT	
9	SCB/DCCB	1
10	ARDBs	1
11	UCBs and T/C Societies	13
12	Multi State Coop. Societies	2
	MULTI SECTOR	
13	Women Coops.	21
14	Self Employment Coop.	1
15	Joint Farming	3
16	Fisheries	23
17	Labour	7
18	Dairy	5
19	Horticulture	3
20	Consumer	3
21	Tribal	10
22	Housing	1
23	Marketing	2
24	Handloom/ Handicraft	5
25	Service Coops. (Engg.)	1
26	Youth Coops.	2
27	SC/ST Cooperatives	7
28	Construction Cooperatives	1
29	Tourism Cooperatives	1
30	Poultry	1
31	Farm Forestry	1
32	Others	19
	Total	165

Annexure - III

NATIONAL CENTRE FOR COOPERATIVE EDUCATION

State-wise Programmes Conducted by NCCE during 2017-18

States/UTs/Country SI.No. in Calender

India 1,2,7,9,11,12,15,19,21,24,25,29, 32,34,37,41,50,51,62,65,69,73,80,81,82,

83,84,85,88,90,93,95,97, 104,107, 110,112,118,127,133,139, 147, 148,

149,159,160

IFFCO (Gujarat) 97,102

KRIBHCO (U.P.) 86

IFFCO (UP) 4,33

East Zone

A & N Islands 18,47,48,63,67,68,100,102,152

Bihar, Jharkhand 132

Odisha 58,71,74,92,123,163

West Bengal 5,13,20,22,44,70,76,96,137

North Zone

Delhi, Jammu & Kashmir, Haryana 3,10,23,53,60,61,77,80,105,

106,109,115,158,162,165

Himachal Pradesh, Punjab 23,136,150

Rajasthan 17,30,91,99

Uttar Pradesh, Uttrakhand 6,8,16,27,31,36,53,87,108,143

South Zone

Andhra Pradesh, Telangana 28,38,40,45,54,59,72,134,164

Kerala, Lakshadweep 94,119,125,136,140,141,160,161

Karnataka 49,86,116,146

West Zone

Chattisgarh, Madhya Pradesh 26,39,43,52,75,84,89,126,144,145, 151

Goa, Maharashtra 64,66,138,157

Gujarat, Daman & Diu 46,98,101,103,111,131,130,154,156

NE States 14,35,42,55,56,57,78,113,117,119,120,

121,122,128,129,130,142,153, 155

SAARC Region 124

Annexure - IV

Activities-wise Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects
(Except North East & Women Projects) (Consolidated) 2017-18

SI. No.	Programmes	Duration (Days)	Events	B6	eneficiaries	Dut of which	
INO.		(Days)		Total	SC/ST	Women	OBC
				Total	00/01	vvoilien	Minority
A.	Cooperative Education Programmes	•	•		•		
1	Secretaries/Managers training prog.	3	228	2,254	302	140	142
2	Managing Committee Members traing pro	og. 3	1,504	11,233	1,819	908	695
3	Members & Potential Members Courses	2	4,232	46,309	11,610	7,106	3,663
4	Leadership Development Programmes	3	400	5,591	1,525	1,565	607
5	Youth Camps / Meetings	1	1,653	14,236	3,939	3,194	1,035
6	Meeting on Credit /Recovery/Deposits Mobilisation	1	916	11,484	2,904	2,428	682
7	Women's Development Meeting & Forma of SHG's (Motivational Meetings)	ation 1	2,648	28,799	8,824	11,455	2,307
8	Participation & Guidance in MCM	1	1,461	4,154	2,061	1,229	239
9	Water harvesting	1	122	1,951	702	1,454	248
10	BDP Formation Prog.& Others	3	186	2,511	494	1,117	112
	Total		13,350	1,28,522	34,180	30,596	9,730
В	Social Development Programmes (conducted by Cooperative Education	n Instructo	ors)				
1	Family Welfare Education	1	1,220	10,609	3,258	3,355	1,384
2	Health Education (AIDS)	1	573	8,589	2,420	2,397	1,030
3	Adult Education	1	639	8,534	2,481	2,545	1,205
4	Social Welfare	2	900	10,595	3,492	3,216	1,156
	Total		3,332	38,327	11,651	11,513	4,775
C:	Farm Guidance Programmes						
1	Crop Development	3	279	4,737	1,159	304	352
2	Dairy/Poultry/Cattle Development	3	311	5,204	1,437	477	405
3	Horticulture Development	2	154	2,320	691	139	275
4	Plant Protection	3	209	3,471	933	204	326
5	Vegetable Development	2	191	3,020	993	243	348
6	Mktg./Grading of Agricultural Produce	3	223	3,768	933	228	249
7	Use and application of Fertiliser	1	137	2,396	451	197	202
8	Fodder Development	1	91	1,634	390	115	174
9	Farmers Meetings	1	276	4,485	1,041	394	326
10	Oil & Pulses Development	1	121	1,590	426	140	162
11	Environment Protection	1	245	4,074	872	481	336
12	Water Harvesting	2	197	3,719	773	581	553
13	Climate Change & Others(Specify)	1	430	7,796	1,694	621	1,182
	Total		2,864	48,214	11,793	4,124	4,890
							(Contd)

Annexure - IV (Contd...)

Activities-wise Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except North East & Women Projects) (Consolidated) 2017-18

SI.	Programmes	Duration	Events	s Be	neficiaries	/Participan	nts
No.		(Days)			C	ot of which	<u> </u>
				Total	SC/ST	Women	OBC Minority
D:	Other Programmes						
1	Skill Development Programme	7	111	2,328	856	1,799	335
2	Block Level Conference	1	498	8,318	3,060	3,782	1,248
3	Distt. Level Conference	1	113	529	192	83	76
4	Awareness camp for foeticide (family welfare) and others	1	4	114	49	24	8
5	LDP programmes for the members SHG's	3	7	295	114	217	42
6	Workshop for youth	1	40	1,066	388	349	137
7	Participation in exibition / Exposure visit/ District level conference	1	17	554	177	99	80
8	WDRA (Warehousing Development and Regulatory Authority) one day awareness programme	1	5	200	-	-	-
	Total		795	13,404	4,836	6,353	1,926
	Grand Total (A+B+C+D)		20,341	2,28,467	62,460	52,586	21,321

											Ann	Annexure - V
<u>-</u>	Project-wise Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2017-18) (Except Women & NE Projects)	ative Educatio	n Progra	mmes orga	anised by	Coop. Edu	. Field Pro	jects - (20	17-18) (Exc	sept Wome	en & NE Pr	ojects)
S	Name of	State		Overall Education Programmes	cation Pro	grammes		Ö	Cooperative Education Programme	Education F	Programme	0
O	Project		Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority	Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority
_	Bathinda	Punjab	797	18456	1930	2491	0	438	9792	1099	1467	ı
7	Ahmedabad	Gujarat	699	11162	3216	107	451	393	6727	1476	96	353
က	Arrah	Bihar	287	8697	2363	461	1514	353	3871	1384	157	855
4	Bagpat	UP	902	4135	392	1064	594	350	1547	130	279	162
2	Khurda	Orissa	594	3617	734	1265	322	559	2958	640	933	284
9	Cuttack	Orissa	798	2000	1288	3558	547	269	5113	807	2286	310
7	Sawai Madhopur	Rajasthan	473	6949	3229	777	490	520	2798	1451	439	139
œ	Deoria	NP	731	4384	792	1029	2100	539	2518	484	419	1057
6	Fatehpur	U.P.	895	12421	3803	1210	1090	403	9029	1529	482	452
10	Gulbarga	Karnataka	969	4102	1736	2782	627	292	3377	1412	1673	459
	(SC/ST Project)											
7	Hajipur (Vaishali)	Bihar	899	11920	1755	1411	1066	431	5478	1014	1112	525
12	Jalandhar	Punjab	517	11232	5190	2796	0	682	5376	2718	1586	ı
13	Jhansi	U.P.	787	12189	4335	1970	504	929	8007	2210	1347	321
4	Jodhpur	Rajasthan	716	8321	1779	3661	675	435	5055	1035	1907	362
15	Raiganj	West Bengal	327	3,710	1,007	3,457	1,472	114	1,228	234	1,025	457
16	Bilaspur	H.P.	999	12046	2716	2637	0	920	6966	2187	2064	•
17	Amethi	U.P.	295	5502	1790	849	1839	310	1853	693	336	603

NCUI	Annual	Report	2017-18

		Project-wise Cooperative Education Progr	ative Education	ר Prograi	mmes orga	nised by (Coop. Edu	Annexure - V (Contonumes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2017-18) (Except Women & NE Projects)	jects – (20°	17-18) (Exc	Ar Sept Wome	Annexure - V (Contd.) men & NE Projects)	/(Contd.)
•	S	Name of	State		Overall Education Programmes	cation Proς	grammes		ŏ	ooperative	Cooperative Education Programme	Programm	Ф
	Ö	Project		Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority	Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority
	18	Hamirpur	H.P.	752	5012	1704	995	159	356	2049	289	988	45
	19	Panaji	Goa	702	2661	192	2452	264	368	2171	163	1596	48
	20	Pilibhit	U.P.	780	4336	817	93	202	430	2822	533	8	471
	77	Port Blair	A & N Islands	619	3677	265	2280	1098	358	2239	186	1283	602
	23	Raghogarh	M.P.	692	2824	1766	514	237	330	1782	1101	303	129
	23	Raipur	Chhatisgarh	615	5534	983	1491	537	373	3194	716	1268	19
	24	Jammu	J&K	197	3580	1719	100	1812	0	0	0	ı	0
	22	Ratlam	MP	781	4280	1718	929	21	461	2661	1181	491	7
	26	Jhunjhunu	Rajasthan	571	10377	2416	1839	479	479	3907	952	896	372
	27	Anantnag	J&K	275	8300	2080	2813	915	351	4918	1217	1527	858
	78	Surendranagar	Gujarat	202	8298	147	0	0	418	6844	117	0	0
	83	Thiru. Puram	Kerala	637	5622	3731	2613	0	430	2468	2468	1378	0
		(SC/ST Project)											
	99	Ujjain	M.P.	685	2808	1179	610	911	390	3356	646	483	210
	31	Unnao	U.P.	269	5849	2441	1368	412	426	4732	1900	896	290
	32	Vijayawada	A. P.	534	5,866	3,247	3,317	480	323	4,006	1,810	1,875	340
		Total		20341	228467	62460	52586	21321	13350	128522	34180	30596	9730

	NCHI	Annual	Donort	2017-18
•	INCLUI	Annuai	REDOIL	////-//

										A	Annexure - V (Contd.)	/ (Contd.)
<u>-</u>	Project-wise Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2017-18) (Except Women & NE Projects)	erative Educati	on Progra	mmes orga	anised by (Coop. Edı	ı. Field Pro	jects – (20 [.]	17-18) (Exc	ept Wom	en & NE Pr	rojects)
S	Name of	State		Social Development Programmes	elopment F	Programme	Sé		Farm Guid	Farm Guidance Programmes	yrammes	
Ö.	o. Project		Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority	Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority
1	Bathinda	Punjab	223	3245	387	504	•	181	3852	239	264	•
2	Ahmedabad	Gujarat	96	1740	378	1	-	180	2695	1362	0	21
က	Arrah	Bihar	142	2130	200	0	457	191	2665	277	275	202
4	Bagpat	UP	8	903	92	148	101	4	414	118	30	4
2	Khurda	Orissa	8	631	94	304	38	0	0	0	0	0
9	Cuttack	Orissa	149	696	192	465	203	35	229	8	191	99
32	Sawai Madhopur Rajasthan	r Rajasthan	24	481	194	113	28.00	165	3150	1574	225	315.00
∞	Deoria	ПР	78	292	125	92	212	0	0	0	0	0
<u>б</u>	Fatehpur	U.P.	137	1981	818	285	218	328	3891	1171	274	321
10) Gulbarga	Karnataka	17	350	219	323	09	80	165	45	196	19
	(SC/ST Project)											
7	l Hajipur (Vaishal) Bihar) Bihar	62	1593	401	299	192	259	4849	340	0	349
12	2 Jalandhar	Punjab	139	876	753	431	1	221	4798	573	55	ı
13	3 Jhansi	U.P.	175	1338	605	422	99	184	2797	202	167	114
4	t Jodhpur	Rajasthan	135	1703	297	1319	104	141	1,416	382	352	205
15	5 Raiganj	West Bengal	213	2,482	773	2,432	1,015	0	0	0	0	0
16	3 Bilaspur	H.P.	190	1908	467	469	1	0	0	0	0	0
17	7 Amethi	U.P.	52	880	312	192	376	133	2,769	785	321	860

Note Project Project												An	Annexure - V (Contd.)	(Contd.)
Project Social Development Programmes Farm Guidance Programmes Farm Guidance Programmes Introduction of particular programmes Project Particular programmes		<u>ā</u>	roject-wise Coop	erative Educatic	งท Progra	mmes orga	ınised by (Coop. Edu	ı. Field Pro	ects – (20	17-18) (Exc	ept Wom€	en & NE Pr	ojects)
Project Project Project Propertical Planetific Project		S	Name of	State	•	Social Deve	elopment F	rogramme	Sí	,	Farm Guic	dance Prog	rammes	
14 Hamilpur H.P. 17 258 112 76 155 3311 1125 836 19 Panaji Goa 33 460 26 257 9 0 <th></th> <th>N O</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Events</th> <th>Benefi- ciaries</th> <th>SC/ST</th> <th>Women</th> <th>Minority</th> <th>Events</th> <th>Benefi- ciaries</th> <th>SC/ST</th> <th>Women</th> <th>Minority</th>		N O			Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority	Events	Benefi- ciaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority
19 Panaij Goat 33 460 26 257 9 0		18	Hamirpur	H.P.	17	258	112	92	,	155	3311	1125	836	,
21 Philibhit 1.0. 1.0. 1.0. 1.46 1.06 1.47 1.46 1.46 1.47 1.46 1.46 1.46 1.46 1.47 1.46		19	Panaji	Goa	88	460	26	257	о	0	0	0	0	0
22 Port Blair A & N Islands 30 545 106 334 214 48 411 5 131 23 Raghogarh M.P. 46 466 286 22 4 46 32 3 24 Raghogarh M.P. 70 466 284 134 69 2 4 46 32 3 25 Jammu Jakk 70 829 115 100.00 665 124 257 1485 7 4 26 Ratlam MP 74 1089 322 629 9 45 608 195 7 <t< th=""><th></th><th>72</th><th>Pilibhit</th><th>U.P.</th><th>104</th><th>1008</th><th>146</th><th>6</th><th>134</th><th>43</th><th>574</th><th>101</th><th>•</th><th>100</th></t<>		72	Pilibhit	U.P.	104	1008	146	6	134	43	574	101	•	100
28 Raghogarh M.P. 46 286 286 29 2 4 46 32 35 4 46 36 28 4 46 46 284 134 89 2 24 365 76 47 76 47 76 47 76 47		8	Port Blair	A & N Islands	30	545	106	334	214	18	411	2	131	125
24 Raipur Chhatisgarh 54 834 134 89 2 24 365 76 47 25 Jammu J&K 70 829 115 100.00 665 124 2572 1485 - 26 Ratlam MP 72 1089 332 662 9 45 608 195 76 <th></th> <th>23</th> <th>Raghogarh</th> <th>M.P.</th> <th>40</th> <th>466</th> <th>286</th> <th>29</th> <th>8</th> <th>4</th> <th>46</th> <th>32</th> <th>က</th> <th>7</th>		23	Raghogarh	M.P.	40	466	286	29	8	4	46	32	က	7
25 Jammuu Jak 70 829 115 100.00 665 124 2572 1485 - 4185 - 4185 - 4185 - 4185 - 4185 - 4185 - 4185 - 4185 - 4185 -		24	Raipur	Chhatisgarh	72	834	134	88	7	24	365	9/	47	16
Ratiam MP 74 1089 332 62 94 45 608 195 1 Jhunihunu Rajasthan 156 1226 323 164 20 176 3260 869 545 Ananthaga Jak 128 750 699 358 96 1394 113 87 Surendranaga Gujarat 187 1105 1105 750 - 0 0 0 - 0 0 - 0 0 0 - 0 <t< td=""><th>33</th><td>52</td><td>Jammu</td><td>J&K</td><td>2</td><td>829</td><td>115</td><td>100.00</td><td>999</td><td>124</td><td>2572</td><td>1485</td><td>ı</td><td>1087</td></t<>	33	52	Jammu	J&K	2	829	115	100.00	999	124	2572	1485	ı	1087
Jhunihunu Rajasthan 156 1226 323 164 20 176 3260 869 545 Anantnag J&K 228 1988 750 699 358 96 1394 113 87 Surendranagar Gujarat 153 1427 30 - - 1 27 0 - <t< td=""><th>_</th><td>56</td><td>Ratlam</td><td>MP</td><td>74</td><td>1089</td><td>332</td><td>62</td><td>0</td><td>45</td><td>809</td><td>195</td><td>_</td><td>2</td></t<>	_	56	Ratlam	MP	74	1089	332	62	0	45	809	195	_	2
Anantnag J&K 228 1988 750 699 358 96 1394 1113 87 Surendranagar Gujarat 153 1427 30 - - 1 27 0 - - 0 -		27	Jhunjhunu	Rajasthan	156	1226	323	164	20	176	3260	698	545	75
Surendranagar Gujarat 153 1427 30 - 1 27 0 - 1 27 0 - 1 2 - 1 1 - 1 - 1 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0<		78	Anantnag	J&K	228	1988	750	669	358	96	1394	113	87	875
Thiru. Puram Kerala 187 1105 1105 750 - 0<		8	Surendranagar	Gujarat	153	1427	30	ı	ı	~	27	0	ı	ı
(SC/ST Project) Ujjain M.P. 114 1361 277 0 97 62 743 158 - 5 Unnao U.P. 60 863 425 389 80 0		8	Thiru. Puram	Kerala	187	1105	1105	750	ı	0	0	0	0	ı
Ujjain M.P. 114 1361 277 0 97 62 743 158 - 5 Unnao U.P. 60 863 425 389 80 0 0 0 0 0 0 Vijayawada A. P. 98 1,099 693 746 18 765 180 124 5 Total Total 3332 38327 11651 11513 4775 2864 48214 11793 4124 489			(SC/ST Project)											
Unnao U.P. 60 863 425 389 80 0 0 0 0 Vijayawada A. P. 98 1,099 693 746 18 49 765 180 124 5 Total 3332 38327 11651 11513 4775 2864 48214 11793 4124 489		33	Ujjain	M.P.	114	1361	277	0	26	62	743	158	ı	29
Vijayawada A. P. 98 1,099 693 746 18 49 765 180 124 Total 3332 38327 11651 11513 4775 2864 48214 11793 4124		32	Unnao	U.P.	99	863	425	389	80	0	0	0	0	0
3332 38327 11651 11513 4775 2864 48214 11793 4124 .		33	Vijayawada	A. P.	86	1,099	693	746	18	49	765	180	124	52
			Total		3332	38327	11651	11513	4775	2864	48214	11793	4124	4890

		_	
NCUL	Annual	Report	2017-18

							Annexure -	Annexure - V (Contd.)
	<u> </u>	Project-wise Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Coop. Edu. Field Projects – (2017-18) (Except Women & NE Projects)	cation Programmes org	janised by Coop	ນ. Edu. Field Projec1	s – (2017-18) (Exc	ept Women & NE I	Projects)
	S	Name of	State		Other P	Other Programme		
	Ö	Project		Events	Beneficiaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority
	_	Bathinda	Punjab	55	1567	205	256	0
	7	Ahmedabad	Gujarat	0	0	0	0	0
	က	Arrah	Bihar	_	31	2	53	0
	4	Bagpat	UP	29	1271	88	209	287
	2	Khurda	Orissa	_	28	0	78	0
=	9	Cuttack	Orissa	45	847	206	847	114
34	_	Sawai Madhopur	Rajasthan	164	520	10	0	80
	∞	Deoria	UP	49	1301	183	518	831
	6	Fatehpur	U.P.	27	843	285	169	66
	9	Gulbarga SC/ST Project	Karnataka	9	210	99	06	88
	7	Hajipur (Vaishal)	Bihar	0	0	0	0	0
	7	Jalandhar	Punjab	9	182	146	124	0
	13	Jhansi	U.P.	7	47	15	8	3
	4	Jodhpur	Rajasthan	თ	297	99	83	4
	15	Raiganj	West Bengal	0	0	0	0	0
	16	Bilaspur	H.P.	9	169	80	104	0
	17	Amethi	U.P.	0	0	0	0	0
_								

Ŀ							
တ	Name of	State		Other P	Other Programme		
No.	. Project		Events	Beneficiaries	SC/ST	Women	Minority
18	Hamirpur	H.P.	24	298	82	197	0
19	Panaji	Goa	_	30	ю	56	0
72	Pilibhit	U.P.	က	06	37	20	0
23	Port Blair	A & N Islands	13	482	O	393	157
23	Raghogarh	M.	35	530	347	179	8
24	Raipur	Chhatisgarh	2	141	25	87	0
22	Jammu	J&K	က	179	119	0	09
78	Ratlam	MP	_	22	10	22	0
27	Jhunjhunu	Rajasthan	46	810	272	243	33
78	Anantnag	J&K	0	0	0	0	0
83	Surendranagar	Gujarat	0	0	0	0	0
ଚ	Thiru. Puram (SC/ST Proj)	Kerala	130	1899	1859	1485	0
34	Ujjain	A.	6	348	86	127	45
32	Unnao	U.P.	11	255	116	88	42
33	Vijayawada	A. P.	64	938	564	572	20
	Total		795	13404	4836	6353	1926

Annexure - VI

NCUI Cooperative Edcuation Field Projects (UDS) Highlights of various Programmes an other activities of achievements (Consolidated) for the April, 2017 to March, 2018 (except Women & NE Projects)

S.No	o. Name of Programmes	No.
1.	New Societies registered during the year	21
2.	Societies Revitalised	125
3.	New Members enrolled	13267
4.	(i) BDP Formulated	605
	(ii) BDP Implemented	447
5.	Kisan Cards arranged to farmers	91717
6.	No. of persons benefited under Income Generating	15029
7.	(i) No. of SHGs formed	119
	(ii) No. of Membership	1492
8.	No. of SHGs converted into Cooperatives	17
9.	Plantation of Trees	89330
10.	Soil Sample tested	2596
11.	Seed sample tested	782
12.	(i) Farmers Clubs promoted under VVV Scheme of Nabard	221
	(ii) Membership	1737
13.	(i) Plot Demonstration	62
	(ii) Farmers benefitted	1054
14.	(i) Seminars/Conferences/Workshops	366
	(ii) Participants	11305
15.	No. of Persons who have learnt to write their names	5852
16.	(i) Vermi Culture Pits & Water harvesting programme	79
	(ii) Beneficiaties	603
17.	(i) Skill Development Programmes	108
	(ii) Participants	2245
18.	(i) Workshop for youth	40
	(ii) Participants	1066
19.	(i) Leadership Development Programmes	357
	(ii) Participants	5011

Annexure - VII		crease	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	(-/+)	3.89 424.25	57.35 14.7	51.67 6.35 z	77.39 0.98	105.9 0.8 nuna	7,512 138.9 Ret	2210 258 z	519.5 3.31 2.017	18 =	58.15 1.5	5.78 176.98	120.25 -50.1	67.96 0.83	3.05 116.62	0	2706.98 113.76	3595.6 6.2	32,522 -
	ects)	Loaning increase	Amount (F	2016-17 2017-18	7599.64 8023.89	42.65 57	45.32 51	76.41 77	105.1	7373.46 7,	1952 2	516.19 51		56.65 58	1769.8 1946.78	170.35 120	67.13 67	5351.43 5468.05	ı	2593.22 2706	3589.4 359	31,309 32,
	en & NE Proje 17-18	9	(hs)	(-/+)	23.67	1.28	2	0.086	4.1	3932.7	18.37	4.4	0	0.05	3.34	8.5	1.01	23.3	0	5.14	1.81	
	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Share capital increase	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2017-18	1078.82	3.85	52	25.156	119.5	390	250.11	280.2		235.9	36.76	84.75	78.81	280.84	1	348.13	261.95	3,530
	ield Projects (vements durii	Share	Am	2016-17	1055.15	2.57	20	25.07	115.4		231.74	275.8		235.85	33.42	76.25	77.8	257.54	ı	342.99	260.14	3,430
	Education Fi :t-wise Achiev	New	enrolled		88	468	299	737	276	539	980	527		3017	310	154	182	287	ı	400	338	8,782
	l Cooperative Projec	Societies	revitalised		1	2	က	7	•	•	•	•		•	•	2	2	2	1		2	24
	NCN	New	societies registered	year 2017-18	1	1	ဇ	ı	ı		4	2	1	1	4		ဇ	1	1		•	16
		Projects			Ahmedabad	Amethi	Anantnag	Arrah	Bagpat	Bathinda	Bilaspur	Cuttack	Deoria	Fatehpur	Gulbarga	Hamirpur	Hazipur	Jalandhar	Jammu	Jhansi	JhunjhunU	Total

S.S.

										Annexure - VII (Contd.)	VII (Contd.)
			NCO	Cooperative Projec	Education F t-wise Achie	ield Projects vements duri	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	en & NE Pro _. 17-18	jects)		
v) Z	SI. Projects		New	Societies	New	Share	Share capital increase	se	Lo	Loaning increase	Φ
		regis	registered during the		enrolled	An	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	khs)	Ar	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	lakhs)
		year 2017-18	17-18			2016-17	2017-18	(-/+)	2016-17	2017-18	(-/+)
~	18 Jodhpur				178	808.76	818.78	10.02	698	868	29
<u>~</u>	19 Khurda		0	2	112	197.25	199.82	2.57	939.4	945.6	6.2
20	:0 Pilibhit				29	200.81	204.56	3.75	1417.39	1423.35	5.96
7	:1 Panaji Goa	эа			909	15	16.5	1.5	510	260	20
22	2 Port Blair	_	က	~	62	9	6.02	0.02	2.68	2.7	0.02
₹ 38	3 Raghogarh	£	•	ı	85	44.68	48.28	3.6	94.27	•	-94.27
24	4 Raiganj		•	ı	171	63.9	63.14	-0.76	300	310	10
N	25 Raipur		٠	1	1156	476	516	40	464	491	27
۲	26 Ratlam		0	91	169	813.75	869.12	55.37	10822.1	9184.79	-1637.31
27	7 Sawai Madhopur	adhopur	•	•	164	251.37	279.69	28.32	3008.89	3036.06	90.17
8	8 Surendra Nagar	Nagar			72	434.03	438.16	4.13	4615.4	4695.04	79.64
73	•	Thiruvananthapuram	•	2	273	169.2	190.2	77	77	348	327
8	0 Ujjain		•		839	695.77	714.97	19.2	12866	13088.75	222.75
33	11 Unnao		•		214	42	38	4	376	315.65	-60.35
32	2 Vijayawada	da	7	7	318	135.23	205.96	70.73	1235.21	1870.98	635.77
	Sub-total - 2	11-2	2	101	4,485	4,354	4,609				•
	Sub-total - 1	ıl - 1	16	24	8,782	3,430	3,530	•	31,309	32,522	•
	Grand Total	otal	21	125	13,267	7,784	8,139	•	31,3	32,522	ı

NCUI Annual Repo	ort 2017-18

										Annexu	re - VII (Annexure - VII (Contd)
	NCOI	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Education: t-wise Ac	on Field Pro chievement	arative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	pt Women year 2017	& NE F -18	Projects	<u> </u>			
Projects	Reco	Recovery increase			Deposit Increase	ase	ž	umber o	Number of societies in	s in	B	вор
	Amoun	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	()	Am	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	lakhs)	Profit	Loss	Self- reliant	Not self-	Formu- lated	Imple- mented
	2016-17	2017-18	(+/-)	2016-17	2017-18	(-/+)				reliant		
Ahmedabad	6615.12	6879.78	264.66	94.92	105.18	10.26	27	3				
Amethi	7.13	15.1	7.97	130.1	109.25	-20.85	_	12				
Anantnag	44.957	50.097	5.14	14.494	16.674	2.18	32	4			23	27
Arrah	100.56	101.47	0.91	105.85	107.02	1.17	19	_			20	10
Bagpat	93.32	92.07	-1.25	46.27	48.62	2.35					~	_
Bathinda	7,341	7,478	137.19		87	88	1.92	30			30	30
Bilaspur	1546.44	2000.95	454.51	10524.44	11591.49	1067.05	30				8	99
Cuttack	411.35	414.25	2.9	526.82	528.34	1.52	10	10			20	8
Deoria			0			0	9	2			225	88
Fatehpur	65.25	67.3	2.05	27.75	30.75	3	4	_			2	2
Gulbarga	1703.98	1874.37	170.39	63.48	69.82	6.34	∞	7				2
Hamirpur	160.5	138.8	-21.7	160.65	191.4	30.75	18	7			10	10
Hazipur	89.62	90.74	1.12	24.66	28.35	3.69	22	80			20	18
Jalandhar	5066.02	5141.56	75.54	943.05	1007.03	63.98	20				20	20
Jammu			0			0	4	73			25	25
Jhansi	983.65	987.95	4.3	164.82	167.08	2.26	19	က			19	Ξ
Jhunjhunu	3478.24	3404.06	-74.18	1226.15	1284.66	58.51	20				20	20
Total	27,707	28,737		14,140	15,375		270	72	'	•	474	320

NCUI Annua	Report	2017-18
------------	--------	---------

			i		ī]			
Annexure - VII (Contd)		вор	Imple- mented			10	16		17	10	_			10		24		19	20	127	320	447
ıre - VII (B	Formu- lated			10	16	2	17	10	3			10		24		19	20	131	474	605
Annexu		s in	Not self-	reliant																•	•	•
	<u> </u>	Number of societies in	Self- reliant																	•	•	•
	Projects	umber o	Loss			2		4	7	4	9	2			2	9	9	2		•	72	72
	& NE	Ž	Profit		20	2	16	9	9	9	7	15	20	10	22	4	22	4	20	•	270	270
	ot Women year 2017	ase	akhs)	(-/+)	4	8.9	1.33	45	202	0.92	0.04	373	-632.77	69.14	0.11	31	22.73	φ	128.2	-		
	erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Deposit Increase	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2017-18	88.76	736.4	105.14	220	217.5	29.07	771.09	483	1051.63	728.96	11.4	336	865.25	8	731.99	•	15,375	15,375
	n Field Pro hievements	Ω	Amc	2016-17	84.76	727.5	103.81	525	15.5	28.15	771.05	110	1684.4	659.82	11.29	305	842.52	42	603.79	•	14,140	14,140
	Educatio		(9	(-/+)	339.88	13.15	2.08	20	~	0.73	0.15	-16	-588.71	113.45	47.72	16.1	371.66	77.34	-103.13	•		
	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Recovery increase	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2017-18	7005.1	965.45	1115.92	310	2.5	22.27	291.16	417	8167.74	2829.17	3646.4	70.9	10884.64	307.65	948.5	36,984	28,737	65,721
	NCOL	Recov	Amoun	2016-17	6665.22	952.3	1113.84	290	1.5	21.54	291.01	433	8756.45	2715.72	3598.68	54.8	10512.98	230.31	1051.63	36,689	27,707	64,396
		Projects		<u> </u>	Jodhpur	Khurda	Pilibhit	Panaji	Port Blair	Raghogarh	Raiganj	Raipur	Ratlam	Sawai Madhopur	Surendra Nagar	Thiruvananthapuram	Ujjain	Unnao	Vijayawada	Sub-total - 2	Sub-total - 1	Grand Total
		S. Z	<u>.</u>		18	19	77	23	23	24	22	26	27	28	29	30	31	32	33			

		1		1																	
	ting	e year 18	Benifi- ciaries	147			32		2			2	100			106					513
	er Harvesi	During the 2017-	Ö	5			7		9			∞	2			25					26
	Pits & Wat Programme	Partici- pants								80							18				26
	Vermi Culture	Since	to March, 2017							80							2				10
r 2017-18	der	the 17-18	Member- ship	30		4	02		100		45	20	45	975		192	103	10			1,634
าg the yeaı	omoted und of NABARD	During year 201	ON	7		2	4		9		လ	~	ဇ	1		7	2	~			118
ements durin	ners clubs pro	eption to , 2017	Member- ship			2367	82	171	2,531	33	366	20	30	4193		132	86	09	122		10,205
rise Achieve	Farn V	Since inc March	No. (Rs.)			275	4	7	204	ဇ	28	~	2	282		80	2	9	10		839
Project-w	of persons enefited	er income . scheme	Ave. income	4984	8000	1300	1400	1000	2,250	25000	3000		217	2600	3000	1500	20000	3500	3600	4570	1,15,921
	No.0N	nnd gen	No.	301	148	138	866	15	756	1240	2000		15	311	310	46	227	80	80	145	6,738
	Kisan cards	arranged to farmers		2085		9/	972	290	3,700	1023	427	105	414	11188	280	422	3190	4	296	11782	37,055
	Projects			Ahmedabad	Amethi	Anantnag	Arrah	Bagpat	Bathinda	Bilaspur	Cuttack	Deoria	Fatehpur	Gulbarga	Hamirpur	Hazipur	Jalandhar	Jammu	Jhansi	Jhunjhunu	Total
	S. S.			_	7	3	4	2	9	7	80	6	10	7	12	13	4	15	16	17	
	Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Projects Kisan No. of p	Projects Kisan No. of persons Farmers clubs promoted under arranged under income to farmers gen. scheme gen. scheme gen. scheme Since inception to March, 2017 vear 2017-18	Projects Kisan No. of persons Farmers clubs promoted under cards benefited under income to farmers No. Ave. No. Member- No. Member- No. Member- No. Member- to March, 2017 ship ship 2017 Programme Participation to March, 2017 sear 2017-18 inception Pants Programme Participation Pants Programme Programm	Projects Kisan No. of persons arranged aunder income to farmers always and the deabad 2085 301 4984 and a cards arranged	Projects Kisan No. of persons	Projects - Misan Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Vermi Culture Pits & Water Harvestian Programme Projects Kisan cards arranged auranged under income to farmers No. demonstrated auranged auranged gen. scheme Since inception to year 2017-18 During the inception pants income ship Programme During the inception pants inception pants ship Programme During the inception pants ship Participulation pants ship During the inception pants ship Participulation pants ship During the inception pants ship Participulation pants ship Participulation pants ship During the inception pants ship Participulation pants ship	Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Projects Kisan cards arranged arranged ander income gen. scheme No. 4 Mem. Farmers clubs promoted under income of NABARD Programme programme programme of NABARD Vermi Culture Pits & Water Harvestiff Programme programme programme programme of NABARD Projects Programme programm	Projects Froject-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Projects Kisan cards No. fpersons arranged Farmer sclubs promoted under income of NABARD Programme Programme 10 farmers gen. scheme gen. sch	Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Projects Kisan cards arranged to farmer income to farmer scheme of Namerial arranged arranged arranged to farmers No. of persons arranged arranged arranged arranged to farmer income income income with the part of the part o	Projects Kisan Cards Lincome Lincome	Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Projects wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Project Name of NaBARD Permetrial of Name of	Projects with the project of participation of persons Facility And Achievements during the year 2017-18 Project Since inception of panis arranged auranged outler income an ananged of panis arranged auranged (Rs.) Farmers clubs promoted under Pits & Water Harvestill Programme auranged (Rs.) Awenther Harvestill Programme auranged (Rs.) Awater Harvestill Programme auranged (Rs.)	Project wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Projects Kisan cards arranged arran	Projects Kisan cards arranged by cards a cards and cards and cards a cards arranged by cards in cards a cards a cards arranged by cards in cards a cards a cards arranged by cards in cards a cards arranged by cards in cards arranged by cards arranged by cards in cards arranged by cards arra	Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18 Projects Farmers clubs promoted under larvestit programmes Projects Projects Achievements during the year 2017-18 Vermi Culture Pits & Water Harvestit programmes Projects Kisan arranged ar	Projects Kisan No. of persons Farmers clubs promoted under No. of persons Ave. Ave.	Projects with event and the plant of living the lear of living the lear of living the learn of living the late of late of living the late of living the late of living the late of late	Projects Kisan No. of persons Farmers cluts promoted under cards Programmer arranged under leader cards Programmer arranged under leader leader cards Programmer leader le	Froject+wise Achievements aturing the year 2017-18 Farmers clubs promoted under a random lines in the part of	Projects Kisan No.1 persons Farmers clutos promoted under coards Annectabed Cards Cards Annectabed Cards Cards Cards Annectabed Cards Cards Cards Annectabed Cards Card

Contd.)	ing	year 8	Benifi- ciaries					78	10	2									06	513	603
Annexure - VII (Contd.)	er Harvest	During the year 2017-18	Ö					2	10	∞									23	99	79
Annex	Pits & Wate	Partici- pants	-																•	26	26
Projects)	Vermi Culture Pits & Water Harvesting Programme	Since	to March, 2017																•	10	10
omen & NE F r 2017-18		the 17-18	Member- ship					15	20				89						103	1,634	1,737
Except Wo	omoted und of NABARD	During the vear 2017-18	No.					_	~				4					26	103	118	221
erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Farmers clubs promoted under VVV scheme of NABARD	Since inception to March, 2017	Member- ship					318	360	45			441					354	1,518	10,205	11,723
ucation Fie	Farn	Since inception March, 2017	No. (Rs.)					17	18	ဇ			30					24	92	839	931
NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	No. of persons benefited	under income gen. scheme	Ave. income		3000	4000	2000	10000	1200	1000	12000	2500	3500		3500	009	0009	1500	55,800	1,15,921	1,71,721
NCUI Co	No.	oun ger	Ö		42	23	5125	335	48	192	က	22	461		831	82	368	723	8,291	6,738	15,029
	Kisan cards	arranged to farmers		45	112	391	0989	242	22	282	18972	168	pur 769	ar 188	puram	25412	214	963	54,662	37,055	91,717
	Projects			Jodhpur	Khurda	Pilibhit	Panaji	Port Blair	Raghogarh	Raiganj	Raipur	Ratlam	Sawai Madhopur	Surendra Nagar	Thiruvananthapuram	Ujjain	Unnao	Vijayawada	Sub-total - 2	Sub-total - 1	Grand Total
	n. S			18	19	77	23	23	24	22	56	27	78	23	8	3	32	33			

ontd.)	eeting Id	Parti-	cipant			4		17	2		16		7			10		2					2
9 - VII (C	PCC meeting held	No.				~		7	_		7		_			_		_					6
Annexure - VII (Contd.)	Study visit for members of MC	Persons	peneti-	ted			125	25	52		93	225	က	40	40	40	25	48	305	39			1,060
(s	Stu for n	No.					6	2	6		က	77	_	~	~	_	7	က	7	~			65
VE Project	Farmers provided plants etc. (plantation of trees)	Persons	benefi-	ted			195	34	40	10	268	1128	20			48	130	250	25	13	09	93	2,344
Vomen & N ar 2017-18	Farmers plant (plantatio	No.of	trees				320	391	1445	150	24,350	20700	2000			268	260	4350	20100	186	1195	2061	78,076
xcept W			Persons	pene-	fited		135	45	124		370				20		215	125	165	18			1,247
Projects (E	Soil/seed samples treatment	Seed	No. of	samples			7	16	85		370				15		14	125	25	18			675
on Field F	Soil/seec treat		Persons	-eue-	fited	66	435	49	72		338	125		150	117		225	315	115	72	93		2,154
NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18		Soil	No. of	samples		340	15	20	43		338	164		150	92		280	315	302	72	93		2,176
operativ	rations	Average	annnal	income		2000			2750		3,250		2500	3500	3000	2430	0009	2000	2000	3500	4000	8000	47,930
NCUI Co	Plot Demonstration	Farmers	benefi-	ted		~			1		25		200	10	80	25	24	160	10		7	80	622
	NG	No	of	plots					7		9		2	2	7	10	က	9	9		7	_	48
	Project					Ahmedabad	Amethi	Anantnag	Arrah	Bagpat	Bathinda	Bilaspur	Cuttack	Deoria	Fatehpur	Gulbarga	Hamirpur	Hazipur	Jalandhar	Jammu	Jhansi	Jhunjhunu	Total
	S. No.					_	2	3	4	2	9	7	8	6	10	7	12	13	4	15	16	17	

<u> </u>	б	进																		•	<u>2</u>	2
Contd	PCC meeting held	Parti-	cipant																		U	9
) IIN - e	PCC r	Š																		'	6	6
Annexure - VII (Contd.)	Study visit for members of MC	Persons	benefi-	ted	25				4	12				8	4				09	189	1,060	1,249
(s	Stuc for m of	No.			-				_	~				_	_				4	6	65	74
NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Farmers provided plants etc.	Persons	benefi-	ted	75		8	3100	45	20	40			69	က			215	355	3,956	2,344	6,300
erative Education Field Projects (Except Women & N Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	Farmers provided plants etc. (plantation of trees)	No. of	trees		245		191	0009	750	450	114	9/		2678	10			275	165	11,254	78,076	89,330
xcept W gthe yea			Persons	bene- fited						24				42	4					20	1,247	1,317
rojects (E nts during	Soil/seed samples treatment	Seed	No. of	sambles						~				92	7					107	675	782
on Field P chieveme	Soil/seec treat		Persons	bene- fited	30		26			27	16			88	3				185	375	2,154	2,529
e Educati ct-wise A		Soil	No. of	samples	85		26			~	16			194	10				88	420	2,176	2,596
ooperativ Proje	trations	Average	annnal	income					8000	200	1000			12500						22,000	47,930	69,930
NCUI C	Plot Demonstration	Farmers	benefi-	ted	83				27	270				72						432	622	1,054
	PIC	ON	o	plots	2				7	6	0			~		am				14	84	62
	Project				Jodhpur	Khurda	Pilibhit	Panaji	Port Blair	Raghogarh	Raiganj	Raipur	Ratlam	Sawai Madhopur	Surendra Nagar	Thiruvananthapuram	Ujjain	Unnao	Vijayawada	Sub-total - 2	Sub-total - 1	Grand Total
	SI. No.				18	19	73	23	23	24	22	56	27	78	53	99	34	32	33			

NCUI Annual	Report	2017-18
-------------	--------	---------

	NCU	Coop	erative E Project	ducation I	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	ts (Exce	e year 2017	& NE Pr	ojects)	Ann	Annexure - VII (Contd.)	(Contd.)
n. S	Projects	Serr confer works	Seminar/ conferences/ workshops	Training programisec organisec fields (orincome gincome gactive	Training programmes organised in various fields (other than income generation activities	Guic MC n	Guidance in MC meetings	Gui.	Guidance in AGM	Documentary film show arrangement	entary show ement	No. of persons who have learn to write
		S.	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	Ŏ Ö	Parti- cipant	N _O	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	their
_	Ahmedabad	-	810	9	291	40	356	10	932	-	12	37
7	Amethi	2	112	9	155	2	75	9	145	8	185	165
က	Anantnag			2	28	8	757	4	181	7	17	285
4	Arrah	7	99	18	372	92	815	10	2960			947
2	Bagpat	2	215	က	110	16	193			က	46	196
9	Bathinda	48	1,273	က	91	06	720	30	4,180			740
7	Bilaspur	7	69	06	1908	120	838	13	1572			72
∞	Cuttack			2	300	104	863	10	1081	7	250	30
6	Deoria	4	320	25	415	22	316	က	675			148
10	Fatehpur	_	160	2	25	2	41					207
7	Gulbarga			∞	864	96	1152	4	3733	7	80	135
12	Hamirpur	က	84	7	4	4	209	4	468			
13	Hazipur	34	544	7	31	99	929			က	110	445
14	Jalandhar	30	533	က	82	21	435	16	4483	7	135	26
15	Jammu	2	92									42
16	Jhansi			335	5107	88	889			19	292	860
17	Jhunjhunu	2	42	2	40	62	280	20	7408	2	26	380
	Total	136	4,353	518	9,916	985	8,694	140	30,818	44	1,183	4,715

NCUI	Annual	Report	2017-18
------	--------	--------	---------

	NCO	Coop	erative E Project-	ducation I	NCUI Cooperative Education Field Projects (Except Women & NE Projects) Project-wise Achievements during the year 2017-18	ts (Exce	e year 2017.	& NE Pro	ojects)	Anne	Annexure - VII (Contd.)	(Contd.)
ਲ <mark>ਤ</mark>	Projects	Sen confei work	Seminar/ conferences/ workshops	Training programisec fields (or income gactive active acti	Training programmes organised in various fields (other than income generation activities	Guio MC n	Guidance in MC meetings	Guir in /	Guidance in AGM	Documentary film show arrangement		No. of persons who have learn to write
		Š	Parti- cipant	ÖZ	Parti- cipant	Ö.	Parti- cipant	N _O	Parti- cipant	Ö	Parti- cipant	their
18	Jodhpur			267	2824							18
19	Khurda			2	81	18	197	∞	829			42
72	Pilibhit	_	40			83	315	4	395			66
23	Panaji					_	7	_	29			
23	Port Blair	7	3278	7	364	8	315	∞	1450			69
24	Raghogarh	23	403	2	92	84	369	9	72	9	180	62
22	Raiganj					15	8					27
79	Raipur	22	1045	7	20	72	475	20	2777			167
27	Ratlam	7	47	49	749	Ξ	49	4	418			40
78	Sawai Madhopur			∞	127	79	260	10	3918	ဇ	22	102
53	Surendra Nagar			502	8298			12	853	21	278	26
30	Thiruvananthapuram	122	1,637	2	117	99	213	7	1315			5
33	Ujjain	10	379	က	88	33	300	15	735			33
32	Unnao			2	06	8	496	19	12323			164
33	Vijayawada	4	123	25	375	22	741	10	11528			236
	Sub-total - 2	230	6,952	884	13,258	435	3,822	124	36,503	30	515	1,137
	Sub-total - 1	136	4,353	518	9,916	985	8,694	140	30,818	44	1,183	4,715
	Grand Total	366	11,305	1,402	23,174	1,420	12,516	264	67,321	74	1,698	5,852

NCUI Annual Report 2017-18

	Project-wise Progress of Self-Help Groups organised by CEI/LCEI as on 31⁴ March 2018 (Except Women & NE Projects)	A Plot of Colf. II.	olo Gronne	organised k	TO 1/130 /vc	2 24 20 00	1 2018 /E	- Women	NE Droiog	(5)
				3 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	y CLITECE	as on ST " IV	Iai Cii 20 Io (E	-veept wollen	& ME FIDJO	(
S _.	Project	Since i upto Me	Since inception upto March 2018	During April 2017 to March 2018	pril 2017 :h 2018	No. of beneficiaries April 2017	Approx. income earned per member in	SHG converted into cooperative	Thrift collected during the year	Loan disbursed during the year
		No.	Mem.	No.	Mem.	2018	the year	year 2017-18	(in Rs.)	(in Rs.)
_	Ahmedabad	4	63	3	40	25	0	0	42400	0
7	Amethi	7	121	7	132	128	00009	2	38750	48465
က	Anantnag	53	300	2	20	10	17000		0099	6200
4	Arrah	4	52	4	20	151	14000	0	1268882	384800
2	Bagpat	37	390	ო	30	20	1000		0006	40000
9	Bathinda	98	1173	9	92	98	2250		13300	28700
7	Bilaspur	13	130			52	20000		168000	125000
8	Cuttack	141	1858	2	09	200	16000	2	304520	2248500
6	Deoria	4	48							
10	Fatehpur	35	515	4	09	16	3000		700000	
7	Gulbarga	250	3885		165	468	35000	10	218000	5250000
12	Hamirpur	15	205	2	23	96	30000		103800	63000
13	Hazipur	20	239	7	25	161	18000		09906	87980
4	Jalandhar	30	384	4	20	227	20000		374000	290000
15	Jammu									
16	Jhansi	6/	876	9	62	62	30000		409490	438000
17	Jhunjhunu	27	415	2	80	805	16000		132650	1216000
	Total	781	10.654	89	862	2005	3 12 250	7	42 40 052	1 02 26 GAE

NIOLII	A	D	0047 40
NGJJ	Annual	Report	2017-18

	Annexure - VIII Project-wise Progress of Self-Help Groups organised by CEI/LCEI as on 31 st March 2018 (Except Women & NE Projects)	S of Self-He	lp Groups o	organised k	y CEI/LCEI	as on 31st M	arch 2018 (E	xcept Women	Annexure - VIII (Contd.) & NE Projects)	/III (Contd.)
ng S O	Project	Since i upto Me	Since inception upto March 2018	During A to Marc	During April 2017 to March 2018	No. of bene- ficiaries April 2017	Approx. income earned per member in	SHG converted into cooperative	Thrift collected during the year	Loan disbursed during the
		No.	Mem.	No.	Mem.	to March, 2018	(Ks.) during the year	during the year 2017-18	2017-18 (in Rs.)	2017-18 (in Rs.)
18	Jodhpur	14	140	2	20				14000	
19	Khurda	39	412	9	72	09	25000		00009	5224000
20	Pilibhit			4	43	23	4000		35000	20500
7	Panaji Goa	16	236	2	24	263	35000		540900	1881000
8	Port Blair	22	632	4	22	215	75000	_	583000	1685000
23	Raghogarh									
54	Raiganj									
22	Raipur	31	354	4	40	9	3235		248920	10000
56	Ratlam	47	522	က	32	29	2500		51600	36500
27	Sawai Madhopur	14	245	7	40	78	3500		573750	352400
78	Surendra Nagar	9	78	9	78				58150	
53	Thiruvananthapuram	88	1261	2	70	1006	3500		269695	330350
30	Ujjain									
33	Unnao	62	782	4	29	368	0009		210269	1315000
32	Vijayawada	141	1417	6	92	983	30000	2	414860	8148000
	Sub-total - 2	510	6,079	51	630	3,127	1,87,735	3	30,60,144	1,90,02,750
	Sub-total - 1	781	10,654	89	862	2,995	3,12,250	14	42,40,052	1,02,26,645
	Grand Total	1,291	16,733	119	1,492	6,122	4,99,985	17	73,00,196	2,92,29,395

×			. <u>.</u> . 75	4	_	_		•				
ure - L		ərs	Partici- pant	2674	2767	5441						
Annexure - IX		Others	Classes	234	266	200						
		Income generation	Partici- pant	11873	5969	17842						
	rojects	lno gene	Classes	1006	393	1399						
	UI UDS P	levelop. mmes/ V/Aids	Partici- pant	11181	3793	14904						
	nder NC	Social develop. programmes/ F.W./HIV/Aids	Classes	867	291	1158						
	7- 2018 u	ult acy	Partici- pant	9166	3348	12514	9699	85973				
	ing 2017	Adult literacy	Classes	753	333	1086		∞				
	ated du	G ngs	Partici- pant	6032	1992	8024						
	en Educ	SHG meetings	Classes	450	167	617	classe					
	of Wom	ıtional ings	Partici- pant	10932	4034	14966	tal No. of					
	e details	Motivational meetings	Classes	662	283	1082	s, the to	-				
	Activities-wise details of Women Educated during 2017- 2018 under NCUI UDS Projects	Cooperative	Partici- pant	6334	5948	12282	lactivitie	rticipated				
	Activ	Coope	Classes	571	282	853	ucting all	nbers paı				
	,	Activity		39 UDS Projects	4 Exclusive Women Projects	Total	For conducting all activities, the total No. of classes held	Total Members participated				

	NCUI's	NCUI's Women (Pro Target of	Cooperat ogress of Self Help	ive Educat Self Help Groups de	ion Fiel Groups uring th	d Projects during the	Cooperative Education Field Projects Women Self Help Groups ogress of Self Help Groups during the 2017 - 2018 Self Help Groups during the years per LM/LCEI per year	olf Help Gro 8 per year	sdno		Anne	Annexure - X
Project Name	SHGs as on 31.03.2018	Member- ship of SHGs as on 31.3.2018	SHGs formed during 1.4.2017 to 31.3.2018	Member- ship of SHGs 1.4.2017 to 31.3.2018	Total SHGs as on March 2018	Total Member- ship as on March 2018	Thrift collected during the year	Loan disburse- ment during ther year	No. of benefi- ciaries	Average income earned per members	SHGs conver- ted into upto March 2018	No. of persons who have write to learn their names
Abohar(punjab)*	ON.	LM			0	0	1					
Ahmedabad (Gujarat)	52	740	2	75	22	815	536260	213000	365	19200	0	91
Aizwal (Mizoram)	22	603	7	06	64	693	345920	595000	603	8000	0	100
Anantag(J&K)*	N _o	LM			0	0						
Arrah (Bihar)*	N _o	LM			0	0						
Baghpat	51	218	5	52	99	630	47440	22000	26	7600	0	196
Bilaspur	42	444	2	54	47	498	103800	302000	12	2000	0	15
Cuttuck (Orissa)	26	1067	9	83	103	1150	447830	845920	32	1500	_	58
Deoria*	No	LM			0	0						
Fatehpur	73	1095	9	06	79	1185	1175000	425000	20	18000	0	10
Goa	28	457	4	55	32	512	1092900	4203200	134	20000		0
Gulbarga (Karn.)	39	419	9	71	45	490	384000	924000	89	29000	0	0
Hazipur, Vaishali (Bihar)*	ON	LM			0	0						
Jalandhar	40	602	5	93	45	695	518000	267000	352	18000	0	20
Jammu	78	750	9	09	84	810	3600	3000	09	15000	0	320
Jhansi	84	970	5	51	88	1021	16500	235000	51	30000	0	137
Jhunjhunu(Raj.)	45	745	9	119	51	864	469250	2712500	1242	18500	0	29
Jodhpur((Rajasthan)*	No	LM			0	0						
Jorhat	23	270	2	24	25	294	253620	323700	270	15300	_	104
Khurda	98	866	7	79	93	1077	859000	1125000	81	25000	0	100
Kohima	94	1254	9	06	100	1344	91165	80000	450	12500	က	89
Morigaon (Assam)	63	200	6	92	72	798	355360	523700	1154	6200	27	029
Nahan (Hamirpur)*	0	LM			0	0						

					<u> </u>	ICU	l An	nua	l Re	por	t 20	17-1	18 •				
Annexure - X (Contd.)		No. of persons who have write to learn their	0	117	81	119	305		0		332	139	106		73		
xure - X		SHGs conver- ted into upto March 2018	0	7	7	10	0		16		0	0	7		0		
Anne		Average income earned per members	38000	120000	40000	0009	3500		2000		0	25000	10000		7000		
	sdno	No. of benefi- ciaries	29	1035	1378	349	559		81		0	468	128		159		
	ation Field Projects Women Self Help Groups p Groups during the 2017 - 2018 during the years	Loan disburse- ment during ther year	90,000	33,50,000	478650	2056000	1500000		00086		0	1517500	16300		1620000		
	ation Field Projects Women Self Help G p Groups during the 2017 - 2018 during the years per LM/LCEI per year	Thrift collected during the year	20320	24100	216000	574180	150000		134000		20600	247470	23100		405500		
	d Projects during the e years	Total Member- ship as on March 2018	1252	5494	1498	1162	999	0	926	0	126	1057	280	0	302	0	0
	ation Fiel Groups Juring th	Total SHGs as on March 2018	104	492	110	115	29	0	92	0	10	77	20	0	28	0	0
1	, <u> </u>																

										Annex	ure - X (Annexure - X (Contd.)
	NCUI's	s Women (Pro	Cooperat ogress o Self Help	Cooperative Education Field Projec ogress of Self Help Groups during t Self Help Groups during the years	tion Fiel Groups Iuring th	d Project during the	NCUI's Women Cooperative Education Field Projects Women Self Help Groups Progress of Self Help Groups during the 2017 - 2018 Target of Self Help Groups during the years per LM/LCEI per year	elf Help Gro 18 per year	sdno			
Project Name	SHGs as on 31.03.2018	Member- ship of SHGs as on 31.3.2018	SHGs formed during 1.4.2017 to 31.3.2018	Member- ship of SHGs 1.4.2017 to 31.3.2018	Total SHGs as on March 2018	Total Member- ship as on March 2018	Thrift collected during the year	Loan disburse- ment during ther year	No. of benefi- ciaries	Average income earned per members	SHGs conver- ted into upto March 2018	No. of persons who have write to learn their
Pilibhit (UP)	66	1205	5	47	104	1252	20320	000'06	29	38000	0	0
Port Blair (A &N) Islands	485	5413	7	81	492	5494	24100	33,50,000	1035	120000	1	117
Raghogarh (Madhya Pradesh)	102	1378	80	120	110	1498	216000	478650	1378	40000	7	81
Raiganj (West Bengal)	104	1059	1	103	115	1162	574180	2056000	349	0009	10	119
Ratlam	53	009	9	99	29	999	150000	1500000	559	3500	0	305
Sawai Madhopur (Raj.)*	NO	LM			0	0						
Shilong(Meghalaya)	98	866	9	09	92	926	134000	00086	81	2000	16	0
Sultanpur (Raj.)*	N	M			0	0						
Surrendra Nagar	5	63	5	63	10	126	20600	0	0	0	0	332
Thiruvanthapuram (Kerala)	71	978	9	79	77	1057	247470	1517500	468	25000	0	139
Thoubal (Manipur)	18	260	2	20	20	280	23100	16300	128	10000	7	106
Ujjain (Madhya Pradesh)*	NO	M			0	0						
Unnao (UP)	23	247	5	25	28	302	405500	1620000	159	7000	0	73
Vijawada(AP)*	ON	M			0	0						
West Sikkim (Sikkim)*	NO	LM			0	0						
Total	1998	23767	151	1871	2149	25638	8514915	23826470	9144	560300	73	3200
Women Projects												
Aska	581	3629	85	456	999	4085	631969	2965000	456	20000	510	865
Bhopal	118	2418	25	254	143	2672	4166292	66582400	2000	20000	0	514
Manipur	181	2373	20	215	201	2588	1787170	1387100	228	3500	0	171
Shimoga	527	7804	7	130	534	7934	121436440	5040000	538	2000	4	193
Total	1407	16224	137	1055	1544	17279	128021871	75974500	3222	108500	514	1743
Grand Total	3405	39991	288	2926	3693	42917	136536786	02600866	12366	008899	287	4943

Annexure - XI

Activities-wise Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects
(North East States) (Consolidated) 2017-18

SI.	Programmes	Events	Beneficiaries/Participants					
No.	-				Out of which			
			Total	SC/ST	Women	Minority		
A.	Cooperative Education Programmes							
1	Secretaries/ Managers	27	244	17	71	_		
2.	Managing Committee Members	240	2,472	115	737	10		
3.	Members & Potential Members Courses	498	8,820	833	1,794	33		
4.	Leadership Development Programmes	4	80	_	70	_		
5.	Youth Camps/Meetings	114	3,124	165	1,238	7		
6.	Meeting on Credit/Recovery/ Deposits Mobilisation	57	1,239	33	606	7		
7.	Forman of SHG's (Motivational Meetings)	302	4,486	1,095	3,180	88		
8.	Others	175	2,166	797	1,134	_		
	Total	1,417	22,631	3,055	8,830	145		
B:	Social Development Programme (conducted by	Cooperat	ive Educa	ition Instr	uctors)			
1.	Family Welfare Education	120	2,089	513	1,755	27		
2.	Health Education (AIDS)	72	1,234	157	684	3		
3.	Adult Education	124	2,139	578	1,777	55		
4.	Social Welfare	63	1,049	226	706	16		
5.	Environment Protection	12	158	39	136	7		
6.	Programme on climate change	9	107	38	68	4		
	Total	400	6,776	1,551	5,126	112		
C:	Farm Guidance Programmes							
1.	Crop Development	68	1,110	268	371	72		
2.	Dairy/Poultry/Cattle Development	51	786	178	236	39		
3.	Horticulture Development	35	471	20	53	_		
4.	Plant Protection	31	720	197	282	51		
5.	Vegetable Development	5	20	_	10	_		
6.	Mktg./Grading of Agriculture Produce	1	30		10	_		
7.	Use and application of Fertiliser	2	100	_	40	_		
8.	Fodder Development	_	_	_	_	_		
9.	Farmers Meetings	10	200	_	75	_		
10.	Oil & Pulses Development	3	45	_	28	_		
11.	Environment Protection	23	463	22	167	_		
12.	Water Harvesting	30	820	32	429	_		
13.	Other (Specify)	32	705	_	392	_		
	Total	291	5,470	717	2,093	162		
D:	Other Programme							
1.	Skill Development	11	326	63	237	_		
2.	Block Level Conference	3	377	27	304			
	Total	14	703	90	541	_		
	Grand Total	2,122	35,580	5,413	16,590	419		

Annexure - XII

Cooperative Edcuation Field Projects (North East States) Highlights of Achievements (Consolidatied) (April 2017 to March 2018)

S.No.	Name of Programmes	No. of participants
1.	New Societies registered during the year	32
2.	Societies Revitalised	11
3.	New Members enrolled	805
4.	(i) BDP Formulated	73
	(ii) BDP Implemented	24
5.	Kisan Cards arranged to farmers	983
6.	No. of persons benefited under Income Generating	4543
7.	No. of SHGs formed	389
8.	No. of Membership	4429
9.	No. of SHGs converted into Cooperatives	34
10.	Plantation of Trees	6074
11.	Soil Sample tested	685
12.	Seed sample tested	60
13.	Farmers Clubs promoted under VVV Scheme of Nabard	88
14.	No. of Members	2225
15.	Plot Demonstration	18
16.	Seminar/Conferences/Workshops	18
17.	No. of Participants	1398
18.	No. of Persons who have learnt to write their names	1483
19.	Exposure Visit	4
20.	No. of Participants	77
21.	Workshop for Youth	114
22.	No. of Participants	3124
23.	Vermi Compost Pit	_
24.	No. of Participants	_
25.	Skill Development Programme	11
26.	No. of Participants	326
27.	Block level Conference	3
28.	No. of Participants	703
29.	Leadership Development Programme	4
30.	No. of Participants	80

Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2017-18 Increase in share capital Increase in share capital sar New enrolled Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	crease in loa ount (Rs. in 2017-18 0 2.2 8.2 104.32 46.4
Ase in share capital Increase in load ase in share capital Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 4.583 (+) 0.15 0 0 0 0.04 (-) 22.54 10.25 2.2 4.6 (+) 0.7 6.7 8.2 8.54 (+) 1.40 105.15 104.32 17.34 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4	Societies New Increase in share capital Increase in loan revitalised Amount (Rs. in lakhs) Amount (Rs. in lakhs)
3	0 0 2.2 8.2 104.32 46.4 161
3 15 4.568 4.583 (+)0.15 2016-17 2017-18 0 11 0.4 0.2 (-)0.20 0.0 0 0 1 0 22.58 0.04 (-)22.54 10.25 2.2 3 46 3.9 4.6 (+) 0.7 6.7 8.2 3 315 7.14 8.54 (+) 1.40 105.15 104.32 1 418 21.5 17.34 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4 1 805 60 35 - 162 161	2017-18 0 2.2 8.2 104.32 46.4
3 15 4.568 (+)0.15 (-)0.20 0 0 11 0.4 0.2 (-)0.20 0 0 1 0 22.58 0.04 (-)22.54 10.25 22.2 3 46 3.9 4.6 (+)0.7 6.7 8.2 3 315 7.14 8.54 (+)1.40 105.15 104.32 1 418 21.5 17.34 (-)6.40 39.8 46.4 1 805 60 35 - 162 161	0 2.2 8.2 104.32 46.4 161
0 11 0.4 0.2 (-) 0.20 <	2.2 8.2 104.32 46.4
1 0 22.58 0.04 (-) 22.54 10.25 2.2 3 46 3.9 4.6 (+) 0.7 6.7 8.2 3 315 7.14 8.54 (+) 1.40 105.15 104.32 1 418 21.5 17.34 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4 1 805 60 35 - 162 161	2.2 8.2 104.32 46.4
3 46 3.9 4.6 (+) 0.7 6.7 8.2 3 315 7.14 8.54 (+) 1.40 105.15 104.32 1 418 21.5 17.34 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4 1 805 60 35 - 162 161	46.4 104.32 161
3 315 7.14 8.54 (+) 1.40 105.15 104.32 1 418 21.5 17.34 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4 (-) 8.54 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4 (-) 8.54 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4 (-) 6.40 35 (-) 6.40 (-)	104.32 46.4 161
1 418 21.5 17.34 (-) 6.40 39.8 46.4 11 805 60 35 - 162 161	46.4 161
11 805 60 35 - 162 161	161
11 805 60 35 - 162 161	161
	bject. The request letter has been sent to Ministry to permit new appointment in the project.

							10017	mindai	Repor	. 2011			
III (Contd.)		JP	Imple-		0	0	7	9	22	9		24	
Annexure - XIII (Contd.)		BDP	Formu-	ומופס	0	10	12	30	13	∞		73	
		No. of societies in	Loss		12	1	~	0	0	6		33	
	Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2017-18	No. of so	Profit		18	2	7	16	6	0		22	
		sit	khs)	(-/+) %	(+) 0.01	(+) 0.16	(+) 3.55	(+)2.2	(+)1.17	(+)		-	
	Project (Nos s during the	Increase in deposit	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2017-18	0.18	1.16	5.08	8.4	9.67	9.6		34	
	ation Field nievements	Incre	Amour	2016-17	0.17	_	1.53	6.02	8.5	8.6		26	
	ative Educa ct-wise ach	covery	ı lakhs)	(-/+) %	0	0	(-) 9.56	(+) 0.9	(+)6.19	(+)4.8		•	
	Coopera Projec	Increase in recovery	Amount (Rs. in lakhs)	2017-18	0	0	2.21	5.8	64.31	27.8		100	
		luc	Am	2016-17	0	0	11.77	4.9	58.12	23		86	
		Projects			Aizwal (Mizoram.)	Thoubal (Manipur)	Jorhat (Assam)	Kohima (Nagaland)	Morigaon (Assam)	Shillong (Meghalaya)	Sikkim	Total	
		S.	ġ.		_	7	က	4	2	9	7		

NCUI Annual	Report	2017-18
-------------	--------	---------

								Ar	Annexure - XIII (Contd.)	I(Contd.)
		Co	perative E roject-wis	Education Fie e achieveme	ld Project (nts during t	Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2017-18	ates) 18			
<u></u> 8	Projects	Kisan cards arranged	No. of benefii income	No. of persons benefited under income generation	<u> </u>	Farmers Clubs promoted under VVV shceme of NABARD	of NABAR	nder D	Water Ha	Water Harvesting Programme
		מ מ	,	D E E	Since i Mare	Since inception to March, 2018	During 2017	During the year 2017-2018		
			No.	Per annum Ave. income	N _O	Membe- ship	No.	Membe- ship	No.	Membe- ship
-	Aizwal (Mizoram.)	0	612	2000	80	160	_	. 50	0	0
7	Thoubal (Manipur)	က	45	10,000	20	410	က	82	0	0
က	Jorhat (Assam)	0	56	1500	0	0	0	0	0	0
4	Kohima (Nagaland)	54	1518	800	0	0	0	0	0	0
2	Morigaon (Assam)	624	2150	17500	6	540	7	42		
9	Shillong (Meghalaya)	302	192	8000	51	1115	0	0	0	0
7	Sikkim									
	Total	983	4,543	•	88	2,225	9	147	•	1

NCUI Annual Report 2017-18

		1	-		1									
Contd.)		PCC ting held		Partici- pant	13	0	0	0	35	0		84		
e-XIII (PCC meeting held		O		0	0	0	7	0		3		
Annexure - XIII (Contd.)		Study visit for members of MC		Persons benefit- ted	0	0	88	0	0	33		11		
		Study mer of		No.	0	0	_	0	0	က		4		
	≅	Farmers provided plants etc. (plantation	es)	Persons benefit- ted	0	240	14	8	750	100		1,184		
	ast States 2017-18	Farmers plant (plant	of trees)	No. of Plant	0	10	4	3900	1250	006		6,074		
	ct (North E	amples ent	þ	Partici- pant	0	496	0	0	135	0		631		
	Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2017-18	Soil/seed samples treatment	Seed	No.	0	15	0	0	45	0		09		
	Educatior se achieve			No. of Soil	0	10	0	0	675	0		685		
	ooperative Project-wi	ation		Average income (Rs.)	0	10000	0	0	10500	3000		23,500		
	Ö	Plot demonstration		Farmers benefit- ted	0	100	0	0	22	009		784		
		Plo		No.	0	~	0	0	7	10		18		
		Project			Aizwal (Mizoram)	Thoubal (Manipur)	Jorhat (Assam)	Kohima (Nagaland)	Morigaon (Assam)	Shillong (Meghalaya)	Sikkim	Total		
		is S			_	7	က	4	2	9	7			

NCUI Annual Report 2017-18

										Ā	nnexure -	Annexure - XIII (Contd.)
			Cook	oject-wise	Cooperative Education Field Project (North East States) Project-wise achievements during the year 2017-18	d Projec ts durin	ct (North Easig the year 2	st States) 017-18				
Projects		Sei confe work	Seminar/ conferences/ workshops	Training organis fields incom	Training programmes organised in various fields (other than income generation activities	g	Guidance in MC meetings	.i.	Guidance in AGM	Doct filr arra	Documentary film show arrangement	No. of persons who have learn to write their
	_	o S	Partici- pant	Ö	Partici- pant	Ö	Partici- pant	N Ö	Partici- pant	o Ž	Partici- pant	
Aizwal (Mizoram.)	n.)	က	06	5	156	150	1500	30	942	0	0	100%
Thoubal (Manipur)	ipur)	2	110	12	1005	25	200	10	185	0	0	472
Jorhat (Assam)	<u>(</u>	~	293	79	985	12	132	2	1426	0	0	104
Kohima (Nagaland)	land)	က	190	က	75	106	086	35	869	0	0	80
Morigaon (Assam)	am)	7	92	247	5630	2	150	က	4380	ო	125	350
Shillong (Meghalaya)	ıalaya)	7	029	7	150	38	404	9	173	2	232	548
Sikkim												
Total		18	1,398	353	8,001	336	3,366	89	7,975	8	357	1,483
	l	1				1						

			Ι.									
Annexure - XIV		vhich	Minority	0	48	72	0	25	0		145	
Annex	17-18 –	Out of which	Women	256	443	934	3930	805	2162		8830	
	e year 20		SC/ST	2154	205	361	0	335	0		3055	e project.
	during th	education nme	۵	2154	2314	2040	8046	805	7272		22631	tment in th
	ld Projects	Cooperative education Programme	ш	165	125	128	518	22	424		1417	пем арроіп
	cation Fiel ates)	O	Minority	0	110	107	0	202	0	0	419	to permit r
	nised by Cooperative Education Project-wise (North East States)	Out of which	Women N	745	1005	1946	4991	3576	4327	0	16590	to Ministry
	by Coope ct-wise (No	0	SC/ST V	2604	472	929	0	1661	0	0	5413	been sent
	organised Proje	ucation nme	Benefi- ciaries	2604	4715	3242	9550	4314	11155	0	35580	st letter has
	ogrammes	Overall education programme	Events	195	275	201	298	224	629	0	2122	The reque
	Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects during the year 2017-18 – Project-wise (North East States)	States	l	Mizoram	Manipur	Assam	Nagaland	Assam	Meghalaya	Sikkim		* At present no employee in the project. The request letter has been sent to Ministry to permit new appointment in the project.
	Cooperati	Name of Project		Aizwal	Thobal	Jorhat	Kohima	Morigaon	Shillong	Sikkim*	Total	oresent no emplo
		ng Z		1	7	က	4	2	9	7		* At F

	NCUI	Annual	Report	2017-18
--	------	--------	--------	---------

		ı	ı							-		
Annexure - XIV (Contd.)		which	Minority	0	22	0	0	140	0		162	
xure - XIV	017-18-	Out of which	Women	0	281	0	0	737	1075		2093	
Anne	he year 20		SC/ST	0	143	0	0	574	0		717	
	s during t	iidance amme	۵	0	1834	0	0	1475	2161		5470	
	eld Project	Farm guidance Programme	ш	0	117	0	0	99	108		291	
	ducation Fie States)	÷	Minority	0	40	35	0	37	0		112	
	inised by Cooperative Education Project-wise (North East States)	Out of which	Women	189	251	733	829	2034	1090		5126	
	ed by Cool ect-wise (SC/ST	450	61	288	0	752	0		1551	
	s organise Proj	relopment amme	۵	450	474	606	1187	2034	1722		9229	
	rogramme	Social development programme	ш	30	30	72	20	101	26		400	
	Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects during the year 2017-18 Project-wise (North East States)	States		Mizoram	Manipur	Assam	Nagaland	Assam	Meghalaya	Sikkim		
	Cooperat	Name of Project		Aizwal	Thobal	Jorhat	Kohima	Morigaon	Shillong	Sikkim	Total	
		S. So.		-	7	က	4	2	9	7		

					■ NC	UI Ann	ual Re	port 20	017-18	
Annexure - XIV (Contd.) ear 2017-18 –		Minority	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Annexure ring the year 2017-18	Out of which	Women	0	30	279	232	0	0	0	541
n Field Projects du		SC/ST	0	83	27	0	0	0	0	06
nnised by Cooperative Education Project-wise (North East States)	pment le	۵	0	93	293	317	0	0	0	703
nmes organised by Co Project-wise	Others Development programme	ш	0	ო	~	10	0	0	0	14
Annexure - X Cooperative Education Programmes organised by Cooperative Education Field Projects during the year 2017-18 – Project-wise (North East States)	States		Mizoram	Manipur	Assam	Nagaland	Assam	Meghalaya	Sikkim	
Coopera	. Name of Droject		Aizwal	Thobal	Jorhat	Kohima	Morigaon	Shillong	Sikkim	Total

is s

Annexure - XV	(Amount in Rs.)	Loan disbursed during the year 2017-18		133000	64300	327700	520000	523700	795900		23,64,600	
Ann ast States)	(Ame	Thrift collected during year 2017-18		345920	100100	253110	262000	355360	137280		14,53,770	oject.
018 (North E		SHG converted into a cooperative since date		0	S	~	~	27			34	ment in the pro
A Help Groups organised by CEI and FGI as on 31⁵ March 2018 (North East States)		Approx. income earned per member in (Rs.) during the year		8000	10000	15300	0006	6200	125000		1,73,500	request letter has been sent to Ministry to permit new appointment in the project.
and FGI as or		No. of bene- ficiaries April 2017 to to		603	516	270	88	1154	253		2,885	istry to permi
sed by CEI a		During April 2017 to March 2018	Mem.	06	20	24	72	85	4		388	sent to Min
oups organis		During to Ma	No.	7	۷	8	۷	0	4		36	tter has beer
		Since inception upto March 2018	Mem.	603	694	270	910	902	1246		4,429	
rogress of		Since Jupto Ma	No.	22	47	23	83	63	116		389	he project.
Project-wise Progress of Self		Project		Aizwal (Mizoram.)	Thoubal (Manipur)	Jorhat (Assam)	Kohima (Nagaland)	Morigaon (Assam)	Shillong (Meghalaya)	Sikkim*	Total	* At present no employee in the project. The
		n S S		1	7	က	4	2	9	7		* At

				Ann	exure- XVI
	NATIONAL COOPE	RATIVE UNION	OF INDIA		
	Statistical Progress Report for Member Edu	the Period Apri cation Program		larch, 2018	
SI. No.	Particulars	No. of Courses	Trained person	SC/ST	Women
	cational Development Activities Primary Agricultual Cooperatives)				
1	Course for Secretaries / Managers	176	3556	929	399
2	Courses for MCMs / Office bearers	631	25618	4333	7578
3	Courses for Members / Potential Memb	ers 2292	64212	24657	14642
4	Courses for Leaders	143	3312	915	236
5	Meetings (General Body Study Circle Contact Meetings)	25	2239	125	127
В.	Educational / Developmental Activitie	es in Societies	other than	PACS	
1	Agricultural Cooperatives	135	5854	2608	207
2	Dairy Cooperatives	94	3777	22	527
3	Women	48	1159	0	202
4	Industrial Cooperatives	30	566	251	244
5	Urban Bank	108	2867	163	82
6	Consumer Cooperatives	6	445	188	206
7	Cooperative Act	128	3020	0	0
8	Youth	872	56178	32008	23320
9	Sc/ST	48	917	547	144
10	BDP	40	757	222	112
11	Adult Education	0	0	0	0
12	Fisheries	10	295	287	44
13	SHG	62	1285	0	0
14	Others (Family Welfare, AIDs etc.)	9	311	32	100
15	Seminars/ Conferences	113	14489	2555	3650
	Total	4970	190857	69842	51820

CHAPTER-3

General Cooperative Policies

ne day conference on Opportunities and Challenges for cooperatives in Northern states comprising of Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Rajasthan, Jammu & Kashmir and Delhi was organised on August 12, 2017 by National Cooperative Union of India at the Regional of Cooperative Management, Chandigarh. The Chief Guest at the function was Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, M.P. (Rajya Sabha) & Chairman NCUI and KRIBHCO. The conference was attended by chairmen and managing directors of national and state level cooperative organisations, Registrar of Cooperative Societies of the concerned States, representatives from various regional cooperative institutions and eminent cooperators etc., across the country.

A brief report of the conference was prepared along with recommendations and distributed to the Secretary (Coop)/Registrars of concerned states, chairmen/ managing directors of national and state level cooperative organisations and eminent dignitaries. The following are the major recommendations:

- More focus should be given to granting loan to allied agricultural activities like dairy poultry, fisheries, and piggeries etc. as farmers can carry out these activities simultaneously with their main agricultural activities.
- Urgent and imminent need for a Separate Ministry for Cooperation at the Centre.
- The syllabus of training programmes must emphasise practical aspects more strongly.
 The Syllabus of different long/short duration courses needs revision with a greater thrust on "Skill Development".
- The subject of "Cooperation" must be introduced in the 12th Class syllabus as an optional subject, by all state education boards
- Enhancement of funds allocated by state governments to state cooperative unions.

A one day Zonal conference on opportunities and challenges before cooperatives of the Southern States of Karnataka, Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and Puducherry was organised on March 10,.2018 by NCUI at Regional Institute of Cooperative Management, Bengaluru, which was attended by prominent cooperators. leaders and officials of the concerned states and other parts of the country. Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, M.P. (Rajya Sabha) and Chairman, NCUI and KRIBHCO was the Chief Guest at the function. In his presidential address, Chairman, NCUI expressed deep concern about the successive neglect of cooperatives by successive governments. He highlighted the important role in strengthening the economy of the country by cooperatives despite which not even a single line is expressed about the cooperative movement whenever central/state budgets are presented. He strongly emphasised the need for a comprehensive description of cooperatives in the budget speech and an appropriate allocation for them given their contribution to the economy and the important role they play. The major recommendations of the conference are summarised below:

- Cooperatives should be established and developed as a means of improving the economic, social and cultural attributes of persons of limited resources and encouraging entrepreneurship and selfinitiatives in the south zone.
- State governments should formulate state cooperative policies to encourage growth and development of cooperatives.
- The ARDBs should be promoted as full fledged banks.
- The cooperative credit sector should give due importance to the human resource aspects, including the induction of professionals in cooperative banks.
- Cooperatives should equip themselves with

the latest technology to keep pace with and face competition.

- PACS should be transformed into a "One Stop Shop" for all services. All PACs should be fully computerized. There should be a proper system and procedure at PACS level
- State Cooperative Unions need to conduct more training programmes at the primary level.

The preparatory work for organizing the One Day Zonal Conference on opportunities and challenges for cooperatives of Central Zone states has been initiated. In this regard, the status papers from the respective states have been received.

The preparatory work for organizing an one day Zonal Conference on Opportunities and Challenges for cooperatives of Western Zone states has also been initiated.

17th Indian Cooperative Congress

Preparatory work for organizing 17th Indian Cooperative Congress has been initiated. The Governing Council of NCUI has approved "Cooperatives for Sustainable Development" as the theme of the 17th Indian Cooperative Congress.

NCUI Cooperative Award for Excellence

A detailed proposal regarding composition of the award committee has been prepared. Name of the Award, award amount, nomination form and eligibility criteria to be followed while considering and selecting the nominations, etc., are included in the proposal. The Award will be given to eminent cooperators who have rendered

exceptional and distinguished services in the field of cooperation for their contribution, at the time of the next Indian Cooperative Congress.

16th Indian Cooperative Congress

As and when requested, documents / papers related to 16th Indian Cooperative Congress and other relevant literature were supplied to cooperative organizations/academicians for research work on cooperatives. A request letter (Reminder) was also sent to various organizations, state cooperative unions, registrar of cooperative societies (All State), multi state cooperative societies, JCTCs, NABARD, Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare, State Secretaries (Cooperation), Ministries of Rural Development, Railways, Labour, Finance, Women and Child Development, Consumer Affairs Food and Public Distribution etc. from where no information regarding the action initiated/taken on the recommendations of 16th Indian Cooperative Congress held on 25-26 June, 2013 have been received. The recommendations received from several organizations regarding Action Taken related to the 16th Indian Cooperative Congress are being examined and analysed.

A Brief Note about the Indian Cooperative Congress

In response to a letter received from Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers' Welfare (DAC & FW), a brief write up about Indian Cooperative Congress and the chronology of Indian Cooperative Congress organized by NCUI was prepared and forwarded along with a copy of recommendations of 16th (last) Indian Cooperative Congress.

CHAPTER-4

Information Technology

Information Technology (IT), Division conducts computer training programmes and makes arrangements for IT equipment in official meetings and seminars as per the requirement.

45 days Development Course for LDC's / UDC's and MTS:

The Division conducted 45 days Employee Development Course for generating awareness among employees of computer fundamentals and MS Office 2007 for official.

Diploma Course Practical Examination- NCCE

Participants of the Diploma Programme in Cooperative Education, were provided computers and internet facility during the Programme.

Uploading Data / Information on website:

During the year, data / information received for uploading on NCUI website has been uploaded on NCUI website: ncui.coop

Social Media Platforms Updation (In-house):

 Updation of Twitter Account (For NCUI / NCCE, Coop. & Agri News)

Link: https://twitter.com/ncuicoop

 Updation of Facebook Account (For NCUI/ NCCE, Coop & Agri News)

Link: https://www.facebook.com/ncuicoop

Design and Maintainance of Web-application (in-house)

Designing and developing PIS, Maintenance was undertaken and made available to the various divisions for their work.

Support Services Provided

During the year, IT Division provided support services i.e. LCD Projector with screen and laptop facility during various events like conferences, security workshops and programmes, which were organized by NCUI / NCCE / NCCT and other cooperative organisations in the Auditorium/ Committee Room/ Board Room of NCUI.

Arrangement of IT - equipments

- Arrangements were made for availing of ITequipments (like: projector, screen, laptop) in a three day Expo, which was held from 14th to 16th July at Pragati Maidan, New Delhi.
- Provided support for the required IT hardware and Wi-Fi facility for the AGM of NCUI held on 22nd Sept., 2017

***Improvements

- Official e-mail Ids for all NCUI staff members and education field officers have been created at negligible cost and online access provided to everybody.
- Internet speed has been enhanced four times.
- Data sharing facility from mobile to computer on wireless network was provided.
- Guest self registration service on the Wi-Fi network was created.
- Interaction and basic teaching of the field education project officers regarding effective usage of facebook.com through remote sessions was initiated and implemented

Monitoring on Firewall and Anti-Virus

The Division monitored everyday web usage, access of several websites / applications and worked on security concerns.

The Division provided 100% secured internet connectivity during the 'Ransomware malware attack'.

Wi-Fi Accessibility

IT-Division regularly provided Wi-Fi access to the personnel, visitors and guests in NCUI campus. The division regularly monitored the consumption of the internet, and handled connectivity issues and any other grievances of the Wi-Fi users.

IT-Division resolves various problemmes regarding hardware / software with the help of resident engineer and AMC vendor.

CHAPTER-5

Publications, Publicity and Public Relations

PUBLIC RELATIONS

During the year, various activities were organized to strengthen the image-building of the organisation and also establish strong liaison with the print and electronic media.

Nomenclature Meeting of MDs/Senior Officers of National level Federation for Cooperative Week Celebrations

A Nomenclature Meeting of MDs/senior officers of Delhi based national / level cooperative federations was organised on 28th June 2017. In consultation with the MDs/key representatives of national level federations, the theme of the Cooperative Week Celebrations, 64th in series, was decided as "Empowering People Through Digitalisation Of Cooperatives". It was decided to publish a poster on this occasion, for distribution to a large number of cooperative organizations/ state cooperative unions all over the country.

2. 64th All India Cooperative Week

- 64th All India Cooperative Week was organised all over the country from 14th to 20th November, 2017. The theme of the Cooperative Week was "Empowering People Through Digitalisation Of **Cooperatives**". The inaugural function of the Cooperative week celebrations was held on 14th November, 2017. The Chief Guest on this occasion was Dr. Ashish Bhutani, Jt. Secretary, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperation, Government of India. Some of Chairmen/M.Ds./key members of NCUI Governing Council were present on the occasion. An audience of around 300 comprising of cooperative officials from various organisations attended the inaugural function
- A national level Quiz and Extempore Speech competition was organised by NCUI on the occasion of 64th All India Cooperative Week Celebrations. In the same connection,

the necessary coordination was undertaken with all national level federations. Teams of NCDC, NCUI and NCCT won the First, Second and Third Prize on the occasion.

- A special issue of the NCUI Journal "The Cooperator", which carried articles from eminent dignitaries including Chairmen/MDs, besides the messages received from President, PM, Cabinet/State Ministers, Governors/Chief Ministers, Cooperative Ministers of States, etc was released on the occasion.
- An attractive poster was printed on the theme "Empowering People Through Digitalisation Of Cooperatives". These posters were distributed to State Cooperative Unions, Registrars of Cooperative Societies. Institutes of Cooperative Management etc. and they drew wide appreciation from all quarters.
- The division handled the work of Preparation of Guidelines of 64th All India Cooperative Week Celebration, which was uploaded on the NCUI Website.
- Press Release of Important Events and Media/PR Support Press Releases were issued:
- ◆ In English and Hindi on the occasion of celebration of International Day of Cooperatives organised in July, 2017.
- In English and Hindi on the occasion of inaugural function of Cooperative Week held on 14th November 2017.
- For the National Workshop on Taxation Problems of Urban Cooperative Credit Societies organised by NAFCUB in association with NCUI on 29th – 31st Jan, 2018.
- In English and Hindi on the occasion of Celebration of International Women's Day on 8th March 2017.

During the period of April 2017 to March 2018, www.indiancooperative.com continued to give good coverage to news about the cooperative organisations and NCUI.

4. Preparation Work for NCUI Diary-2018

Based on the decision to publish the NCUI Dairy-2018 on the eve of New Year, the Division compiled all the latest information related to the cooperatives from Cooperative Departments at Centre/States, Institutes of Cooperative Management, Chairmen/MDs, of national federations, Governing Council members etc. The Diary work was completed within the deadline, and diaries were distributed in time to all concerned.

5. Birth Centenary Celebrations of Shri Laxmanrao Inamdar

The birth centenary celebrations of Shri Laxmanrao Inamdar was organised by Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare in collaboration with Sahkar Bharti on 21st September, 2017 at Vigyan Bhavan, New Delhi. On the occasion, the Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi released two books: one on Shri Laxmanrao Inamdar, and one titled "Nine Gems of Indian Cooperative Movement", written by Shri Ashok Sharma, Ex-Consultant, NCUI who served in the past as Director in NCDC.

PUBLICATIONS

'The Cooperator'—Monthly Journal

'The Cooperator' is a monthly Journal of

NCUI. It has, both English and Hindi sections and provides a regular communication channel to the cooperative fraternity including cooperative institutions. A number of steps such as change in layout, design, new feature, getting articles from reputed authors/experts, etc., were initiated, which brought about definite improvement. During the year under review, all the 12 issues of 'The Cooperator' from April 2016 to March 2017 were printed and posted to the subscribers timely.

Special Issue

During the year, the division published Special Issues of 'The Cooperator' in the month of November 2017, on the occasion of the 64th All India Cooperative Week and in February, 2018 on Budget Supplement. The main theme of the journal was based on Cooperative Week Theme, "Empowering People though Digitalisation of Cooperatives". A good number of articles were obtained from the Chairmen/MDs of national level cooperative organisations, besides other experts. The advertisement campaign for the journal fetched good results and a good advertisement revenue was obtained from the special issue.

Indian Cooperative Review

This is a quarterly research journal of NCUI. The issues for the months of April, July, October 2017 were printed and posted in time. Letters were issued to MDs/ CEOs of cooperative organisations/teaching faculty/academicians/experts, to ensure that a large number of quality articles are received for publication in this journal.

अध्याय-6

jktHkk"kk dk fodkl

o"kl 2017&2018 dsnkj ku j k t Hkk"kk uhfr dsdk; kllo; u I s I ccf/kr fof'k"V mi yfC/k; kg@dk; kla dk I f{klr fooj.k

Hkkjr I jdkj dhjktHkk″kk uhfr dk vuqikyu

जभाषा विभाग, गृह मंत्रालय द्वारा जारी वर्ष 2017—18 का वार्षिक कार्यक्रम, संघ कार्यालय के समस्त अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों में अनुपालन हेतु वितरित किया गया। उक्त वार्षिक कार्यक्रम में निर्धारित लक्ष्यों को प्राप्त करने हेतु, संघ कार्यालय के अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों द्वारा यथा—संभव प्रयास किए गए। राजभाषा अधिनियम 1963 की धारा 3(3) का, संघ कार्यालय में अनुपालन करवाने से संबंधी आवश्यक कार्यवाही की गयी तथा राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रगामी प्रयोग से संबंधित आंकड़े एकत्रित कर, उन्हें तिमाही रिपोर्ट के रूप में समेकित कर राजभाषा विभाग, गृह मंत्रालय तथा कृषि, सहकारिता एवं किसान कल्याण विभाग, कृषि एवं किसान कल्याण मंत्रालय को प्रेषित किया गया तथा मंत्रालयों द्वारा रिपोर्ट से संबंधित दिए गए सुझावों एवं मार्ग दर्शन हेतु आवश्यक कदम उठाए गए।

हिन्दी पखवाड़े (14 से 28 सितम्बर, 2017)

संघ कार्यालय में दिनांक 14 से 28 सितम्बर, 2017 तक हिन्दी पखवाड़े का आयोजन भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ एवं राष्ट्रीय सहकारी प्रशिक्षण परिषद् द्वारा संयुक्त रूप से किया गया। इस दौरान निम्नांकित गतिविधियाँ आयोजित की गयीं:

हिन्दी दिवस

दिनांक 14 सितम्बर, 2017 को संघ परिसर में स्थित भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ, राष्ट्रीय सहकारी प्रशिक्षण परिषद्, राष्ट्रीय पिछड़ा वर्ग वित्त एवं विकास निगम, कृषि और प्रसंस्कृत खाद्य उत्पाद निर्यात विकास प्राधिकरण, लघु कृषक कृषि व्यापार संघ एवं भारतीय स्टेट बैंक द्वारा हिन्दी दिवस समारोह का आयोजन संयुक्त रूप से किया गया। उक्त समारोह में समस्त संस्थाओं के अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों ने बड़े उत्साह के साथ भाग लिया एवं कार्यक्रम को सफल बनाने में अपना महत्पूर्ण योगदान दिया। हिन्दी दिवस समारोह के मुख्य अतिथि के रूप में डा0 प्रसन्न कुमार पाटसानी, माननीय सांसद (लोकसभा) एवं सदस्य, संसदीय राजभाषा समिति तथा विशिष्ट अतिथि सुप्रसिद्ध कवियत्री श्रीमती ममता किरण एवं श्री उमाकान्त लखेड़ा जी विरिष्ठ स्वतंत्र हिन्दी पत्रकार एवं लेखक ने वक्ता के रूप में, इस कार्यक्रम की गरिमा बढाई।

fgUnh i [kokM&ds nk§ku vk; kftr ifr; kfxrk, a

हिन्दी पखवाड़े के दौरान भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ द्वारा विभिन्न प्रतियोगिताओं का आयोजन किया, जिनका संक्षिप्त ब्यौरा निम्नप्रकार है:

हिन्दी कहानी लेखन एवं कथा विस्तार प्रतियोगिता

नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन समिति (दक्षिण दिल्ली—।) के तत्वाधान में भा0रा0सह0 संघ द्वारा दिनांक 20 सितम्बर, 2017 को "हिन्दी कहानी लेखन एवं कथा विस्तार प्रतियोगिता" का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त प्रतियोगिता के निर्णायक वरिष्ठ फोटो पत्रकार एवं राजभाषा विशेषज्ञ श्री उमेश मेहता थे इस प्रतियोगिता में नराकास की विभिन्न सदस्य संस्थाओं के कार्मिकों ने भाग लिया।

हिन्दी निबंध लेखन प्रतियोगिता

दिनांक 22 सितम्बर, 2017 को हिन्दी टिप्पण एवं आलेखन प्रतियोगिता का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त प्रतियोगिता में भा०रा०सह०संघ एवं रा०सह०प्र०परिषद् के अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों ने भाग लिया।

हिन्दी टिप्पण एवं आलेखन प्रतियोगिता

दिनांक 26 सितम्बर, 2017 को हिन्दी निबंध लेखन प्रतियोगिता का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त प्रतियोगिता में भा०रा०सह०संघ एवं रा०सह०प्र०परिषद् के कर्मचारियों ने भाग लिया।

$cf' k\{k.k\}$

 संघ कार्यालय के समस्त अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों को हिन्दी (प्रबोध, प्रवीण एवं प्राज्ञ) का कार्यसाधक ज्ञान / प्रवीणता प्राप्त है। अतः उन्हें समय–समय पर

- संघ कार्यालय द्वारा आयोजित त्रैमासिक हिन्दी कार्यशालाओं में हिन्दी का काम—काज करने हेतु प्रशिक्षण दिलवाया गया।
- संघ कार्यालय के छः कर्मचारियों को केन्द्रीय हिन्दी प्रशिक्षण संस्थान द्वारा आयोजित हिन्दी शब्द संसाधन (हिन्दी टाइपिंग) पत्राचार पाठ्यक्रम के माध्यम से कार्यालय में ही हिन्दी टंकण की कक्षाएं आयोजित कर प्रशिक्षण दिया गया।
- 3. संघ कार्यालय के केन्द्रीय हिन्दी प्रशिक्षण संस्थान द्वारा चलाए जा रहे हिन्दी शब्द संसाधन / टंकण पत्राचार पाठ्यक्रम के 54वें सत्र में नामित कर्मचारियों को, हिन्दी शिक्षण योजना, संघ लोक सेवा आयोग, धौलपुर हाउस, नई दिल्ली द्वारा आयोजित दिनांक 08.11.2017 से 10.11.2017 तक (तीन दिवसीय) 'व्यक्तिगत संपर्क कार्यक्रम' में प्रशिक्षण हेतु भेजा गया।

\vee upkn rFkk \vee U; f}Hkk"kh dk; l

- भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ द्वारा प्रकाशित की जाने वाली सहकारी डायरी 2018 में आवश्यक जानकारियों को द्विभाषी (हिन्दी—अंग्रेजी) रूप में अनुवादित कर मृद्रित करवाया गया एवं वितरण किया गया।
- 2. संघ कार्यालय के प्रयोग में आने वाले फोल्डर्स, राईटिंग पैडस, पत्रशीर्ष, अधिकारियों के नाम पट्ट एवं रबड़ की मोहरें आदि द्विभाषी रूप में बनवाई गई।
- असंघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी को प्रोत्साहन प्रदान करने हेतु कार्यालय के विभिन्न विभागों द्वारा जारी 1963 की धारा 3(3) से संबंधित कार्यालय आदेशों, फार्म, प्रोफार्मा एवं प्रशिक्षण सामग्री इत्यादि का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी में अनुवाद करवाकर उक्त को प्रयोग में लाया गया।
- संघ की सामान्य निकाय तथा शासी परिषद् की वार्षिक बैठक के पृष्ठाधार लेख तथा वार्षिक रिपोर्ट द्विभाषी रूप में प्रकाशित की गई।
- 5. विभिन्न अवसरों पर संघ कार्यालय द्वारा जारी प्रेस विज्ञिप्तियों को द्विभाषी रूप में प्रकाशित किया गया एवं हिन्दी के प्रमुख समाचार पत्रों में इन्हें स्थान मिला।
- संघ कार्यालय द्वारा 97वें संवैधानिक संशोधन 2011 से संबंधित विशेष अनुमित याचिका का हिन्दी रूपान्तरण करवाया गया।

- 7. ईरान चैम्बर ऑफ कोपरेटिव्स तथा नेशनल कोपरेटिव यूनियन ऑफ इण्डिया (भा०रा०सह० संघ) के मध्य हुए सहकारिता पर समझौता ज्ञापन का हिन्दी रूपान्तरण किया गया।
- संघ कार्यालय की अंकेक्षण रिपोर्ट वर्ष 2016–17 का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी अनुवाद करवाया गया एवं संबंधित विभाग को सौंपा गया।
- 9. नेपाल राष्ट्रीय सहकारी पिरसंघ, नेपाल द्वारा आयोजित द्वितीय सहकारी महासम्मेलन के समापन समारोह हेतु संघ के अध्यक्ष महोदय श्री चन्द्रपाल यादव जी का उदबोधन भाषण अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी में अनुवाद किया गया।
- 10. संघ कार्यालय के राष्ट्रीय सहकारी डाटा बैंक प्रभाग द्वारा प्रेषित पत्रों एवं प्रोफार्मा / प्रपत्रों का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी में अनुवाद किया गया।
- 11. संघ कार्यालय द्वारा प्राथमिक सहकारी समितियों के प्रशिक्षण में उपयुक्त किए जाने वाले पाठ्य सामग्री का अंग्रेजी से हिन्दी में अनुवाद करवाया गया।

fgUnh dk; ? kkyk

- संघ कार्यालय में राजभाषा हिन्दी को प्रोत्सान प्रदान करने हेतु दिनांक 09.05.2017 को हिन्दी कार्यशाला का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त कार्याशाला को विष्ठ पत्रकार श्री माधव चतुर्वेदी, भाषा (पीटीआई) द्वारा संबोधित किया, जिसमें भा०रा०सह०संघ एवं रा०सह०प्र०पिर० के 80 अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों ने भाग लिया गया।
- राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रति जागरूकता तथा उसके उत्तरोत्तर प्रयोग में गित लाने के उद्देश्य से संघ कार्यालय में दिनांक 28 सितम्बर, 2017 को हिन्दी कार्यशाला का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त कार्यशाला को श्रीमती रमा पाण्डेय, लब्ध प्रतिष्ठित कवियत्री, शायर, फिल्म मेकर तथा भूतपूर्व उद्घोषक, आकाशवाणी एवं दूरदर्शन द्वारा संबोधित किया गया। इस कार्यशाला में भा.रा.सह. संघ एवं रा.स.प्र. परिषद् के 90 अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों ने भाग लिया।
- संघ कार्यालय में राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रति जागरूकता लाने के उद्देश्य से दिनांक 21 दिसम्बर, 2017 को हिन्दी कार्यशाला का आयोजन किया गया, जिसके

- वक्ता भूतपूर्व निदेशक, राष्ट्रीय सहकारी शिक्षा केन्द्र, नई दिल्ली डा० गुलाब सिंह 'आज़ाद' जी थे। उक्त कार्यशाला में राजभाषा के प्रयोग में आने वाली कठिनाईयों पर विचार—विमर्श तथा उनके हल सुझाए गए।
- 4. संघ कार्यालय में राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रति जागरूकता लाने के उद्देश्य से संघ कार्यालय एवं राष्ट्रीय सहकारी प्रशिक्षण परिषद् द्वारा संयुक्त रूप से दिनांक 28 फरवरी, 2018 को हिन्दी कार्यशाला का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त कार्यशाला को अध्यक्ष, हिन्दुस्तानी भाशा अकादमी एवं सुप्रसिद्ध कवि श्री सुधाकर पाठक जी एवं लब्ध प्रतिश्ठित कवि श्री दुर्गेष अवस्थी जी द्वारा संबोधित किया।

uxj jktHkk"kk dk; kDo; u l fefr l cakh xfrfof/k; ka

- संघ कार्यालय से नराकास (दक्षिण दिल्ली—।) के तत्वाधान में छावनी परिषद् कार्यालय, दिल्ली द्वारा दिनांक 19 जून, 2017 को आयोजित निबंध लेखन प्रतियोगिता में भाग लेने से संबंधित कार्यालय आदेश जारी किया गया।
- संघ कार्यालय से नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन सिमित (दक्षिण दिल्ली—।) के तत्वाधान में कर्मचारी भविष्य निधि संगठन द्वारा दिनांक 12 सितम्बर, 2017 को "अपना हुनर दिखाएं" प्रतियोगिता में नामांकन भेजने हेतु कार्यालय विज्ञप्ति जारी की गई।
- असंघ कार्यालय द्वारा नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन समिति (दक्षिण दिल्ली—।) के तत्वाधान में माह सितम्बर, 2017 में हिन्दी पखवाड़े के अवसर पर समस्त नराकास सदस्य कार्यालयों के कर्मचारियों के लिए 'हिन्दी कहानी लेखन एवं कथा विस्तार प्रतियोगिता' का आयोजन करने का निर्णय लिया एवं कार्रवाई की गई।
- 4. संघ कार्यालय से नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन समिति (दक्षिण दिल्ली—।) के तत्वाधान में केन्द्रीय विद्यालय संगठन (मुख्यालय) द्वारा आयोजित स्वरचित कविता पाठ प्रतियोगिता में भा०रा०सह० संघ से दो कर्मचारियों को नामित किया गया।
- 5. नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन समिति (दक्षिण दिल्ली–1) के अध्यक्ष डॉ. वी.पी. जोय, भा.प्र.से., केन्द्रीय भविष्य निधि आयुक्त द्वारा दिनांक 16.03.2018 को नराकास के सदस्य कार्यालयों के लिए आयोजित द्वितीय बैठक

- में संघ कार्यालय के निदेशक (राजभाषा) एवं प्रवर श्रेणी लिपिक (राजभाषा) ने भाग लिया।
- 6. संघ कार्यालय की हिन्दी के प्रगामी प्रयोग से संबंधित छमाही रिपोर्ट (जुलाई, 2017 से सितम्बर, 2017 तक) तैयार की गई एवं नराकास को प्रेषित की गई।

fgUnh dksikRI kgu iznku djusgrqfgUnh foHkkx }kjk fd;sx;svU; dk;l

- राजभाषा के प्रगामी प्रयोग से संबंधित संघ कार्यालय के हिन्दी अनुभाग का वर्ष 2018–2019 का वार्षिक कार्यक्रम तैयार किया गया तथा वार्षिक प्रतिवेदन हेतु वर्ष 2016–17 के कार्यक्रमों पर की गई अनुवर्ती कार्रवाई रिपोर्ट तैयार कर आवश्यक कार्रवाई हेतु संघ कार्यालय के बोर्ड डिविजन को भिजवाई गई।
- राजभाषा विभाग, गष्ह मंत्रालय द्वारा जारी वर्ष 2018–19 का वार्षिक कार्यक्रम एवं राजभाषा नीति संबंधी निर्देशों की प्रतियाँ संघ कार्यालय के समस्त अधिकारियों एवं कर्मचारियों में अनुपालन हेतु वितरित की गयीं।
- 3. हिन्दी पखवाड़े के दौरान कार्यालय काम—काज में राजभाषा हिन्दी के प्रति जागरूकता तथा उसके उत्तरोत्तर प्रयोग में गित लाने के उद्देश्य से माह सितम्बर, 2016 को मुख्य कार्यकारी महोदय के हस्ताक्षर से अपील जारी की गयी, जिसमें उनके द्वारा वार्षिक कार्यक्रम में दिये गये लक्ष्यों की प्राप्ति के लिए एवं मूल रूप से हिन्दी में पत्राचार करने हेतु विशेष प्रयास करने का अनुरोध किया गया।
- 4. संघ कार्यालय में दिनांक 28 सितम्बर, 2017 को हिन्दी पखवाड़े के दौरान आयोजित प्रतियोगिताओं के विजेताओं को नगद पुरस्कार एवं प्रमाण—पत्र प्रदान कर सम्मानित किया गया।
- 5. राजभाषा नीति के कार्यान्वयन से संबंधित दिशा—िनर्देशों / आदेशों के अनुपालन हेतु एक कार्यालय विज्ञप्ति जारी की गई। कार्यालय विज्ञप्ति में विभागाध्यक्षों से अनुरोध किया गया है कि राजभाषा नीति व नियमों के अनुपालन पर की गई कार्यवाई से समय—समय पर हिन्दी अनुभाग को अपनी रिपोर्ट भिजवायें।
- 6. संघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी पत्राचार को प्रोत्साहन प्रदान करने, टिप्पणियाँ हिन्दी में प्रस्तुत करने, राजभाषा अधिनियम, 1963 की धारा 3(3) का अनुपालन करने,

प्राप्त पत्रों (अंग्रेजी एवं हिन्दी) के उत्तर हिन्दी में देने हेतु, फाइलों पर टिप्पणियां हिन्दी में करने हेतु, लिफाफों पर पते हिन्दी में लिखने एवं अधिकारियों द्वारा हिन्दी डिक्टेषन देने हेतु समय—समय पर आवश्यक निर्देश जारी किए गए।

- 7. संसदीय राजभाषा सिमिति की दूसरी उपसिमिति द्वारा संघ कार्यालय के राजभाषा संबंधी कार्यों की संशोधित निरीक्षण प्रश्नावली सिमिति की अपेक्षानुसार तैयार की गई एवं राजभाषा अनुभाग, कृषि, सहकारिता एवं किसान कल्याण विभाग, कृषि एवं किसान कल्याण मंत्रालय से विधिवत जांच करवाने के उपरान्त सिमिति सिचवालय को प्रेषित की गई।
- 8. नगर राजभाषा कार्यान्वयन सिमित (दक्षिण दिल्ली—।) के तत्वाधान में भा०रा०सह० संघ द्वारा समस्त सदस्य संस्थाओं के लिए आयोजित ''हिन्दी कहानी लेखन एवं कथा विस्तार प्रतियोगिता'' के विजेताओं को दिनांक 23.09.2017 को नराकास द्वारा आयोजित पुरस्कार वितरण समारोह में माननीय संसद सदस्य / उपाध्यक्ष, संसदीय राजभाषा सिमित डॉ० सत्यनारायण जिटया जी के कर—कमलों से नगद पुरस्कार एवं प्रमाण पत्र दिलवाए गए।
- 9. संघ कार्यालय द्वारा सहकारिता जगत के प्रणेता श्री लक्ष्मण राव इनामदार के जीवन पर आधारित "पारसमणि: श्री लक्ष्मण माधवराव इनामदार सहकार भाव के प्रणेता" नामक पुस्तक का प्रकाशन किया गया, जिसका विमोचन माननीय प्रधानमंत्री के कर—कमलों द्वारा विज्ञान भवन में कृषि एवं किसान कल्याण मंत्रालय द्वारा आयोजित समारोह में किया गया।
- 10. संघ कार्यालय में समस्त 68 कम्प्यूटरों एवं 04 लेपटोप पर द्विभाषी (हिन्दी—अंग्रेजी) रूप में टंकण का कार्य करने की एवं यूनिकोड की सुविधा उपलब्ध कराई गई।
- 11. संघ कार्यालय के समस्त विभागाध्यक्ष / विभागाधिकारी अपने अधीनस्थ कार्यरत हिन्दी आशुलिपि / हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य जानने वाले कर्मचारियों से हिन्दी आशुलिपि / हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य लेने एवं उन्हें लौंग हेण्ड में हिन्दी की डिक्टेषन देने तथा उनके विभाग की त्रैमासिक रिपोर्ट हिन्दी अनुभाग को भिजवाने हेतु कार्यालय आदेश जारी किया गया।
- 12. संघ कार्यालय के चतुर्थ श्रेणी कर्मचारियों को दिए जाने

- वाले कार्यालय आदेश, कारण बताओ नोटिस, चेतावनी आदि सभी हिन्दी में जारी किए गए।
- 13. संघ कार्यालय की अंग्रेजी वेबसाईट के अद्यतन सामग्री के हिन्दी रूपांतरण कार्य को राजभाषा विभाग द्वारा जांचा गया।
- 14. संघ कार्यालय के विभिन्न विभागों द्वारा राजभाशा विभाग को अनुवाद हेतु अंग्रेजी भाषा में प्रेषित साम्रगी हस्ताक्षरित रूप में भेजे जाने के संबंध में, कार्यकारी निदेशक महोदय के हस्ताक्षर से कार्यालय आदेश जारी किया गया।
- 15. संघ कार्यालय में आयोजित विभिन्न कार्यक्रमों में अध्यक्ष महोदय एवं मुख्य कार्यकारी महोदय के संबोधन / उदबोधन हिन्दी में तैयार किए गए।
- 16. प्रशासिनक तथा सहकारिता से संबंधित हिन्दी शब्दों से संघ कार्यालय के अधिकारियों तथा कर्मचारियों को अवगत कराने तथा दैनिक काम—काज में इनका प्रयोग बढ़ाने के उद्देश्य से इन शब्दों के अंग्रेजी तथा हिन्दी पर्याय "सप्ताह का शब्द" के रूप में नोटिस बोर्ड पर लगाये गये।
- 17. संघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी को प्रोत्साहन प्रदान करने हेतु हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य जानने वाले कर्मचारियों को अपने संबंधित विभाग का हिन्दी टंकण का कार्य स्वंय करने हेतु समय—समय पर कार्यालय आदेश जारी किए गए।
- 18. संघ कार्यालय से प्रकाशित होने वाली अंग्रेजी पत्रिका "दॅ को—ऑपरेटर" में सहकारिता विषय से संबंधित हिन्दी के लेख प्रकाशित करने हेतु सामग्री प्रकाशन विभाग को भिजवाई गयी।
- 19. संघ कार्यालय में हिन्दी दिवस समारोह के अवसर पर हिन्दी के प्रमुख समाचार पत्रों में प्रकाशन हेतु प्रेस विज्ञप्ति भेजी गई।
- 20. संघ कार्यालय के पुस्तकालय हेतु हिन्दी पुस्तकों का क्रय किया गया।
- 21. अखिल भारतीय सहकारी सप्ताह एवं अन्य अवसरों पर अध्यक्ष, भा.रा.स. संघ एवं मुख्य अतिथि महोदय के संबोधन हिन्दी में तैयार किए गए एवं वितरित किए गए।
- 22. संघ कार्यालय के विभिन्न विभागों को हिन्दी के काम–काज में सहयोग प्रदान किया गया। ■

CHAPTER-7

International Relations

Symposium on Role of Cooperatives in achieving the Sustainable Development

Goals: Members' Participation

o sensitize the members of NCUI about the Sustainable Development Goals, a Symposium was organized by NCUI on "Role of Cooperatives in achieving the Sustainable Development Goals: Members' Participation" along with the Annual General Body meeting on 20th September 2017. The Key note Speaker of the Symposium, Mr. Balu G. Iyer, Regional Director, ICA-AP made a presentation and exhorted cooperators to publicize their works both at national and international fora. Listing the seventeen Sustainable Development Goals, Mr. Balu lyer proved with examples that cooperatives in India are active in achieving all these goals. The Symposium was well attended by representatives of cooperative organisations, international organisations, educational institutions, etc. as also by Members of Governing Council of NCUI.

Celebration of International Cooperative Day on 1st Saturday of July 2017

To commemorate the international Cooperative Day 2017, NCUI organized two events viz. Children's Painting Contest in which the children in the age group 6-15 years were invited to participate and draw a painting on any one of the themes viz. Agriculture / Farming Area / Nature / Environment / People / Family/ Meal Scene and also a Symposium on the theme "Cooperatives ensure no-one is Left Behind" held at NCUI. The Chief Guest of the function was Shri Harvinder Kalyan, MLA & Chairman, Haryana State Cooperative Supply & Marketing Federation Ltd. (HAFED). The other eminent speakers were-Dr. Manoj Nardeosingh, Assistant Secretary General, African Asian Rural Development Oragnization (AARDO), Shri Prakash Naiknavare, Managing Director, National Federation of Cooperative Sugar Factories, Shri S.P. Singh, Political Bureau in Chief, Dainik Jagran, New Delhi and Shri S.P. Singh, Chief Executive, Indian Farm Forestry Development Cooperative Limited (IFFDC).

International Study Exposure Visit

NCUI in collaboration with National Cooperative Business Association (NCBA) and Cooperative League of USA (CLUSA) organized a study and exposure visit during 5-14 July 2017 to selected cooperatives in Washington, Chicago and New York, USA for a nine member delegation from the Indian Cooperative Movement comprising of representatives of KRIBHCO, NAFED, NCARDB, HIMCOFED and Ahmedabad DCB under the leadership of Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, Member of Parliament and President, NCUI. The delegates also participated in the International Day of Cooperatives event at the United Nations Headquarters on 14th July 2017.

International Trainers' Training Programme of CICTAB - NCUI

- An International Programme on Training Techniques for Trainers of Cooperative and Rural Financing Institutions was jointly organized by National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI) and the Centre for International Cooperation & Training in Agricultural Banking (CICTAB) Pune from 8-12 January, 2018 at New Delhi. The 34 participants consisting of trainers / potential trainers / HR executives of national level training institutions of cooperative and rural financing institutions of CICTAB members and others in the countries of SAARC Region viz. Bangladesh, India, Nepal and Sri Lanka.
- CICTAB organized an international programme on "Cooperative Governance for the Board of Directors of Cooperatives and Rural Financing Institutions" in collaboration with NCUI on 5–9 March, 2018 at VAMNICOM, Pune. As many as 22 participants from Bangladesh, Nepal and Sri Lanka attended the programme.

Participation in International Seminars, Conferences, Workshops and Meetings

- ◆ The International Cooperative Alliance Asia Pacific (ICA-AP) in collaboration with the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development (MARD), Government of Vietnam and the Vietnam Cooperative Alliance (VCA) organized the 10th Asia Pacific Ministers' Conference from 18 21 April 2017 at Hanoi, Vietnam. The President and Chief Executive of NCUI participated in the said conference. On behalf of NCUI and Indian Cooperative Movement, the President made a presentation on "How NCUI is engaging with stakeholders in Expanding Scope of Business, delivering Quality Services and Creating Tangible Impact for Members".
- seminar/regional workshop "Cooperative Financial Services & Rural Development", was organized by the All China Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives (ACFSMC) from 22 – 26 June, 2017 at Hangzhou, China. Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, President of NCUI was invited as a special guest for the workshop but could not attend. Shri Ritesh Dev. Deputy Director of NCUI participated in the said seminar on behalf of NCUI and made a country paper presentation on "Cooperative Rural Financial Services". Shri Anil Kumar Singh, Senior State Manager of KRIBHCO, Rajasthan was also nominated to participate in the seminar. The representatives from 14 countries participated in the programme.
- ◆ Joint workshop on "Agricultural Cooperative system in Korea" was organized by the International Cooperative Alliance - Asia and Pacific (ICA-AP) and the National Agricultural Cooperative Federation (NACF) of Korea in Seoul, Korea from 23– 26 October, 2017. Shri Ved Prakash Setia, Director NCUI and Mr. Hansbir Singh, Chief State Marketing Manager, KRIBHCO, Punjab were nominated by NCUI to participate in the above said programme.
- ◆ The reconstitution of Gender Equality Committee (GEC) of ICA - a thematic Committee at Global level to work for the

- gender integration and women's *empowerment* took place at the time of ICA Global Conference and General Assembly on 13th November, 2017 at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. Smt. Arti Bisaria, Chairperson, Aastha Nagrik Sahakari Bank, Bhopal who was nominated by NCUI for membership of GEC was elected to the Executive Committee and Dr. Nandini Azad, Chairperson, ICNW was nominated as additional observer to participate in the GEC meeting.
- The ICA Global Conference and General Assembly, which was hosted by National Cooperative Organization of Malaysia (ANGKASA) was held from 14-17 November 2017 in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. The theme of the global conference was "Cooperatives: Putting People at the Centre Development'. The election of ICA Board was also held during the General Assembly on 17th November 2017 and Mr. Ariel Guarco of the Cooperative Confederation of Argentina (Cooperar), Argentina has been elected as President of the International Cooperative Alliance for a term of four years. One of the Vice Presidents, three members of the Governing Council and the Chief Executive of NCUI participated on behalf of NCUI in the ICA Global Conference and General Assembly.
- The 12th ICA − AP Cooperative Research Conference and 4th meeting of ICA AP Committee on Cooperative Research was held on 11 − 12 November 2017 in Seoul, Korea. The Department of Management of Cooperatives of Sunkonghoe University hosted the event. The two nominated representatives of NCUI in the research committee participated in the committee meeting as well as in the research conference. NCUI also promoted two young researchers by granting scholarship for their participation in the research conference to present their research work in the field of cooperatives in the said event.
- Asia Pacific Cooperative Development Conference on "Building Multi-stakeholder partnerships on Sustainable Development" was held on 26-28 February 2018 at Hotel

Galadari, Colombo, Sri Lanka. The conference was jointly organized by the International Cooperative Alliance - Asia and Pacific (ICA-AP), ICA-EU Partnership on Cooperatives in Development: People Centered Businesses in Action and the Sri Lankan cooperative movement led by the Sri Lanka Cooperative Council, Consumer Cooperative Federation. SANASA Federation, Kotikawatta Thrift and Credit Cooperative and National Institute of Cooperative Development. Dr. Chandra Pal Singh Yadav, M.P., Vice-Chairman of ICA-AP and President of NCUI participated in the conference.

Fraternal Delegation's Visit to India

- A six-member delegation from All China Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives (ACFSMC) headed by Mr. Yang Rui, Vice-President visited India from 12 - 16 April 2017. A briefing and interaction meeting was arranged with the Vice-President and other officials of ACFSMC, with the President and Members of Governing Council of NCUI, Regional Director, ICA-AP, Chairmen / Managing Directors of national level cooperative federations. Chief Executive and senior officers of NCUI /NCCT in the Board Room of NCUI on 12th April 2017. NCUI also arranged the visit of the delegation to KRIBHCO and IFFCO in Delhi and to Radhasoami Urban Cooperative Bank in Agra.
- A six member delegation from Ministry of Cooperatives & Poverty Alleviation of Nepal under the leadership of Mr. Suresh Pradhan, Joint Secretary visited NCUI on 13th June 2017. A briefing and interaction meeting was arranged with the Joint Secretary and other officials of Ministry of Cooperatives and Poverty Alleviation with the Chief Executive NCUI, and senior officers of NCUI /NCCT at NCUI. The Chief Executive, NCUI also made a presentation on "Indian Cooperative Movement and activities of NCUI" to them.
- A two member delegation from the Agricultural Marketing Board of the Republic of Mauritius accompanied by H.E. High

- Commissioner of Mauritius visited NCUI on 14th July 2017. A briefing and interaction meeting was arranged with the Chief Executive and senior officers of NCUI / NCCT, Secretary of NCCT and Executive Director, NAFED in the Board Room of NCUI on Friday, 14th July 2017. A brief presentation was also made by Mr. A. Shameem Jeehoo, General Manager, Agricultural Marketing Board of Mauritius.
- Mr. K.B. Upreti, Managing Director of National Cooperative Bank Ltd., Nepal visited NCUI on 22nd July 2017 to meet Chief Executive, NCUI and discuss about the training opportunities for personnel working in cooperatives in NCBL.
- A group of 35 participants of Nepal Agriculture Cooperative Central Federation Ltd. visited NCUI on 28th July 2017. A briefing & interaction meeting was arranged with Chief Executive and a presentation on "An Overview of Indian Cooperative Movement & Activities of NCUI" was made by Deputy Director (International Relations).
- A group of 35 participants of an International training programme on "Agriculture & Rural Development through Cooperative Business Model" organized at IFFCO FMDI in collaboration with CICTAB visited NCUI on 3rd November 2017. A presentation on "An Overview of Indian Cooperatives Movement and Activities of NCUI" was made by Deputy Director (International Relations) for the visiting participants of SAARC countries.
- Ms. Justyna Beilat, Cooperation Coordinator, ICCS-NTUA Consortium, ROM of Centrally Managed Thematic Projects of European Commission from Brussels, Belgium visited NCUI on 6th December 2017 to meet the Chief Executive and Divisional Head of International Relations to discuss the various aspects and development initiatives of ICA EU Projects in which NCUI is one of the stakeholders.
- Under the research partnership between the ICA – AP and University of British Columbia (UBC) of Canada, three students of UBC

visited India on a field research mission and visited NCUI on 8th December 2017. The research scholars had detailed discussions with the Chief Executive NCUI on various developments in the field of cooperatives.

Nominations for International Training Programmes

- The Centre for International Cooperation in Training & Agricultural Banking (CICTAB) in collaboration with National Cooperative Council (NCC), Sri Lanka organized a programme on "Cooperative Governance for the Board of Directors of Rural Financing Institutions and Cooperatives" from 24 28 July 2017 at NCC, Colombo, Sri Lanka. Shri Anant Dubey, Assistant Director, NCUI and Faculty Member of NCCE participated in the said programme.
- The International Cooperative Alliance Asia Pacific (ICA-AP) in collaboration with the Central Union of Agricultural Cooperatives of Japan (JA - ZENCHU) and IDACA organized the first ICA - Japan Training Course "Fostering Coordinators to Build Food Value Chain in Financial Year - 2017" from 13 September – 6 October 2017 at the Institute for the Developmental of Agricultural Cooperation in Asia (IDACA) in Tokyo, Japan. The training course funded by the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (MAFF), Government of Japan was carried out in collaboration with the Central Union of Agricultural Cooperatives of Japan (JA-ZENCHU) and the Institute for the Development of Agricultural Cooperation in Asia (IDACA). Ms. Jyothi Patil, Deputy Manager, National Agricultural Cooperative Marketing Federation of India Limited (NAFED) was nominated to participate in the above said programme.
- An International Programme on "Development of Rural Financing Institutions and Cooperatives" was organized by the Centre for International Cooperation in Training & Agricultural Banking (CICTAB) under the joint sponsorship of Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB), Agricultural Development of Nepal (ADB), National Cooperative Development Board of Nepal (NCDB), SKVB,

- NEFSCUN, RBB, NACCFL and NCBL from 10-14 September 2017 at the Central Training Institute of ADB of Nepal at Bode, Bhaktapur, Nepal. Smt. Sandhya Kapoor, Deputy Director and Shri Sanjay Khanna, Assistant Director, NCUI were nominated by NCUI to participate in the programme.
- The International Training on Proposal Writing & Advocacy seminar was organized by ICA-AP under the framework partnership agreement between ICA and European Commission for a global development programme to benefit and advance the cooperative sector worldwide during 9 - 12 October, 2017 at NCUI, New Delhi. As many as 20 participants from cooperative organizations of India, Myanmar, Nepal, Palestine, the Kyrgyz Republic and Sri Lanka participated in the above seminar. Shri Rajeev Sharma, Deputy Director & Smt. Veena Sachdeva, Assistant Director NCUI were nominated by NCUI to participate in the above said programme.
- The CICTAB international programme on "Cooperative Business Model in Sri Lanka" was organized by the Centre for International Cooperation in Training & Agricultural Banking (CICTAB) in collaboration with National Institute of Cooperative Development (NICD), Sri Lanka from 27-30 November 2017 at Polgolla, Sri Lanka. Shri Ramesh Kaul, Deputy Director, NCUI was nominated to participate in the aforesaid programme.

Membership of the International Organisation

NCUI renewed its membership of the following international organisations :

- ☐ International Cooperative Alliance (ICA)
- ☐ The Network for Development of Agricultural Cooperatives in Asia (NEDAC)
- ☐ International Raiffeisen Union (IRU)
- ☐ Centre for International Cooperation and Training in Agricultural Banking (CICTAB)

Other Important Activities

♦ The 61st Annual Meeting of National

- Federation of University and Campus Cooperatives (NFUCA), Japan was organized in Tokyo on 16th 17th December 2017. A message from NCUI, highlighting the importance of university and campus cooperatives in India was prepared on the occasion and forwarded to NFUCA for display at the General Assembly in Tokyo.
- A two member delegation from the Institute for Development of Agriculture Cooperation in Asia (IDACA) headed by Mr. Toru Nakashima, Manager (Training Development), IDACA, Japan accompanied by Ms. Hiroko Tayama, Programme Coordinator, IDACA, Japan visited India from 12-17 February 2018 for follow-up of Guidance and Survey of the Exparticipants of ICA – Japan Training Course (a project financed by Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries MAFF of Government of Japan) held in IDACA during 2014 to 2017. The visit of the delegation was coordinated by Mr. K. Sethumadhavan, Advisor, ICA - AP and Deputy Director (IR) of NCUI. The followup guidance and survey was conducted at NCUI, New Delhi and RICM, Bengaluru to assess the impact of training and the action plan drafted by the participants for implementation after returning to India. NCUI arranged the visit of the team members to various successful cooperative organizations in India.
- ◆ After the resolution of Hanoi Asia Pacific Cooperative Ministers Conference, ICA –AP called on cooperatives in the Asia Pacific Region to pledge to contribute in achieving the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and report their progress at www.coopsfor2030.coop. NCUI made a pledge and the same was uploaded by ICA on the above web page / platform.

- The 47th Managing Committee and 20th General Council of CICTAB was held on 3rd March, 2017 at Delhi under the Chairmanship of the Secretary, Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare. The division under guidance of CICTAB Secretariat coordinated the various arrangements viz. stay, airport pickup, boarding, participation in the meeting etc.
- Member Survey 2018 of ICA Board Mandate has been studied and relevant quantitative and qualitative information has been compiled and filled up to complete the survey. The duly filled questionnaire for the Member Survey 2018 of ICA Board Mandate has been filled online on the https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/D6TBQMJ and a soft copy of the same has been also forwarded to ICA.

Member Services

The International Relations Division has been regularly attending to the requirements of all member organisations of NCUI and its affiliates by providing them up to date information. All the circulars regarding various programmes have been updated on NCUI web-site/ circulated to all members in time. Also nominations for international courses received from the member organisations have been processed and in case of selection all necessary support was extended. All necessary assistance has been provided to the representatives of the member organizations for participation in the international programmes/ events. NCUI supported the membership application of ULCCS and a brief of the society along with its annual turnover was forwarded to CICOPA for consideration. NCUI also supported the membership application of SEWA and recommended the application of SEWA for membership of CICOPA.

Chapter-8

Brief Reports of National Level Cooperative Organisations

INDIAN FARMERS FERTILISER COOPERATIVE LIMITED (IFFCO)

ndian Farmers Fertiliser Cooperative Limited (IFFCO), a national level Cooperative Society was registered as a Multi-Unit Cooperative Society on 3rd November, 1967, presently deemed to be registered under Multi State Cooperative Societies Act. 2002.

At present, IFFCO is wholly owned by the member cooperative societies. The present IFFCO Board is democratically elected as per Multi-State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002. The Board follows the "Code of Conduct" approved by the General Body and conducts its business responsibly. Governance in IFFCO is democratic, transparent and professionally managed.

IFFCO achieved production levels of 78.70 lakh MT fertilizer material during the year. In the field of marketing, the society achieved an impressive sale of 103.03 lakh MT fertilizers and recorded a turnover of Rs. 20787.55 crore in the current year. Its profit before tax stood at Rs. 1257.24 crore and its paid up share capital at Rs. 420.55 crore as on March 31, 2018. The total number of member shareholders (cooperative societies) of the society as on March 31, 2018 was 35,025.

IFFCO, in its efforts for ushering in rural prosperity has promoted Indian Farm Forestry Development Cooperative Ltd. (IFFDC), Cooperative Rural Development Trust. (CORDET), IFFCO Kisan Sewa Trust (IKST) and has organized various promotional programmes to generate awareness among farmers. IFFCO has also set up IFFCO Kisan Sanchar Limited (IKSL) to provide useful and relevant information through voice messages over mobile phones to its rural subscribers. It had launched a 'Save the Soil Campaign' in the year 2009, and continues to pursue it with great vigour. It lays great emphasis on soil rejuvenation and crop productivity enhancement by undertaking various activities.

Investments by IFFCO

- IFFCO has diversified into the field of general insurance and established a joint venture company and together with its associates holds 51% equity in the IFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Company Ltd. (IFFCO-TOKIO).
- IFFCO Kisan Sanchar Limited (IKSL), is a subsidiary of IFFCO which provides useful and relevant information through voice messages over mobile phones to its rural subscribers, to help enable them to make informed decisions.
- National Commodity and Derivatives
 Exchange Ltd. (NCDEX) is a leading nationwide commodity exchange. IFFCO holds
 10% in the total paid up equity share capital
 of NCDEX. It provides a world class
 technology platform to facilitate trading in
 commodity futures for a wide range of
 commodities.
- IFFCO holds an investment of Rs. 2.68 crore in Indian Potash Ltd. (IPL) with a shareholding of about 34% in the paid up share capital of IPL. IPL is primarily engaged in the trading of imported potassic, phosphatic and nitrogenous fertilisers. It has also diversified into the dairy business.
- IFFCO MC Crop Science Private limited (IFFCO-MC) is a joint venture of IFFCO with Mitsubishi Corporation, Japan. The company manufactures and markets quality agro chemicals. IFFCO holds 51% stake in the company
- Multi-Product SEZ is being developed in Nellore, Andhra Pradesh by IFFCO Kisan SEZ Limited (IKSEZ), a wholly owned subsidiary of IFFCO. Parts of land have been given on lease to various investors.
- IFFCO Kisan Bazar and Logistics Limited (IKBLL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of

- IFFCO. It is functioning as a special purpose vehicle for building, operating and maintaining the captive barge jetty at Kandla.
- IFFCO e-Bazar Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFFCO. The company aims at providing all agricultural inputs under one roof.
- Oman India Fertiliser Company (OMIFCO)
 is a joint venture company in Oman. IFFCO
 has invested an amount of Rs. 329 crore to
 acquire 25 percent equity stake.
- Kisan International Trading FZE (KIT) is a wholly owned subsidiary of IFFCO in Dubai. KIT was set up as an international trading arm of IFFCO primarily to handle imports, exports and logistics support for various finished fertilisers, fertiliser raw materials and intermediates to meet the demands of IFFCO's customers and manufacturing facilities in India.
- Jordan India Fertilizer Company (JIFCO), a joint venture between Indian Farmers Fertilizer Cooperative Limited (IFFCO) and

- Jordan Phosphate Mines Company (JPMC). IFFCO and its associates hold 52% equity in the joint venture.
- IFFCO holds 6.78% per cent equity in Industries Chimiques Du Senegal (ICS), Senegal which manufactures phosphoric acid for exports and phosphatic fertilisers for domestic consumption. ICS is a source of phosphoric acid for IFFCO's plant at Kandla.

Cooperative and Rural Development through various Initiatives

IFFCO follows corporate social responsibility norms through its promoted organisations / different programmes such as:

◆ IFFCO formed a charitable trust namely "IFFCO Kisan Sewa Trust" to provide relief and rehabilitation to the victims in the event of natural calamities. It is also undertaking other welfare programmes like providing critical medical attention to needy farmers. The Trust provided critical financial assistance of Rs. 107.88 lakh for the medical treatment of needy farmers in different

PERFORMANCE	HIGHLIGHTS
The following are the performance highl	lights of IFFCO for the year 2017-18
Production of Fertilisers	78.70 lakh MT
Urea Production	41.09 lakh MT
DAP Production	19.47 lakh MT
Production of NP/NPK/DAP/WSFs	37.62 lakh MT
Sales of Fertilisers	103.03 lakh MT
Sales of Urea	63.08 lakh MT
Sales of NP/NPK/DAP/WSFs	39.95 lakh MT
Fertiliser Despatches	102.33 lakh MT
Profit Before Tax	Rs. 1257.24 Crore
Profit After Tax	'Rs. 937.17 Crore
Turnover	Rs. 20,787.55 Crore
Highest Plant Productivity	1988 MT per employee
Marketing Productivity	9885 MT per employee
Composite Energy Consumption	5.455 Gcal/ MT of Urea

states. The Trust spent Rs. 21.58 lakh towards scholarships under the scheme "Shri Surinder Kumar Jakhar Scholarship" to the students belonging to the families of small and marginal farmers.

- ◆ Promoted a separate multi-state cooperative society named 'Indian Farm Forestry Development Cooperative Limited' (IFFDC) in 1993 with the prime objective of development of wasteland for tree plantation and enhancing socio-economic status of rural poor through sustainable natural resource management by collective action. IFFDC is implementing projects on livelihood and natural resource management, watershed projects and developed wadis (families) under the Agri-Horticulture Programme in various states.
- ♦ Cooperative Rural Development Trust (CORDET) has been promoted by IFFCO to provide practical training to farmers in various fields. CORDET conducted 306 training programmes benefiting 17,891 farmers including women from various states. CORDET, Phulpur and Kalol also provide free soil testing facilities through their soil testing laboratories to the farmers and analyzed 95104 soil samples during the year 2017-18.
- ◆ Promotional Programmes: Various promotional and extension programmes were organized with focus primarily on improving soil health, promoting balanced and integrated use of fertilizers to improve N:P:K consumption ratio, educating farmers about the latest agro technology so as to enhance crop productivity through efficient use of fertilizers, water conservation and thereby promoting sustainable agriculture.
- ◆ Save the Soil Campaign IFFCO had launched 'Save the Soil Campaign' in the year 2009, and continues to pursue it with great vigour. It emphasizes on soil rejuvenation and crop productivity enhancement by undertaking various activities. It also assisted farmers by providing financial assistance for installation of bio-gas units. It promoted farm mechanization by supplying farm implements

through cooperatives. It also gave thrust on development of water resources by undertaking rejuvenation of water bodies, check dam, lift irrigation, rain water harvesting etc. All these efforts helped in improving soil health and improving crop yield for sustainable agriculture. This is a farsighted pioneering effort by IFFCO for gaining recognition all over the country.

KRISHAK BHARTI COOPERATIVE LTD. (KRIBHCO)

Krishak Bharati Cooperative Limited (KRIBHCO), a national level multi state cooperative society, was incorporated on April 17, 1980 and is presently registered under Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002. The main objective of the society is to produce and distribute quality agriculture inputs mainly chemical fertilizers, seeds, bio fertilizers through cooperatives and institutional agencies across the nation.

The financial year 2017 -18 was another challenging year witnessed by the fertilizer industry. The society's plants at Hazira, Surat in their 32nd year of commercial production achieved the production of 13.26 lakh MT ammonia & 22.54 lakh MT urea which corresponds to a post revamp capacity utilization of 106.27 % for ammonia and 102.72% for urea. In addition, the society produced 5.14 lakh liters of liquid bio-fertilizer, 5455 thousand NM3 liquid argon and 369 thousand quintals of certified seeds.

The total membership of KRIBHCO consists of 9467 cooperatives societies, and the paid up share capital of the society was Rs.389.73 crores as on 31st March, 2018. The Board of Directors of KRIBHCO have recommended 18% dividend on the paid up share capital this year. The society has posted a pre tax profit of Rs. 162.56 crore. The net worth of KRIBHCO has increased from Rs. 3,305.20 crore in FY 2016-17 to Rs.3,413.05 crore as on 31st March, 2018.

KRIBHCO continued to maintain the second highest market share of urea sales in the country and has achieved 44.03 Lakh MT urea sales during the year. It consisted of sales of 22.06 lakh MT of KRIBHCO urea, 11.98 lakh of OMIFCO

urea, 9.07 lakh MT of KFL urea and 0.92 lakh MT of government account urea during the year. In order to promote balanced fertilization, the society continued to market imported DAP, NPK, NPS, SSP etc. this year also. The society sold 3.68 lakh MT of imported DAP, 0.03 LMT of NPK, 0.58 lakh MT of NPS and 0.03 lakh MT of SSP. Apart from the above, the society also sold 36,159 MT of surplus ammonia and 55.04 Lakh NM3 liquid argon during the year.

The society successfully completed the 13th consecutive year of handling and marketing of OMIFCO urea under the agreement with Department of Fertilizers, Government of India. During the year 2017-18, 23 vessels containing 10.04 lakh MT granular urea were handled at seven Indian ports. The society has so far handled 349 vessels containing 123.53 lakh MT OMIFCO urea since inception of imports from OMIFCO, Oman.

The seed multiplication programme of the society was initiated in the year 1990-91 to provide high quality seed of major crops to farmers. It has set up 17 modern seed processing plants located in various states. During 2017-18, the society produced 3.69 lakh qtls and sold 3.55 lakh qtls of certified seed of various crops.

Hybrid seed has been playing an important role in Indian agriculture for maximizing yield. During the year 2017-18, the society marketed 98,534 packets of Bt. cotton, 4,097.36 quintals of hybrid maize, 203.19 quintals of paddy hybrid, 3436.39 quintals of paddy research and 50.25 quintals of hybrid bajra seeds.

The society is presently producing nine types of bacterial strains of bio-fertilizers. During the year 2017-18, the society produced 5.14 Lakh litres of liquid bio-fertilizers and successfully sold 5.46 lakh litres keeping in view the appreciable response of its longer shelf life, survival at higher temperatures, easy application and low prices.

During the financial year, the society has also sold 20524.15 MT of city compost to improve the organic matter in soil. The society is operating 581 own outlets known as Krishak Bharti Sewa Kendras (KBSK) in the states of Uttar Pradesh, Haryana and Punjab. These centres fulfil twin

objective of sales and service under one roof at the farmer's doorstep.

The society, having a dedicated team of agriculture professionals, continued its efforts towards transfer of latest farm technology to the farming community. The society organized over 5543 programmes such as farmer meetings, field demonstrations, field days/crop shows, cooperative conferences, and group discussions etc., benefiting 6.04 lakh farmers and cooperative officials in its area of operation. The society also made available 17.08 lakh technical folders in regional languages on KRIBHCO products to farmers and cooperatives as back-up knowledge.

'KRIBHCO Krishi Pramarsh Kendra' continues to provide free consultancy on farm-related issues. The Pramarsh Kendra tested 3347 soil samples for micro-nutrients, 3371 samples for macro-nutrients collected from 15 states. For inclusive development of cooperatives, the society adopted 106 cooperative societies, and trained 19468 cooperative managers in 173 cooperative conferences. The society also organized 62 health campaigns for human and livestock development. 36 rural sports programmes, and 34 income generation programmes were also organised.

KRIBHCO Sahakarita Awards for the year 2016-17 were presented to two eminent cooperators in its 37th AGM held on September 22, 2017. KRIBHCO Sahakarita Shiromani Award was conferred on Shri Ajaybhai Haribhai Patel from Gujarat and KRIBHCO Sahakarita Vibhushan Award was conferred on Shri Raghbir from Punjab for their contribution towards development of the cooperative movement.

Investments/Joint ventures/Subsidiaries/ others

- Oman India Fertilizer Company SAOC(OMIFCO)
- KRIBHCO Fertilizers Limited (KFL) formerly KRIBHCO Shyam Fertilizers Ltd. (KSFL)
- Kribhco Infrastructure Ltd. (KRIL)
- Gujarat State Energy Generation Ltd. (GSEG)
- Indian Commodity Exchange (ICEX)

- Nagarjuna Oil Refinery Ltd. (NORL)
- Nagarjuna Fertilizers and Chemicals Ltd. (NFCL)

The Society has received the following awards and prizes during the year:

- Best Production Performance Award for Nitrogenous Plant by FAI
- Second best video film Award of FAI on its film 'Aa Ab Laut Chalen'
- 14th National Award for Excellence in Cost Management 2016 under the category of Private Manufacturing- Mega by Institute of Cost Accountants of India.

NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVE MARKETING FEDERATION OF INDIA LTD. (NAFED)

During the year 2016-17, NAFED had procured a quantity of 13.27 lakh MT of pulses valuing Rs. 6820.00 crore under PSS / PSF and 2.22 lakh MT of oilseeds valuing Rs. 947.00 crore under PSS, benefiting around 8.25 lakh farmers. During the year 2017-18, NAFED has procured a quantity of 20.09 lakh MT of pulses valued at Rs. 10572.26 crore and 11.83 lakh MT of oilseeds worth Rs. 5126.49 crore under PSS & PSF, benefiting around 20.00 lakh farmers.

With a view to augment business activities of Nafed, to generate additional revenue and to establish its presence in the global market, NAFED created its International Trade Division and exported various agri-commodities. During the visit of VVIPs of Govt. of India to several developing / under developed countries, humanitarian assistance of various food / house hold goods is announced. Recognizing NAFED's competence and capability to supply such items as per prescribed quality parameters and time schedule. during 2017-18, the Ministry of External Affairs, Government of India entrusted NAFED with the task of arranging supplies of various agricommodities / house hold items to several countries as humanitarian aid. The supplies were successfully delivered to the complete satisfaction of Government of India and the importing countries. Relief commodity quantity valued at Rs.1021.82 lakh was supplied to Bangladesh, Myanmar and Ethiopia from September 2017 till February, 2018.

During the years 2015-16 and 2016-17 NAFED had created a national buffer of around 20 lakh MTs of different pulses at the instance of the Government of India under the Price Stabilisation Fund (PSF) of the Department of Consumers Affairs, Govt, of India by procuring raw pulses from the farmers directly at remunerative prices. This also helped to stabilise the prices of pulses in the country and protected the interests of consumers. During 2017-18, the Government of India inter-alia decided to dispose off the stocks by supplying milled pulses to Indian Army, central paramilitary forces and state governments to meet their requirements of pulses under their different schemes i.e. MDM, PDS, ICDS etc through NAFED. During the year, NAFED has supplied pulses of 14600 MTs to Army, 604.32 MTs to CPMFs, 77534.5 MTs under PDS scheme and 6146.7 under MDM scheme.

NAFED has been designated as a central agency for supply of pulses out of national buffer under the MDM and ICDS schemes all over India, and therefore NAFED is expected to supply around 5 lakh MTs of milled pulses under these schemes to all the states, during 2018-19. In order to complete the above tasks timely and effectively, NAFED has empanelled more than 200 millers across India for milling, packaging and delivery to different institutions. NAFED has put in place a very transparent online system for effective management of the above tasks.

In order to provide retail grocery items to the consumers at competitive rates, Nafed is running four outlets and five franchisee shops in Delhi and two in Shimla in the name of NAFED Bazaar. Turnover of grocery items has been increased from 16.52 crore in the year 2016-17 to Rs 18.88 crore in the year 2017-18 and a profit of Rs 1.50 crores was earned in 2017-18. One of the most important consumer products is NAFED Brand Tea, available in three variants and tea bags in nine flavours, while NAFED tea is one of the tastiest flavored tea of India.

NAFED has its own blending and packaging unit at Guwahati. NAFED has sold 200 MT tea in

the year 2017-18. In 2017-18 NAFED has undertaken business of eggs of Rs 231.23 lakh and earned a profit of Rs 26.06 lakh. Besides direct retailing, NAFED is also supplying grocery and other items to prestigious institutions in the country including reputed hospitals, public sector undertakings, schools, hostels etc. NAFED has planned to expand retail marketing on all India basis by appointing distributors/ state level stockists.

NATIONAL COOPERATIVE DAIRY FEDERATION OF INDIA LTD. (NCDFI)

During the year 2017-18, NCDFI continued to coordinate sale of milk and milk products to Institutions; facilitated the trading of dairy commodities, cattle feed ingredients, packing material, chemicals and sugar through NCDFI eMarket; and worked for genetic improvement. NCDFI also continued to utilize part of its surplus in developmental activities.

NCDFI is coordinating sale of milk and milk products to Institutions such as Ministry of Defence (MoD), Indo-Tibetan Border Police (ITBP) and Indian Railway Catering and Tourism Corporation (IRCTC). During the year, NCDFI coordinated supplies of milk and milk products to 228 army supply depots and 33 units of Indian Air Force and Indian Naval Ship under the Ministry of Defence. Further, requirement of Indo-Tibetan Border Police is also being met by the member cooperatives of the NCDFI. 93 cooperative dairies spread across the country are participating in milk and milk products supply. Contracts concluded during the year are worth of Rs. 1,095 crores

Indian Railway Catering and Tourism Corporation (IRCTC) entered into an agreement with the NCDFI in July 2009 to procure milk and milk products of NCDFI member organizations. The agreement is being extended periodically since. During the year, many member organizations have supplied milk and milk products to IRCTC base kitchens and pantry cars in Rajdhani / Shatabdi Express trains under this arrangement.

Adoption of technology and its application to ensure better returns to dairy cooperatives, and in turn to milk producers, has been the prime focus

of NCDFI. One such initiative was NCDFI eMarket, which immensely benefitted dairy cooperatives across the country. With e-auction of dairy commodities, the platform has created a benchmark for market prices at national level. Further, services are extended for procurement of cattle feed ingredients, packing material, chemicals and sugar.

During the year, 13,843 MT SMP, 2,761 MT Butter, 1,200 MT WMP and 5 MT ghee were traded at NCDFI eMarket through 'Forward Auctions' and 'Auction Sale'. Further, reverse auction (Dairy) was introduced on May 13, 2017 to meet the requirement of buyers. Through these auctions, 805 MT WMP, 900 MT SMP and 354 MT butter were transacted during the year.

Brands that participated in the NCDFI eMarket auctions were— Aavin, Amrut, Amul, Devbhog, Gokul, Maahi, Mahanand, Medha, Mother Dairy, Nandini, Parag, Rajhans, Sagar, Saras, Sudha, Verka, Vikas, Vita and Warana. Though both private and cooperatives are registered members on the portal, it is only the cooperatives which are allowed to sell dairy commodities on the portal.

NCDFI eMarket facilitates the procurement of all required agricultural commodities and minerals for cattle feed plants. During the year, 24 cooperative cattle feed plants in the states of Andhra Pradesh, Gujarat, Karnataka, Kerala, Orissa, Rajasthan, Tamilnadu and Telangana have procured 2,49,672 MT maize, 87,622 MT DORB and 14,150 MT rice polish, apart from other ingredients.

NCDFI eMarket extended its services to packing material on August 10, 2017 to meet the requirement of cattle feed and dairy plants. During the year, Tamilnadu Cooperative Milk Producers' Federation and Telangana State Dairy Development Cooperative Federation have procured packing material worth Rs.12 crores through the NCDFI eMarket.

NCDFI eMarket extended its services to chemicals on February 28, 2018 to facilitate the purchase of dairy plants. These products include bleaching powder, caustic soda, washing soda, nitric acid, idophor, nuvan, etc. During the year,

Telangana State Dairy Development Cooperative Federation procured chemicals through the NCDFI eMarket. NCDFI eMarket extended its services to sugar on March 19, 2018 to meet the requirement of Mother Dairy, Calcutta and other dairies are also expected to join shortly.

During the year, total business transacted at NCDFI eMarket was Rs. 903 crores consisting of dairy commodities worth Rs. 374 crores, cattle feed ingredients worth Rs. 516 crores, packing material worth Rs. 12 crores and chemicals worth Rs. 1 crore.

To provide better access to good quality semen doses to milk producers in the country, NCDFI partnered with NDDB dairy services for distribution of frozen semen Doses (FSDs) produced by Sabarmati Ashram Gaushala (Gujarat), Animal Breeding Centre (Uttar Pradesh), Alamadhi Semen Station (Tamilnadu), Rohtak Semen Station (Haryana) and Rahuri Semen Station (Maharashtra). These farms are either owned or managed by NDDB dairy services. These farms are equipped with the most modern semen production stations in the country, with the most sophisticated semen processing equipment to produce frozen semen, adhering to stringent quality control tests. The semen straws produced by these farms are marketed under the common brand name 'SAG' which stands for Superior Animal Genetics. During the year 2017-18, combined sale from all these semen stations was 2.86 crore FSDs valued at Rs. 59 crores.

During the year 2017-18, total business transacted by the NCDFI was Rs.2,057 crores which is 33.31% higher as compared to the previous year. This includes milk and milk product sales to institutions worth Rs. 1,095 crores, NCDFI eMarket transactions worth Rs. 903 crores and frozen semen doses sale of Rs. 59 crores.

Being an apex body of dairy cooperatives, NCDFI foresees the requirement to utilize part of its surplus in spreading awareness on topics such as clean milk programs, cooperative governance, productivity of animals, artificial insemination, ration balancing, etc. and to train manpower to enhance their performance and productivity. For this purpose, NCDFI is organising AI technician meets, putting up stalls at farmer fairs, and also

conducting training programmes, farmer meets, seminars, workshops and management development programmes. To promote artificial insemination, NCDFI in coordination with NDDB dairy services organized 84 AI technician meets in which 4,046 technicians from various parts of the country participated.

To spread awareness regarding Artificial Insemination, NCDFI organized stalls at 14 different farmer fairs in the states of Bihar, Haryana, Kerala, Maharashtra, Punjab, Rajasthan, Tamilnadu and Uttar Pradesh. In coordination with National Dairy Development Board, five days AI Refresher programme for technicians of Berhampur Milk Union was arranged at Eastern Regional Demonstration and Training Centre (RDTC), Siliguri. Further, 30 progressive farmers from Cuttack Milk Union were trained in 'Dairy Animal Management' at RDTC.

NCDFI also organized one day workshops for the chairmen and secretaries of dairy societies in coordination with member cooperatives. Topics such as cooperative governance, artificial insemination, productivity of animals and ration balancing were covered by experts from the field. The first such workshop was organized at Gangtok in collaboration with Sikkim Cooperative Milk Producers' Union, which was attended by about 1,200 participants. This workshop was organized on the occasion of National Milk Day, November 26, 2017 as a tribute to Dr Verghese Kurien on his 96th Birth Anniversary. Shri Pawan Chamling, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Government of Sikkim graced the occasion as the Chief Guest.

The Second workshop was organized on December 29, 2017 at Raipur, in collaboration with Chhattisgarh State Cooperative Dairy Federation, which was attended by about 250 participants.

During the year NCDFI sponsored two Management Development Programs (MDPs) of three days each, for officers of dairy cooperatives at the Institute of Rural Management, Anand (IRMA). A total of 46 officers of dairy cooperatives spread across the country attended these MDPs. While first MDP was for general managers of cattle feed plants and purchase departments, the second MDP was for entry level officers working at various member cooperatives.

NATIONAL COOPERATIVE HOUSING FEDERATION OF INDIA (NCHF)

CHF made efforts to promote ACHFs in those states where such organizations do not exist, and where ACHFs are comparatively weak. The Telangana State Cooperative Housing Societies Federation (Telangana Housefed) became a member of NCHF. Hon'ble Chief Ministers of various states were requested to direct their concerned departments to designate ACHFs as one of the implementing agencies under Prime Minister Awas Yojana-'Housing for All' (PMAY-HFA), especially promotion of affordable housing for weaker sections through credit linked subsidy scheme (CLSS). Scheme guidelines for PMAY-HFA (Urban) were also circulated to all members of the Board of Directors and member federations of NCHF. The Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) was requested to sanction fresh loans and grant repayment reschedulements to concerned ACHFs. Necessary guidance was also provided to the concerned ACHFs in preparing repayment re-schedulement proposal of LIC loans. The LIC approved the one time settlement proposal of Gujarat House Corporation.

A memorandum was sent to the Chairman, LIC requesting him to allow Pondicherry Housefed to settle the principal of its loan along with interest and reschedule the overdue amount as fresh loan to them. Another memorandum was sent to the Chairman, LIC requesting him to consider the repayment reschedulement/one time settlement proposal of Haryana Housefed favourably. A memorandum was sent to the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the National Housing Bank (NHB) requesting it to sanction refinance assistance of Rs.30.00 crore to West Bengal Housefed. Information/data on borrowings, lending operations, housing loans disbursed and construction/financing of housing units by ACHFs during 2016-17, was also sent to the NHB for including in their annual publication.

The Registrars of Cooperative Societies (RCS) of concerned states were requested to advise housing cooperatives to incorporate provisions for structural audit in their bye-laws or to issue orders in this regard.

Policy for one time settlement of chronic defaulters/overdues in H.P. Housefed and model bye-laws of housing cooperatives were sent to Haryana Housefed. The details of the one time settlement scheme adopted in the past by the ACHFs of Haryana, H.P. and Goa were sent to Chhattisgarh Housefed. Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Rules notified by state governments of Andhra Pradesh, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Punjab and Uttar Pradesh were sent to Karnataka Housefed. Compilation of information relating to stamp duty & registration fees prescribed by various state governments/union territories was sent to M.P. Housefed.

The Maharashtra State Cooperative Council (MSCC) has formed the Maharashtra State Cooperative Amendment Committee (MSCAC). A copy each of the Model Law on Housing Cooperatives and Separate Chapter on Housing Cooperatives in the Cooperative Societies Acts of Delhi, Goa, J&K, M.P. and West Bengal were sent to the MSCAC with a request to consider the matter for adopting the Model Law with requisite amendments, if necessary as per local conditions or including a separate chapter on special provisions for housing cooperatives in the Cooperative Law of Maharashtra. The President (State Minister Rank) of MSCC while acknowledging the letter, stated that the useful material will help them in drafting a separate chapter on housing cooperatives in their State Cooperative Act.

NCHF was represented in various meetings/ conferences convened by the Government of India, state governments, cooperatives and other concerned organizations.

As a part of the Government's initiative to promote digital payments, necessary efforts were made to increase the digital transactions in the operations of NCHF.

Necessary support and cooperation was provided to Member ACHFs on various issues. Important publications/documents were also circulated to them at regular intervals.

Education, Training and Research

A technical training programme for the senior personnel of housing cooperatives was organized

from 22-25th June, 2017 at Dehradun in collaboration with Institute of Cooperative Management (ICM). In all, 26 participants from seven states attended the training programme.

Conferences/Seminars/Study Visits

NCHF in collaboration with Pondicherry State Cooperative Housing Federation organised a study visit of the Directors of NCHF to the Pondicherry Cooperative Building Centre at Puducherry on 27.04.2017 so as to facilitate them to get 1st hand information about the functioning of the Building Centre. Another study visit for the participants of NCHF technical training programme along with officers of NCHF was organised to a good working housing cooperative namely Sainik Cooperative Housing Society at Dehradun on 24.06.2017. Similarly, NCHF in collaboration with Pune District Cooperative Housing Federation organized a study visit of the Directors of NCHF to the Vardhamanpura Cooperative Housing Society at Pune on 27.01.2018 which boasts of well developed amenities and community facilities available for its members.

The 64th All India Cooperative Week was celebrated from 14-20th November, 2017 on the theme, 'Empowering people through Digitalization of Cooperatives'. To commemorate Cooperative Week Celebrations-2017, NCHF brought out a special issue of 'NCHF Bulletin' which was released by Dr.Ashish Kumar Bhutani, Joint Secretary (Cooperation), Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers' Welfare at the inaugural function of the Cooperative Week celebrations organized by NCUI on 14th November, 2017 at New Delhi.

Publications

NCHF has been bringing out various publications from time to time. During the year 2017-18, it brought out various publications—Monthly journal 'NCHF Bulletin' (including special issues on World Habitat Day and Cooperative Week Celebrations), English-Hindi Dictionary; Telephone Directory of NCHF; Bye-laws of NCHF; Compilation of Bye-laws of ACHFs; Annual Report and Audit Report.

Implementation of Rajbhasha (Hindi) In NCHF Office

Articles and news items in Hindi on

cooperative housing and related fields were published in 'NCHF Bulletin' regularly; Hindi Diwas was celebrated on 14th September, 2017; Annual Report, Audit Report for 2016-17 and Citizen Charter of NCHF were prepared in Hindi; meetings of Rajbhasha Karyanavayan Samiti & Hindi workshops were held regularly; Letterheads, envelopes, vouchers, etc. were printed in Hindi; Quarterly/annual progress reports on the use of Rajbhasha, Hindi in NCHF were sent to the Ministry of HUA; and efforts were made to procure more Hindi books, Hindi section on the web-site was updated & contents in Hindi were uploaded on the web-site alongwith contents in English simultaneously.

Drafting and Evidence Sub-Committee of the Committee of Parliament on Official Language (CPOL) had discussions with the Chairman of Town Official Language Implementation Committee (TOLIC) South Delhi-I and the Heads of some of its member organisations at Delhi on 31.08.2017.

The Chief Executive, NCHF attended the meeting of Hindi Salahkar Samiti of the Ministry of HUA on 16.01.2018 at New Delhi which was chaired by the Hon'ble Union Minister of State (I/C) for Housing and Urban Affairs.

World Habitat Day Celebrations

The Government of India in the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (HUA) organized a programme to celebrate the World Habitat Day on 5th October, 2017 at New Delhi which was inaugurated by Shri Hardeep Singh Puri, Hon'ble Union Minister of State (I/C) for Housing and Urban Affairs. To commemorate World Habitat Day celebrations, NCHF brought out a special issue of 'NCHF Bulletin' which was released by Shri Hardeep Singh Puri, Hon'ble Minister of State (I/C) for HUA in the presence of Shri Durga Shanker Mishra, Secretary, Ministry of HUA and representatives of UN-Habitat. The above publication was circulated among the participants at the World Habitat Day function.

Updating of NCHF Web-site

NCHF Web-site (www.nchfindia.net) was updated regularly during the period under report. For the benefit of members of housing

cooperatives and others concerned, judgements of Supreme Court pertaining to housing cooperatives/development authorities/housing boards were included in NCHF Bulletin, all issues of which (April, 2017 to March, 2018) were uploaded on the web-site. The web-site of NCHF has been made bilingual having information both in Hindi and English.

Documentation Centre

The Documentation Centre on cooperative housing at NCHF Secretariat was further strengthened by procuring various useful publications, reports etc. During the period under reference, a total of 35 books were added. This documentation centre has a collection of 1550 documents/books as on 31st March, 2018.

Study Visits To NCHF Secretariat

The following trainees/students visited NCHF Secretariat during the period under reference.

- A Group of three students from KIIT University School of Law, Bhubaneswar, Odisha undergoing internship training in the National Cooperative Union of India (NCUI) made a study visit on 13th June, 2017.
- A Group of 17 final year students of M.Com (Cooperative Management)/B.Com (Cooperation) from Tranquebar Bishop Manikam Lutheran College (TBMLC), Tamil Nadu made an observation Study Visit on 4th September, 2017 as a part of their practical training in various types of cooperatives at state and national level.
- A Group of nine students from Central University of Haryana (CUH), Mahendergarh came for an observation study visit on 9th February, 2018 as a part of their practical training in connection with Diploma in Cooperative Management.
- A group of three students of Master of Planning in the Housing Department of the School of Planning and Architecture, New Delhi made a study visit on 17th February, 2018 in connection with their project on preparing housing strategy of Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu.

 A Group of 36 students of the Diploma in Cooperative Management from the Centre for Studies in Rural Management (CSRM), Gujarat Vidyapith, Randheja, Gandhinagar undergoing a sensitization programme at the National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE) came for an observation study visit to NCHF on 23rd February, 2018 as a part of their course curriculum.

Miscellaneous

- Citizen charter of NCHF was updated and translated in Hindi. Updated citizen charter in Hindi & English was uploaded on the website of NCHF and also sent to the Ministry of HUA.
- Details of various events/programmes organized or planned by the international cooperatives, housing and related organizations were circulated to members of the Board of Directors of NCHF and the Managing Directors of ACHFs.
- A compilation of orders Issued by the Registrars of Cooperative Societies (RCS) in the states of Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Delhi, Goa, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu & Kashmir, Kerala, Meghalaya, Puducherry, Rajasthan and Uttarakhand and the extracts from the model bye-laws of housing cooperatives in Maharashtra regarding provisions for structural audit in the bye-laws of housing cooperatives was sent to the RCS of Bihar with a request to issue such orders. The above compilation was also sent to the ACHF of Delhi.
- ◆ Shri N.S. Mehara, Chief Executive, NCHF attended an interactive meeting at NCUI on 12.4.2017 in which the representatives of a delegation from All China Federation of Supply & Marketing Cooperatives were present. He also briefed the delegates of 22nd Diploma Course in Cooperative Education and Development organized by NCCE.
- Shri S.N. Sharma, MLA, Chairman, Shri R.V.
 Gaigole, Vice-Chairman and some directors of NCHF attended the Symposium on 'Cooperatives and Sustainable Development

Goals: Member's Participation' organised by the International Cooperative Alliance-Asia-Pacific (ICA-AP) in collaboration with the NCUI on 20th September, 2017 at New Delhi.

- A status paper on 'Cooperative Housing Movement in India-Problems & Prospects' by Shri N.S. Mehara, Chief Executive, NCHF was published in the Souvenir brought out by the NCUI on the occasion of Sahakar Sammelan Birth Centenary of Laxmanrao Inamdar.
- ◆ The managing directors of ACHFs were requested to send photographs of the cooperative housing projects/complexes completed or under construction in their respective states for inclusion in the 'National Album' maintained by NCHF Secretariat for giving publicity to such projects. They were also requested to send brief note on their achievements and Best Practices followed/ adopted by them for publishing in NCHF Bulletin.
- ♦ Shri M.Ramu, Chairman, The Royal Lands & Nest Cooperative Housing Society, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, visited NCHF Secretariat on 11.07.2017 and discussed with the Chief Executive, NCHF about their progress, proposed projects and funding requirement. Shri A.Kishan Rao, Director, Telangana Housefed visited NCHF Secretariat on 17.07.2017 and discussed with the Chief Executive, NCHF about membership and development of housing cooperatives in the State of Telangana.
- Representatives of the NH Bank, a subsidiary of the National Agricultural Cooperative Federation (NACF), South Korea visited NCHF Secretariat on 13.02.2018 and discussed with the Chief Executive, NCHF the possibilities of collaboration regarding improvement of old houses in rural areas.
- Member ACHFs and primary housing cooperatives were requested to cover their housing projects under the 'Standard Fire and Special Perils Policy' through NCHF at reduced premium. On request, Supreme Court/High Court judgements were sent to primary housing cooperatives and others

- concerned. Necessary guidance was also provided to housing cooperatives.
- Vigilance Awareness Week was observed in NCHF Secretariat from 30th October-4th November, 2017. Similarly, Swachhta Pakhwada was observed and cleanliness drive was undertaken in the office premises of NCHF during 16-30th November, 2017.
- A brief note on the activities and achievements of NCHF up to November, 2017 was prepared and sent to the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (HUA) for inclusion in their Annual Report for the year 2017-18. A brief about NCHF for uploading on their web-site and material for inclusion in the Reference Annual India-2018 was sent to the Ministry. Further, as directed by the Ministry of HUA, the 'Sadbhavana Day Pledge' was administered to the staff of NCHF on 18.08.2017. Earlier, the Anti Terrorism Day' pledge taking ceremony was also performed in NCHF Secretariat on 19.05.2017. Similarly, 'Rashtriya Ekta Diwas Pledge' was taken by employees of NCHF on 31.10.2017.

NATIONAL FEDERATION OF URBAN COOPERATIVE BANKS & CREDIT SOCIETIES LTD. (NAFCUB)

he National Federation of Urban Cooperative Banks and Credit Societies Ltd. (NAFCUB) is the apex level promotional body of urban cooperative banks and credit societies in the country. As on 31st March 2017 there were 1562 urban cooperative banks out of which 54 were scheduled Banks including 31 multi-state urban banks, 23 single state multi-state cooperative banks and 1508 non scheduled banks out of which there were 20 State UCBs and 1488 single state UCBs.

As on 31st March 2018 the total membership is 1695 out of which 1000 urban cooperative banks including 54 scheduled cooperative banks and 75 mahila urban cooperative banks and 673 cooperative credit societies are members of NAFCUB There are 22 state federations/associations in the urban cooperative credit sector and all are members of the NationalFederation.

The main source of the finance is grants from the Ministry of Agriculture and other sources are—annual membership fee from member-institutions, admission fee, income from publications and training programme, study tours, conferences and seminars.

Activities of NAFCUB during 2017-18

During the year NAFCUB remained active in the promotion and development of urban cooperative credit sector. A few of the major activities of the federation during the year are as under:

RBI College Advisory Committee Meeting

The 56th Meeting of College Advisory Committee of CAB was held on April 07, 2017 at Pune to review the activities and add new subjects in the training courses. The Chief Executive of NAFCUB attended the meeting and suggested that low cost programmes for small and weak banks may be organized by CAB besides having more programmes on digital banking. He also suggested the introduction of Diploma courses in cooperative banking for employees of cooperative banks and also for fresh graduates who intend to join cooperative banks.

33rd Meeting of Standing Advisory Committee (SAC) of RBI on Urban Cooperative Banks

Standing Advisory Committee (SAC) Meeting is a regular feature which is held annually to discuss the issues concerning the urban cooperative banks. Deputy Governor Reserve Bank of India is the chairman of the Standing Advisory Committee, and both Centre and state government nominees of the cooperative deptt. and some of the urban cooperative banks are invited to attend the meeting. NAFCUB and major federations of urban cooperative banks are permanent members of the Standing Advisory Committee.

During the year, the 33rd Standing Advisory Committee meeting, chaired by Shri N. S. Vishwanthan, Deputy Governor Reserve Bank of India was held at the Central Office of the Reserve Bank of India on 5th May 2017, in which major issues concerning the sector were discussed. NAFCUB President attended the meeting.

Meeting with the Joint Parliamentary Committee on FRDI Bill 2017

A NAFCUB delegation comprising of the Officiating President Sh. Ram Babu Shandilya, Sh. V.V. Anaskar, Sh. Jyotindra Mehta, Sh. D. Krishna and Shri Subhash Gupta met members of the Joint Parliamentary Committee on Financial Resolution and Deposit Insurance (FRDI) Bill 2017, on Friday, January 12, 2018 at New Delhi and presented the views of the urban cooperative banking sector on FRDI Bill before the Committee.

Pre Budget Submission To the Hon'ble Union **Finance Minister**

NAFCUB has submitted some of the following important issues concerning urban cooperative banks to the Hon'ble Union Finance Minister as part of the Pre-Budget Submission for the year 2018-19:

- Deletion of Sec.80(P)(4) & restoration of tax benefits under Sec.80(P)(2)(a)(1) of Income Tax Act 1961
- Sec.80(c)(xxi) of the Income Tax Act 1961 and inclusion of deposits with non-scheduled cooperative banks for eligibility
- Extension of jurisdiction of debt recovery tribunals to hear the cases of recoveries of cooperative banks debts
- Loans to directors of UCB and their relatives

Submission of Report on the formation of the National Level Umbrella Organization for UCBs

Sh. R. B. Shandilya, Officiating President NAFCUB, along with Sh. V. V. Anaskar, Vice President, Sh. Jyotindra Mehta, Director, Sh. Subhash Gupta, Chief Executive and Sh. D. Krishna, former CE and Member Steering Committee, called on Sh. N. S. Vishwanathan, Dy. Governor Reserve Bank of India and presented NAFCUB's Report of Steering Committee on the Formation of Umbrella Organisation for the Urban Cooperative Banking Sector. Presenting the Report, Sh. Shandilya said that it was a complete and comprehensive report and it had taken into account all the developments on the subject so far. He also said that the Committee had been in

interaction with the RBI until 26/2/2018 on a continuous basis while structuring the Report.

Sh. Vishwanathan said that RBI was very much interested in having an UO right from the beginning and had constituted a Working Group and two Committees to go into the issue. It would be ready to provide all the regulatory support needed for its formation.

H.R. Initiatives

During the year 2017-18, the Federation organised five seminars / workshops / round tables of CEOs on various important topics / issues concerning the sector. The Federation organised a Seminar on "Maximization of returns on SLR and other Investment, Digital Technology for Urban Cooperative Banks and Credit Societies of M.P. and Chhattisgarh" at Bhopal on 26th May 2017. A Seminar on "Digital Banking and Challenges before Urban Cooperative Banks and Credit Societies" was organised at Kodaikanal (TN) on 27th & 28th August 2017, which was attended by over 100 delegates of urban cooperative banks and credit Societies from all over country. The seminar was inaugurated by Sh. R. Nandkumar Palani, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, IFTAS who was the Chief Guest and key speaker at the Seminar. Sh. Ram Babu Shandilya, Officiating President presided over the Seminar. NAFCUB, on the sidelines of 'National Cooperative Banking Summit' organized by Banking Frontiers on 7th September 2017 at Jaipur with its theme "Transform to Perform", organised a Round Table of CEOs of urban cooperative banks to discuss the topic of "Transform into Digital Banking World" which was attended by over 200 delegates from various urban cooperative banks of the country present in the summit.

As part of the 64th All India Cooperative Week celebrations, a Seminar on "Financial Inclusion and Cashless Payments for UCBs and Credit Societies" was organized on 18th November 2018 at Delhi, which was attended by around 100 delegates of various urban cooperative banks and credit societies of northern states. A workshop on issues relating to income tax for multi-state urban cooperative credit societies was organised on 29th January 2018 in

collaboration with NCUI to discuss the income tax and other related Issues concerning cooperative societies especially those of multi-state cooperative credit societies. More than 60 representatives belonging to urban cooperative credit societies from Gujarat, Maharashtra, Karnataka, Odisha etc. attended the workshop.

Training Programme

Development of human resources of urban cooperative banks and credit societies is the main activity of the NAFCUB. During the year NAFCUB conducted 19 training programmes for urban cooperative banks and credit societies in collaboration with National level training institutions. 4 programmes were conducted with the Reserve Bank of India, College of Agricultural Banking (CAB), Pune, 7 programmes with VAMNICOM, Pune, and 9 programmes with National Centre for Cooperative Education, New Delhi.

Publications

The Federation is regularly publishing two of its flagship publications (i) quarterly journal "Urban Credit" and (ii) fortnightly newsletter "Coop Banking". Both these publications are very popular with subscribers and contain useful reading material.

NATIONAL FEDERATION OF COOPERATIVE SUGAR FACTORIES LTD. (NFCSF)

ince the establishment of the National Federation of Cooperative Sugar Factories Limited in December 2, 1960, it has been a constant endeavour of NFCSF to improve and expand its services to the member state federations and cooperative sugar factories, besides striving to solve or help them in finding solutions to the innumerable problems related to policy matters, technical upgradation and so forth. Considerable success has been achieved in this regard, but some problems still remain unsolved and some new ones crop up in the fast changing environment. The technical and professional experts of NFCSF continued their good services and provided guidance to the member factories so as to oversee the foreign projects. Liaison work of NFCSF with concerned Ministries / Authorities

has been quite effective and it has proved to be a major service to the members. Members of NFCSF have appreciated the responsible role played by NFCSF. They have provided good, support and the government has given NFCSF its recognition as the spokesman for the cooperative sector of the sugar industry.

A good example of the growth of the cooperative movement is that the sugar production takes place at mills owned by local cooperative societies. The members of the society include all small and marginal farmers, supplying sugarcane to the mills. Over last 70 years, the local sugar mills have played a crucial role in Indian economy and political fields.

Indian is now the largest producer of sugar in the world. India's sugar production accounts for 17% of the world sugar production of which cooperatives accounts for about 7%. The sugar industry is the second largest agro-based industry in India, next to Textile Industry. The cooperative sugar sector has been mainly responsible for transforming India from a deficit sugar producing country to a surplus sugar producing country. The Cooperative sugar sector has achieved remarkable progress in sugar production, as well as in ethanol production and co-generation. The socio-economic development brought about by these sugar cooperatives in the rural part of the country has changed the rural economy. The Cooperative sugar sector is primarily owned by sugarcane growers who hold the bulk of membership. Upto the last year, there were 5.15 million cane growers members. At present, there are a total number of 733 installed sugar factories in India ,of which 283 factories are in the cooperative sector.

NATIONAL LABOUR COOPERATIVES FEDERATION OF INDIA LTD. (NLCF)

Membership

A s on 31.3.2018, the membership of National Labour Cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF) was 377 represented by labour contract/ construction & forest labour cooperatives from different parts of the country.

Leadership Development Training Programmes:

National Labour Cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF) organized:

- A three day leadership development training programme in collaboration with National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE) New Delhi at the Institute of Cooperative Management, Dehradun, from 28-30 June 2017. 23 participants from various districts of Uttar Pradesh and Uttarakhand states participated in the programme.
- A three day leadership development programme for chairmen/ directors of labour cooperative of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana States in collaboration with National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE) from 26th to 28th February 2018 at ICM, Hyderabad. 49 participants from various districts of Andhra Pradesh and Telangana States participated in the programme.
- A three day leadership development programme for chairmen/ directors of labour contract and forest labour cooperatives of Maharashtra State in collaboration with National Center for Cooperative Education (NCCE), of Dhananjayrao Gadgil Institute of Cooperative Management, Nagpur from 6th to 8th February 2018. The programme was inaugurated by Shri W.Z. Tekam, Vice-Chairman. **NLCF** and Chairman. Maharashtra Rajya Jangal Kamgar Sehakari Sangh Ltd., Nagpur as Chief Guest. 45 trainees from various labour contract and forest labour cooperatives attended the programme.
- A three day leadership development programme for chairmen/ directors of labour contract cooperative societies of Kerala State was organized by National Centre for Cooperative Education (NCCE), New Delhi in collaboration with National Labour Cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF), New Delhi and Institute of Cooperative Management, Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala from 15th to 17th February 2018. 29 participants from various districts

- of Kerala State participated in the programme.
- A three day leadership development programme for chairmen/directors of labour contract cooperative societies of Maharashtra at the Conference Hall of NCCE from 19th to 21st March 2018. The programme was inaugurated by Dr. V.K. Dubey, Director, NCCE as Chief Guest. 19 participants from Maharashtra state participated in the programme.

Member Awareness/Training Programme

- One day awareness/training programme for scheduled caste category personnel under SC Sub Plan sponsored by Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Government of India was organized by National Labour cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF), New Delhi in collaboration with Chaitanya Bharti S.C. Labour Contract Cooperative Society Ltd., Godavari Khani, District Pedapally, Telangana at the Conference Hall of Press Club, Godavari Khani, District Pedapally on 15.5.2017.
- A one day awareness /training programme for tribal area sub plan category other than North eastern states with the financial assistance of Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Government of India in collaboration with Aman Shramik Sahakari Samiti Ltd., Kota, Rajasthan on 9.9.2017. 86 participants from various places of Kota city attended the programme.
- ◆ A one day awareness/ training programme for tribal area Sub Plan in other than North eastern states sponsored by Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Government of India was organized by NLCF in collaboration with The Jataula Labour Cooperative Society Ltd., Jataula, District Sonepat, Haryana on 29th August 2017.
- One day awareness/training programme for tribal area sub plan category in other than North Eastern States sponsored by Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Government of India in collaboration with

- Maharashtra Rajya Jangal Kamgar Sahakari Sangh Ltd., Nagpur at Pauni, Tehseel Ramtek, District Nagpur on 11.8.2017. The programme was inaugurated by Shri W.Z. Tekam, Vice-Chairman, NLCF and Chairman, Maharashtra Rajya Jangal Kamgar Sahakari Sangh Ltd., Nagpur as Chief Guest.
- One day member awareness/ training programme under tribal area sub plan SC category in North Eastern States sponsored by Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Government of India on 26.5.2017 at Shillong, Meghalaya. The programme was inaugurated by Shri Sanjiv R Kusalkar, Chairman, NLCF as Chief Guest. 54 participants participated in the programme.
- One day member awareness /training programme under special component plan for SC category in North Eastern States sponsored by Ministry of Agriculture & farmers Welfare, Government of India in collaboration with Institute of Cooperative Management, Imphal, Manipur.
- A Member awareness/ training programme for special component plan for SC category in north eastern states sponsored by Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare, Government of India in collaboration with Institute of Cooperative Management, Guwahati, Assam on 27.12.2017 at Keotpara, Azara, District Kamrup, Assam.
- A one day member awareness/ training programme was organised by NLCF for unemployed rural youth (male & female) on 27.9.2018 at DCB Auditorium, Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala in collaboration with Kerala State Labour Cooperative Federation Ltd. with the financial assistance of Cooperative Education Fund (NCUI). 123 participants from various districts of Kerala state were active participation in the programme.

Self-Financed Training Programmes

 National Labour Cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF) organised a four days and three nights study visit cum training programme for chairmen/directors and managers of state and district labour cooperatives federations from 25th to 28th May 2017 at Shillong, Meghalaya. 43 participants participated in the programme from different parts of the country.

National Labour Cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF) organised a four days and three nights study visit-cum-training programme for chairmen/directors and managers of state and district labour cooperatives federations of Haryana and Punjab States from 5th to 8th March 2018 at Portblair (Andaman & Nicobar Island).

Conference/Seminar/Workshop

- National Labour Cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF) organized All India Conference on labour cooperatives at the Conference Hall of NLCF's premises on 14.7.2017. The above said conference was sponsored by Ministry of Agriculture& Farmers Welfare, Government of India. The conference was inaugurated by Shri Sanjiv R. Kusalkar, Chairman, NLCF as chief guest. In addition to the chief guest, Shri Kasipeta Lingaiah, Shri Ashoka Kumar Dabas, Shri Ramesh Ramhut, Shri VVP Nair, Dr. Narender Singh Rana, Directors, NLCF and Shri Ram Kumar Shukla, Director (Government Nominee), NLCF attended the conference and addressed the participants. 118 participants from various parts of the country participated in the Conference.
- National Labour Cooperatives Federation of India Ltd. (NLCF) organized a State level Workshop on labour contract and forest labour cooperatives of Nagaland State organized at Kohima, Nagaland on 30.5.2017 with the financial assistance of Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Government of India under special component plan for scheduled tribe category in North Eastern States. The workshop was inaugurated by Shri Sanjiv R. Kusalkar, Chairman, NLCF as chief guest. 92 participants from various Districts of Nagaland participated in the workshop.

Skill Development

National Labour Cooperative Federation of India Ltd. [NLCF] conducted a two month Skill Development Training Programme for female trainees of SC category at NLCF's premises from 1.5.2017 to 30.6.2017. 30 female trainees were trained in cutting and tailoring trades under this programme . NLCF conducted two months skill development training programme for tribal female trainees of village Pauni, District Nagpur (Maharashtra) from 20.6.2017 to 11.8.2017 under the supervision of Maharashtra Rajya Jangal Kamgar Sahakari Sangh. 30 tribal female trainees were trained under this programme in cutting and tailoring trades. A two months skill development training programmes for female members of SC category was also organised by the NLCF in collaboration with Chaitanya Bharti SC Labour Cooperative Society Ltd., Godavari Khani, Pedappally, Telangana from 15.5.2017 to 14.7.2017. The programme was sponsored by the Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Government of India. 30 female trainees from SC category were trained in cutting & tailoring trade.

Research, Consultancy Services & Publication

Being an apex organization of the Indian labour cooperative movement, NLCF is playing an important role in assisting state and district federations by providing consultancy services on administrative, technical and legal issues. According to the felt need, NLCF provided the consultancy to various district labour cooperative federations on different issues from time to time during the year.

Publication is an effective and useful media to communicate the policies, programmes of federation to its members. During the year under reference, four issues of "LABOUR COOPS", and updated Brochure of NLCF were published.

Articles

During the year under reference, wideranging articles were written by Shri Sanjiv R. Kusalkar, Chairman, NLCF and Mrs. Pratibha Ahuja, Managing Director in different reputed national cooperative magazines.

ALL INDIA FEDERATION OF COOPERATIVE SPINNING MILLS LTD. (AIFCOSPIN)

IFCOSPIN as in the past continued to constantly endeavour to find solutions to the sectoral problems. It made all out efforts to provide highest quality services to the cooperative spinning sector in general and the members in particular. With the limitations imposed by resource constraints, AIFCOSPIN sought to expand and diversify its activities during the year 2017-18. As a part of the objective, it continued to maintain close liaison with the concerned government authorities, NCDC, NCUI, financial institutions and state level federations etc. Every opportunity was taken to apprise the authorities and the policy making bodies of the problems faced by the cooperative spinning mills and seek redressal of the same. Whenever required, personal meetings were also held with the Ministers at the Centre and in the states for interventions to remedy the situation. It provided services to the members by making realistic appraisals of the mills' technical and financial performance in consultation with the mills' functionaries and rendering practical suggestions for improvements.

The AIFCOSPIN has been taking up serious issues confronting the decentralized cooperative sector and in particular the cooperative spinning sector with the concerned authorities both at the Central and state level, and also suggesting measures for the revival and strengthening of the cooperative spinning sector. To enable the mills to avail financial assistance from NCDC/financial institutions, it also sought the support of Central/ State Government etc. through appropriate policy decisions. It is hoped that the suggestions made by AIFCOSPIN from time to time will be considered sympathetically.

Textile Policy

The Government of India will be coming up shortly with its New Textile Policy. It is suggested that all the benefits under the New Textile Policy etc. should be also available to the existing and new cooperative spinning mills. This will ensure a level playing field particularly for the existing cooperative spinning mills needing rehabilitation, expansion, modernization, value addition etc. As

a matter of fact due to rural orientation of the cooperative spinning mills and the socio-economic development it triggers in its area of operations, some enhanced/additional benefits should also be considered.

Hank Yarn Obligation

Presently the share of the handlooms in the total production of cotton cloth in the country is only about 18 percent, and there is no dearth of hank yarn at all. Although there is a facility of fulfilling the obligation by transfer of the same from other producers the rates charged by the middlemen/brokers are exhorbitant. The fixation of obligation at 40 percent as against 18 percent share of handloom cloth, is an avoidable burden cost on mills which are even suffering from cash losses due to low yarn prices compared to the price of cotton. There is, therefore, immediate need to bring down the hank yarn obligation to 10 percent if it cannot be totally dispensed with.

The issue/suggestions are being vigourously pursued with the concerned authorities but to no avail at present. It appears that the request went unheeded by the central/state governments in spite of the issues being referred by the Hon'ble Prime Minister to the state governments and concerned Union Ministries, perhaps because they did not study the issues minutely or tried to understand the plight of the spinning industry even through it is classified as a stress industry by the banking/financial sector. It is a serious crisis, and the central/state governments, NCDC etc. should step in save the cooperative spinning sector.

Project Reports and Other Services

During the reporting year, AIFCOSPIN studied three member units and looked into the possibility of their modernization and expansion. Further, it prepared reports on evaluation of tender documents for purchase of plant and machinery, spinning accessories, testing equipments etc. AIFCOSPIN prepared a report on technical and performance analysis within the units of LMW and RIETER machineries to find a suitable solution for sustainability, and the need for technology/upgradation with minimum investment related to one of the member mills.

During the reporting year AIFCOSPIN also conducted wide-ranging/ comprehensive/ special exceptional studies. Some of them are as under:

- Surveyed the possibilities of sustainability of two of our member mills. Financial health including its assets was also systematically assessed.
- Regular guidance was being provided in
 - Procuring the raw material on right time for uniform quality.
 - Tips on power saving and auditing.
 - Alternative method on existing humidification system and power saving on it.
- Feasibility study on finance to invest on partial modernization with systematic approach.
- Giving guidelines of accepted yarn quality in the local market.

Textile Policy (2018-23) of the Government of Maharashtra

The Government of Maharashtra has recently announced its State Textile Policy for the period 2018-23 which will be effective till 31st March, 2023 vide Government Resolution No. Policy 2017/C.R.6/Text.5 dt.17th February, 2018. Under the new Textile Policy, among others, subsidized power will be available at Rs.3/-per unit for cooperative spinning mills/units while powerlooms with capacity below 200 horse power can get electricity for Rs.2/-per unit as well as spinning mills. Subsidy given to powerlooms can be availed by other textile value chain units for processing, garment making and knitting as well. This is reported to having beeen made effective from 1st April, 2017. Nothing specific appears to have been provided to enable the cooperative spinning mills to avail term loans from NCDC/ financial institutions for their rehabilitation, revival, modernization, expansion, etc.

Cooperative Spinning Mills In Karnataka

The AIFCOSPIN had prepared proposals

for rehabilitation/expansion/modernization of some of the cooperative spinning mills in Karnataka. After discussions with the Chief Minister of Karnataka and other senior officers of the Government of Karnataka on these issues and with the vigourous efforts of AIFCOSPIN, the Government of Karnataka has agreed to waive the interest component of some of the mills and to convert the loan component into equity.

Necessary inputs by the mills to the Government of Karnataka for the purpose have been given and AIFCOSPIN provided the necessary services for the purpose. This will go a long way in reviving the cooperative spinning sector in Karnataka State. AIFCOSPIN accepted in principal the work of preparation of TEFR of the mills in Karnataka. Some of the mills in Karnataka are also contemplating using the services of AIFCOSPIN for regular monitoring of its performance. Mills are assured by AIFCOSPIN of its continuous services and have been attending to their requirements as and when called upon to do so. Discussions in detail were also held with the concerned authorities in the Government of Karnataka, on the issues of rehabilitation of closed cooperative spinning mills which is under active consideration. It is hoped that the suggestions made by AIFCOSPIN will receive a favourable consideration.

A proposal was also initiated by AIFCOSPIN for reduction in power tariff for cooperative spinning mills in Karnataka and providing subsidy on cotton purchases. It is reported that w.e.f. 1st April, 2017 a subsidy of Rs.2/- per unit was agreed to by the Government of Karnataka. As regards subsidy on cotton purchase it is reported that the Government of Karnataka has agreed for five percent subsidy on the cotton purchased from the Cotton Corporation of India. Efforts are being made to extend the scope of this subsidy for purchases made through cooperative societies/ state/national level marketing federations etc.

Cotton And Textile Newsletter

AIFCOSPIN published Eighty-one News letters and "Pulse of Cotton and Yarn Prices in India and International Markets" during the year 2015-16. Material of interest to the spinning mills as well as those related to the textile industry as a

whole were included for publication in these issues. Price trend in cotton and yarn, import and export scenario along with forcasts of the likely future trend were also included. The projections made by AIFCOPSIN were accurate and very much appreciated by the member mills. The mills eagerly await these publications for planning their strategy for timing the purchase of cotton and sale of yarn. Matters related to Government policies as well as those of NCDC were also covered.

NATIONAL FEDERATION OF STATE COOPERATIVE BANKS LTD. (NAFSCOB), VASHI, NAVI MUMBAI

ational Federation of State Cooperative Banks Ltd. (NAFSCOB) was established on May 19, 1964 with the broad objective of facilitatating the operations of state and central cooperative banks, in , and development of short term cooperative credit & banking in general. NAFSCOB has completed about 55 years of its useful services to the rural cooperative credit delivery system. NAFSCOB provides a common forum to its members and their affiliates to project their achievements, focus their concerns and promote their interests. As at the end of March, 2017 (tentative) there are 33 state cooperative banks (SCBs) in the country of which 32 SCB are members of NAFSCOB. NAFSCOB operates with three important wings, viz. (1) Planning, Research and Development (PRD), (2) All India Mutual Arrangement Scheme (AIMAS) (AIMAS Scheme was closed on 31-12-2017) and (3) Computer Services Division (CSD).

Achievements:

NAFSCOB conducted the following studies:

- Impact assessment of Kisan credit card with special reference to farmers in Ernakulam district, Kerala.
- Impact assessment of interest subvention scheme of GoI in short term cooperative credit structure.
- Report on "Roadmap to enhance the share of cooperatives in agricultural credit".
- Constituted a Committee to formulate Human Resources (HR) Policy for PACS

NAFSCOB conducted the following activities in recent years:

- Support to SCBs/DCCBs in formulating appropriate HRD policy which includes training, capacity building etc.
- ◆ Facilitated 'KYC and AML policy and procedure for SCBs and DCCBs'
- Supported Financial Intelligence Unit-India (FIU-IND) to develop a 'Guidance Note on Effective Process of Suspicious Transaction Reports (STRs) Detection and Reporting for Cooperative Banks', etc.
- Model Risk Management Policy for SCBs,
- Model Information Security Policy of SCBs.

NAFSCOB played a significant role in:

- Ensuring revival package for short term cooperative credit institutions,
- Impressing upon the Government, the need for deregulation of interest rate structure on deposits and advances,
- Assisting in revision in rates of interest on refinance and lending rates on farm credit,
- Ensuring interest subvention to cooperative banks,
- Ensuring continuation of the three tier short term cooperative credit structure in present form to achieve the spelt out objectives.

Memoranda/Representations/Seminar

During the year 2017-18, NAFSCOB has represented on issues of importance to the Union Finance Minister on the eve of prebudget discussion including need for suitable support to short term cooperative credit structure (STCCS) to implement roadmap to enhance their share in total agricultural credit disbursement, need for formulating appropriate schemes to help DCCBs to regain their reputation/leadership which was affected by their non-participation in SBNs under demonetisation, restoration of exemption allowed under Section 80P of Income Tax Act, 1961 to SCBs and DCCBs

and other issues concerning taxation affecting the SCBs and DCCBs, need for review, revamp and restructuring of interest subvention scheme.

- NAFSCOB represented to the Hon'ble Union Finance Minister to initiate measures to reverse the conditionality, so as to allow the DCCBs to deposit the SBNs held by them from November 08, 2016 onwards, or before the closure of the financial year 2017-18 to prevent them from making loss provision in the interest of the cooperative banks.
- One day National Seminar on 'Report of the Committee set up by NABARD for Assessment of Human Resources of STCCS in the Post CBS Environment' National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) based on the suggestions extended by NAFSCOB, constituted a "Committee for Assessment of Human Resources of STCCS in the Post CBS Environment" under the chairmanship of Shri R. Amalorpavanathan, Deputy Managing Director, NABARD. The HR Committee submitted its final Report on 10 October 2017 to Chairman, NABARD. NABARD advised NAFSCOB to consider organizing a national level seminar with the participation of major stakeholders in the STCCS in order to facilitate a wide range consultation on the recommendations made by the Committee. Accordingly, NAFSCOB organized a one-day national seminar on this subject at Mumbai on 13 March, 2018.

Dissemination of Information

NAFSCOB developed the system of disseminating information on agriculture, cooperatives, rural cooperative credit & banking through its in-house quarterly, "NAFSCOB Journal of Rural Cooperative Credit and Banking".

Annual Performance Awards to SCBs, DCCBs, PACS and Agricultural Cooperative Staff Training Institutes (ACSTIs)

The annual performance awards to award winning SCBs and DCCBs, Subhash Yadav Award for best performing PACS and best performance awards to winning ACSTIs for the year 2015-16,

were presented by Thiru Sellur K. Raju, Hon'ble Minister for Cooperation, Government of Tamil Nadu and Thiru D. Jayakumar, Hon'ble Minister for Fisheries, Finance, Personnel and Administrative Reforms, Governmentt of Tamil Nadu in a special event at Chennai, Tamil Nadu on 11 August, 2017.

International Exposure during 2017-2018:

Participated actively in the following international events:

- 10thAsia-Pacific Cooperative Ministers' Conference held in Hanoi (Vietnam) from 18-21 April 2017.
- 68th APRACA Executive Committee meeting and Regional Policy Forum on Financial Sservices and Poverty Reduction from 6-7 June, 2017 held in Beijing, China.
- Asia-Pacific Cooperative Development Crganized by ICA held in Colombo, Sri Lanka from 26 to 29 February, 2018.

NATIONAL COOPERATIVE AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT BANKS' FEDERATION LTD. (NCARDB)

A significant event in the history of agriculture and rural development banking sector has been the establishment of the National Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Banks' Federation Ltd (NCARDBF) in 1960. Since its inception, the federation has been playing an important role in the growth of institutions in the sector. It has established effective coordination and promoted understanding among member banks and strengthened liaison with Central and state Governments, NABARD and financing agencies of SCARDBs.

Other activities of the Federation include organizing seminars and workshops, undertaking research studies and formulation of plans and programmes through its Planning, Research and Development Cell, compilation and publishing of statistics of member bank operations, sponsoring of study teams, co-coordinating investments in debentures, undertaking special training programmes, publicity work, providing guidance and advice on issues relating to operations and

governance. The quarterly Land Bank Journal published by the federation since the last 57 years has gained considerable popularity. The federation is also assisting member banks in business development and expansion by designing new products.

Lobbying with the government for implementing a revival package comprising of recapitalisation and reforms, guiding SCARDBs in self-driven reform initiatives and guidance and support to member banks in resource mobilization, recovery and NPA management and business expansion and diversification continued to be the thrust areas of the federation's activities during the year.

The delay in implementing the package aggravated the financial weakness of ARDBs and drastically reduced their capacity to meet the credit requirements of about 98 lakh farmers (members of ARDBs with outstanding loans as on 31.3.2015), who by and large are unable to access credit from other agencies since their land mortgaged already with ARDBs. Implementation of the proposed revival package is the only solution to address the credit crisis faced by them. The structure, which is present in all major states with a network of 2600 outlets has the potential of expanding its annual lending in the short run by at least 5 times from the present level of about Rs.5000 crores, if revived.

A delegation from the federation met Finance Minister, Shri Arun Jaitley once again during the year on this issue. Shri Parshottam Rupala, Hon'ble Minister of State for Agriculture, Farmers' Welfare & Panchayati Raj who was the Chief Guest at the Annual Awards Function of the Federation held on 20 March 2017 in Delhi, was briefed about the issues with the Govt., and he promised positive actions by the Ministry of Agriculture in this regard. The continuous representations and delegations thus kept the revival proposal alive, and the Federation hopes for a favourable decision on the same at the political level.

Restructuring of ARDBs into Banks

The RBI constituted a Working Group in 2002 to evolve norms for licensing of ARDBs as banks

which, however, did not favour conversion of ARDBs into full-fledged banks in accordance with the policies of RBI at that time. However, the RBI has recently issued guidelines for establishing small finance banks in the private sector for supply of credit to micro and small enterprises, and providing banking services in unbanked and under banked regions in the country. Although there is a provision in these guidelines to convert nonbanking financial companies and micro financial institutions into small finance banks, there is no such provision to convert cooperative entities into small finance banks. There is a strong case for licensing ARDBs as banks as either small finance banks in the cooperative sector or treating them at par with primary cooperative banks (urban cooperative banks).

There is a growing consensus among all its stakeholders that ARDBs should be able to be brought within the purview of Banking Regulation Act 1949. Vaidyanthan Task Force also endorsed the need to transform these institutions as banks and recommended that the regulator may consider giving banking licence to entities in the structure, which fulfil the conditions necessary for the same. The Federation has moved the Government of India and Reserve Bank of India for taking steps to evolve appropriate norms for giving banking licences to ARDBs.

Crop Loan Interest Subvention Scheme

The interest subvention scheme for crop loans implemented by the Government of India is presently not extended to farmers who avail crop loans from ARDBs. The federation has been persistently taking up this issue with the Ministry of Finance for including SCARDBs in the list of institutions through which the crop loan interest subvention scheme is implemented.

Subventing Cost of Investment Credit to Agriculture

The federation has also moved the Government to introduce an interest subvention scheme for investment credit to agriculture on the pattern of the crop loan interest subvention , in order to reduce the cost of long term loans for capital formation in agriculture.

Reform Initiatives

Core Group for Reform Initiatives constituted by SCARDBs continues to have regular meetings in most of the banks. CGRI has been concentrating on deepening of self-driven reforms at the ground level. CGRI also reviews the impact of new avenues for raising resources including deposit mobilisation and introduction of new products, identifying crucial areas and taking

Core Group for Reform Initiatives (CGRI):

products, identifying crucial areas and taking corrective actions to improve the rating of SCARDBs, preparation of manuals on functional areas with a view to evolve consistent policies and well documented procedure as well as NPA management. The federation has issued separate guidelines for self-driven reforms covering the following

Deposit mobilisation

areas.

- Loan recovery and NPA management
- Introduction of short loan products
- Diversifying avenues for borrowing
- Computerisation
- HRD and Training

Programme of Activities of the Federation during 2017-18

The federation constituted its Planning, Research and Development (PRD) Cell in 1973 to undertake studies, holding seminars, workshops, bringing out Publications and other promotional activities for its member banks.

The following are the important activities undertaken by the PR&D Cell during 2017-18.

Studies, Workshops, Seminars

Working Group on Enhancing the Share of ARDBs in Rural Credit

A Working Group on enhancing the share of ARDBs in rural credit with focus on investment credit to agriculture under the chairmanship of Shri Y.C. Nanda, Ex-Chairman, NABARD and Co-Chairmanship of Shri D.N. Thakur, Dy. Managing

Director, NCDC, one officer from NABARD and Chairmen/CEOS of Member Bank was constituted.

The first meeting of the Working Group was held on 6 October 2017 in Mumbai which was jointly chaired by Shri Y.C. Nanda, Ex-Chairman, NABARD and Shri D.N. Thakur, Dy. Managing Director, NCDC and was attended by other members to finalise the terms of reference and work plan. The working group also decided to implement a **pilot project** for financing small and marginal farmers under group approach in a contiguous area and formation of a farmer producer organisation (FPO) to integrate them with the value chain by undertaking post production value additions and enabling direct access to market for their produce.

Pilot Project for Agriculture Value Chain Financing by SCARDBs based on Group Approach

In the first meeting of the Working Group on enhancing the share of ARDBs in rural credit held on 6 October 2017, based on a suggestion by Shri D.N. Thakur, Dy. Managing Director, NCDC, it was decided to propose a pilot project for agriculture value chain financing by SCARDBs based on group approach. Based on deliberations in the meeting, the Federation has finalized draft guidelines for implementing the pilot project. The draft guidelines were circulated to member banks for suggestions/remarks to finalize the guidelines and launching the pilot project in April 2018 and the same was placed before the Board in its meeting on 24th March 2018 for consideration. The Board decided to launch the Pilot Project in 2018-19 at a national level function.

Working Group on HR Policies in ARDBs

The human resource scenario in ARDBs in many states is marked by serious deficiencies in terms of quality and quantity. A working group on HR policies under the chairmanship of Shri K. Sivadasan Nair, Vice Chairman of the Federation and co-chairmanship of Shri N. Satyanarayana, Chief Executive, NCUI and CEOs/MDs of Member Banks was constituted.

The first Meeting of Working Group on HR policies in ARDBs was held on 6th October 2017 in the Board Room of the Federation under the

chairmanship of Shri N. Satyanarayana, Chief Executive, NCUI Co-Chairman, Shri Y.C. Nanda, Ex-Chairman, NABARD and Co-Chairmanship of Shri D.N. Thakur, Dy. Managing Director, NCDC and Shri Bhagawati Prasad, Vice Chairman, Sahkari Awas Nirman Evem Vitt Nigam Ltd. The Working Group deliberated and approved the terms of reference (ToR) alongwith the draft questionnaire for collection of data on HR issues from the member banks with some additions.

Seminar on Functional Restructuring of ARDBs

During the year the federation organized two seminars on "Functional Restructuring of ARDBs" for middle level/junior level officers of SCARDBs at National Institute for Rural Banking (NIRB), Bangalore, to deliberate on restructuring initiatives in the sector and prepare them to play a more effective role in this process.

Field Study for Live Project on "Analysing the causes and remedies of Non-performing Assets (NPAs) in ARDBs

The Federation sponsored two candidates from Final Year PGDBM batch (Agri Business & Management), VAMNICOM for Live Project on "Analysing the causes and remedies of Nonperforming Assets (NPAs) in ARDBs" which was jointly undertaken by them during 13th September to 15th September 2017 in Devanahalli PCARDB, Karnataka State. The field study report prepared by the candidates have been submitted to the Federation for its evaluation.

Meeting of Core Group for Reform Initiatives (CGRIs)

PRD Cell of Federation is also involved in the working of CGRI in member banks by issuing general guidelines for holding meetings, and follow-up actions on its decisions. The Cell compiles and reports to the Board important recommendations of CGRI in various states and issues general guidelines based on the same.

During the year, five Meetings of CGRIs were conducted for the following member banks.

CGRI for Kerala SCADB on 1st July 2017.

- ◆ 5th Meeting of CGRI Meeting for Gujarat SCARDB on 7th July 2017
- ◆ CGRI for Uttar Pradesh SGVB on 9th August 2017
- ◆ CGRI Meeting for Rajasthan SCARDB on 8th September 2017
- ◆ CGRI for Punjab SCADB on 7th November 2017

Participation in Krishi Unnati Mela 2018

Under the Gol's policy of "Doubling of Farmers' Income by 2022" the Gol organized the "Krishi Unnati Mela 2018" an annual event at IARI, PUSA, New Delhi during 16th – 18th March 2018, providing a congregation of farmers across the country with an opportunity to view the latest technology in agriculture and allied services. The Federation also participated in this event by setting up a stall in collaboration with the Uttar Pradesh SGV Bank Ltd., for promoting the schemes of the SCARDBs.

Guidelines for revival action plan as part of Preparations for Centenary Year

The Board of Management in its last meeting decided that ARDBs at state and primary levels should prepare separate action plans for next two years to address structural and operational issues in order to take the movement to a path of sustainable growth by 2020, the Centenary Year of LTCCS. The Federation vide its letter dated 22 December 2017 has communicated the decisions taken by the Board regarding preparations for celebrating centenary year. As part of the special action plan for revival, it was also suggested that SCARDBs and PCARDBs should constitute special teams to finalise and implement revival action plans with specific time bound targets in the areas of recovery, NPA reduction, deposit mobilisation, business expansion, documenting success stories etc.

Publications

Land Bank Journal

Publication of Land Bank Journal is an important work of the PRD Cell. Four issues of Land Bank Journal i.e. March 2017, June 2017,

September 2017 & December 2017 have been published and circulated during the year and March 2018 is under compilation.

Annual Statistical Bulletin

Collection and compilation of statistics relating to member banks' operations and publication of Annual Statistical Bulletin is also undertaken by the Cell. Statistical Bulletin for the year for the year 2015-16 was published during the year. The Bulletin for 2016-17 is under compilation.

Monthly Progress Report of ARDBs

The federation collects and compiles data on Member banks' key operations on a monthly basis for review at its level and reporting to Government of India. 11 consolidated monthly reports from April, 2017 to February, 2018 were brought out during the year.

Report on Member Banks' Operations during 2017-18

General Information

The membership of the Federation during the year comprises of 16 SCARDBs, and 3 SCBs which is the same as in the last year.

The total membership of 13 functional SCARDBs as on 31 March 2018 was 102.99 lakh of which borrowing members were 49.01 lakh. Out of 13 fully functional banks 9 had elected boards, and 558 out of 602 PCARDBs also had elected boards as on 31 March 2018.

The total loans advanced by 13 SCARDBs (fully functional) at apex bank level during the year 2017-18 amounted to '4327.07 crore as against '4641.92 crore during 2016-17 showing a negative growth of 6.78% mainly on account of setback to normal operations in the aftermath of demonetization. Total borrowings by 13 SCARDBs (Fully functional) during 2017-18 decreased to '2706.92 crore from '4006.65 crore during 2016-17. NABARD continued to be the main source of

borrowings during the year, with total refinance support of Rs. 2436.97 crore accounting for 90.03% of total borrowings by the banks. All fully functional SCARDBs except Haryana, Rajasthan and Tripura have been taking deposits during the year under report. The profit / loss position as on 31st March 2018, in respect of 13 SCARDBs (Fully functional) shows that 9 SCARDBs were in profit and remaining 4 SCARDBs (Haryana, Jammu & Kashmir, Pondicherry and Uttar Pradesh) incurred losses.

NATIONAL FILM AND FINE ARTS COOPERATIVE LTD., (NAFFAC)

Naffac) is engaged in the promotion and image-building programmes of organisations through the production of documentary films. Besides this, NAFFAC also promotes fine arts through organising cultural programmes. NAFFAC also regularly conducts workshops on themes pertaining to effective communication, publicity and stress management.

NAFFAC has undertaken the production of several documentaries for the cooperative sector and Ministries of the Government of India. Some of the major organisations that have utilised the services of NAFFAC include NCUI, Indian Sugar EXIM Corporation, Sugar Technologists Association of India, Ministry of Food Processing, Agriculture, Health and Family Welfare.

NAFFAC produced a film on the achievement of adopted cooperatives, women empowerment and farm guidance activites (Kohima project) undertaken by NCUI during January, 2017. NAFFAC also produced a short film on the role of cooperatives in the Indian economy for NCUI during November, 2017. NAFFAC organised a workshop on "New Media for Publicity and Promotional Endeavours" on November 29, 2017. A total of 32 participants from different cooperative organisations attended the workshop, which was funded by the Cooperative Education Fund of NCUI.

CHAPTER-9

Important Activities of State Level Cooperative Organisations

ANDHRA PRADESH

A.P State Cooperative Bank Ltd., Vijayawada

As per the A.P. Reorganization Act, 2014, the Andhra Pradesh State was divided into two viz. the Residual A.P and newly formed Telangana State on 2nd June, 2014. Consequently, the Andhra Pradesh State Cooperative Bank was also bifurcated into two state cooperative banks viz. The Telangana State Cooperative Apex Bank Ltd. (TSCAB), for the State of Telangana and Residual APCOB for the state of Andhra Pradesh w.e.f. 02.04.2015. With effect from 23.8.2016, the APCOB is functioning from its headquarters at Vijayawada. Dr. A V Bhavani Shankar, DGM, NABARD has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director w.e.f.03.03.2018, as per the fit and proper criteria stipulated by RBI.

The loans and advances made by the Bank were Rs. 8689.77 crores. While the net profit was Rs. 71.33 crores, the total business transacted was Rs. 11556.71 crores.

The ground level credit (GLC) under SAO crop loans made during the year is Rs.10123.33 crore to 15.45 Lakh famers. Disbursements made to DCCBs under ST (others) were of Rs.1361.87 crore as against DCCB level outstandings of Rs.1866.00 crore as on 31.03.2018. During the year, the APCOB provided refinance under long term (investment credit), which was Rs.825.85 crores.

As per 2017-18 figures, the total NPA of 13 DCCBs was 604.71 crores while recovery percentage was 74.49. The total deposits were Rs. 8243.20 crores, while the loan outstanding was 13466.92 crores. All the DCCBs are complying with the CRAR requirement of minimum of 9.00% as on 31.03.2018.

The total number of PACs as on 31.03.2017 was 1984, total loans and advances disbursed

were Rs. 8181.85 crores, while the number of PACs in profit was 1318.

APCOB is a forerunner in adopting technology in the cooperative banking sector. APCOB has taken steps to provide technology based services to its customers and thereby to develop the cooperative credit structure in the State of Andhra Pradesh.

- The 410 (APCOB-15 +DCCBs-395) branches of both APCOB and 13 DCCBs in the state of Andhra Pradesh are functioning fully in CBS environment and the centralised department namely Information Technology Services Division (ITSD) has been placed in the HO of APCOB to address all technology related issues.
- The bank has installed ATMs in all existing 15 Branches of APCOB, 182 ATMs in 13 DCCBs and is also planning to Install ATMs in all branches of 13 DCCBs.
- APCOB has launched the mobile banking application, which is available to all the customers free of cost. The bank started a mobile ATM, which was flagged off by the Hon'ble Chief Minister of Andhra Pradesh. APCOB with the financial support of the NABARD started the implementation of the "PACS as Deposit Mobilization Agent (DMA)" scheme in 4 DCCBs, viz., Vizianagaram, Krishna, Guntur, and Chittoor. APCOB-ITSD with the financial support of NABARD has initiated steps for issuance of RuPay KCCs to approximately 15 lakh borrowing members of the 1984 PACS in the State. So far. Rs. 12.06 lakh KCCs are distributed to the farmers.
- The Bank through 13 DCCBs has initiated steps for supply of PoS and ePoS, machines to PACS, Rythu Bazar, milk units, marketing federations and merchants etc., as per their

requirement to meet the cash less transactions of customers in the post demonetisation scenario.

 Consequent to the Budget announcement by the Hon'ble Finance Minister, Gol, allotting Rs.19,000 Crore for computerization of 63,000 functional PACS in the country, guidelines are awaited from NABARD/Gol for implementation of PACS computerization in the state of Andhra Pradesh.

GOA

The Goa State Cooperative Union Ltd., Panaji-Goa

he Inaugural function of the 64 Cooperative Week was organized on November 14, 2017 by The Goa State Cooperative Union Ltd., in collaboration with Goa Industrial Development Corporation, Employees Cooperative Credit Society and National Cooperative Union of India, New-Delhi at its premises at Panaji.

The concluding day Function of the 64th Cooperative Week was organized on 20th November, 2018. Shri Pandurang Madkaikar, Hon'ble Minister for Power was the Chief Guest. Dr. Sanjay Sawant Desai, Vice-Principal, Damodar College of Commerce & Economics, Margao was the key note Speaker and delivered a talk on the subject "Cooperatives as Key Partners for Skill Development". The Special Issue of the Monthly Magazine "SAHAKAR GOA" was also released on the occasion.

Felicitation of Cooperators:

As in the past, the Union honoured the following individuals and Institutions for their outstanding performance in the cooperative sector. A memento, shawl, shreephal and a cheque of Rs. 5,000/- was given to each as per the practice.

Best Cooperator

Shri Pradeep Gajanan Naik, Margao - Goa.

Best Chairman

Shri Umesh N. P. Zantye, The Bicholim Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd., Bicholim - Goa.

Best Society

Karmali Corlim Multipurpose Cooperative Society Ltd., Carambolim, Tiswadi – Goa.

Best Secretary

Shri Harishchandra Y. Gaonkar, Vijaya Sahakari Dudh Vyav. Saunstha Maryadit, Dharbandora – Goa.

Special Award

- SAI Self Help Group Cooperative Society Ltd.,
 Tonynagar, Sanvordem Goa. (Chairperson Mrs. Priyanka P. Dessai)
- Sai Vaishnavi Self Help Group Cooperative Society Ltd., Mulgao, Bicholim – Goa. (Chairperson – Mrs. Pravina Parab)

Award of Appreciation

The Omkar Mahila Multipurpose Cooperative Society Ltd., Sanquelim, Goa Chairperson, Mrs. Nisha Devdatt Pockle.

Certificate of Appreciation

- The Orgao Urban Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Orgao, Marcel – Goa.
- Murgao Education Society's Employees Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Zuarinagar, Goa.

During the previous year the total membership of the Union was 622 with share capital of Rs. 97,000/-. During the year, two new societies have opted for membership thereby increasing the total membership to 624 while one share of one member cooperative societies has been refunded during the year 2017-18, and therefore the membership as on 31.3.2018 is 623 and share capital Rs. 98,400/- belonging to various categories such as V.K.S.S., dairy, consumers, salary earners cooperative credit societies, urban cooperative credit societies, housing cooperative societies, etc.

The Goa State Cooperative Union organizes training programmes for the member societies from time to time with the assistance of Dr. V. V. Patil Institute of Cooperative Management, Pune. In addition, in-house awareness/training

Programmes are also conducted in the various villages in the State of Goa, with the help of NCUI Cooperative Education Field Project, Goa.

"SAHAKAR GOA" is a monthly journal published by the Goa State Cooperative Union Ltd., Panaji and it incorporates articles related to different aspects of cooperative movement in Goa as well as in other states. During the year under review, 10 issues of "SAHAKAR GOA" from April, 2017 to January, 2018 were published and sent to the subscribers in time. On the occasion of 64th Cooperative Week a "SPECIAL ISSUE" of "SAHAKAR GOA" is also published every year.

A financial assistance to the Goa State Cooperative Union of Rs. 1.50 Lakh for state level celebration of 64th AICW was received from the National Cooperative Union of India during the year, and the Union also received Rs. 1,16,200/towards organizing study tour of the Board of Directors in the neighbouring state.

GUJARAT

Gujarat State Cooperative Union

State level Youth Cooperative Seminar was held on 16th March, 2018 at Anand under the aegis of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, Ahmedabad and Anand College of Legal Studies run by Shri Ramkrishna Seva Mandal, Anand. Shri Ghanshyambhai H. Amin, Vice President of National Cooperative Union, of India and Chairman of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, Shri C. D. Patel, Director of State Cooperative Union, Shri Hemantbhai Patel, President of Ramkrishna Seva Mandal, Shri Shitalbhai Bhatt, Executive Officer of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, Dr. Amitkumar Parmar, Principal of Anand College and Shri Rajnikant J. Patel, Vice President of Anand District Cooperative Union, graced the occasion.

Inaugurating the seminar, Shri Ghanshyambhai H. Amin, Vice President of National Cooperative Union of India, said that the prime objective of cooperative societies is to create a society free from exploitation irrespective of difference of caste, community and creed. He also presented an informative brief about the advantages and activities of cooperative sector.

Explaining the blueprint, objectives and importance of the cooperative seminar Shri Shitalbhai Bhatt, Executive Officer of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, praised the valuable contribution of cooperatives to the economic development of the state.

Presiding over the seminar, Shri Hemantbhai Patel, President of Ramkrishna Mandal said that it's a matter of pride that the students of Law College have associated themselves with the cooperative sector through this cooperative seminar.

Shri J. J. Shah, Training Director of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, Ahmedabad explained the entire process and procedure of the registration of cooperative societies and their management in detail.

This seminar was attended by more than 300 students and faculties of various law colleges of Gujarat.

National Credit and Urban Cooperative Banking Summit 2018 was held on 17th March 2018 at Ahmedabad, in joint collaboration with Gujarat State Cooperative Union and Gujarat State Cooperative Credit Societies Federation, Ahmedabad and Business World Magazine.

Inaugurating the Summit, Shri Nitinbhai Patel Hon'ble Deputy Chief Minister Gujarat State said that there is an optimum utilisation of technology in various sectors in general and in cooperative sector in particular. He said that it is the wish of our Hon'ble Prime Minister that each and every banking transaction should be done online. Credit societies should equip themselves with technology, in consonance with the new trends. Shri Nitinbhai Patel further stated that when people today are exposed to fraud because of their greed for higher interest, credit societies should create awareness in the people. It is also essential that loans are sanctioned and disbursed in accordance with established rules regulations and norms. The government allots funds to each and every department for the development of business and generation of employment. If this fund is circulated, the market will also succeed. He hoped that credit societies would become the instrument for circulation of the funds allotted by the government.

Presiding Summit, over the Shri Ghanshyambhai Amin, Chairman of Cooperative Bank of India and Gujarat State Cooperative Union stated that the purpose for organising this Summit is to enable district banks, state banks and urban banks to adopt technology so as to ensure that the credit sector of Gujarat does not lag behind in technology. With the adoption of liberalisation policies, competition from private companies has become stiff. Therefore, the government should help financially to enable the cooperative structure to equip and adopt technology for its progress.

Shri Dileepbhai Sanghani, Chairman of NAFSCOB, Mumbai and Guest of Honour of this Summit stated that we should strengthen the cooperative sector through adopting modern technology and devices in this age of technology.

On this occasion, Shri Dhirenbhi Chaudhary, Chairman of Gujarat State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank stated that Gujarat is the first state to adopt technology. The credit societies are also working in this direction. Amul has adopted technology in all its services of milk cooperatives, leaving no scope for malpractices.

Shri Narayanbhai Patel, Director of Gujarat Urban Co-operative Bank Federation informed that digital technology has become so fast and rapid that now all financial transactions will materialize through mobile network. People now need not stand in long queues for depositing or withdrawal of money in the bank. He also stated that we will also have to develop human resources along with technology.

Shri Sunil Chawla, Chief General Manager NABARD, stated that the cooperative institutes will have to raise the accountability of board members, and people need to be trained.

A State level Women's Cooperative Seminar was held on the occasion of International Women's Day on 8th March, 2018 at Gandhinagar under the aegis of Gujarat State Cooperative Union. Shri Nitinbhai Patel, Hon'ble Dy.Chief Minister, Gujarat State while inaugurating the women cooperative Seminar stated that when the entire world is celebrating International Women's Day, we should ensure all round equal development of women without gender discrimination. Presiding over the seminar, Shri Ghanshyambhai Amin, Vice

President of National Cooperative Union of India and Chairman of Gujarat State Cooperative Union (GSCU) stated that it is a matter of deep regret that we have to organise conventions for women empowerment after 70 years of independent India. He urged that more and more women must actively join the cooperative activities.

Shri Dileepbhai Sanghani, Chairman of NAFSCOB stated that women are not competitors of men, but they are complementary to each other.

Shri Sunil Kumar Singh, Vice Chairman, NAFED, New Delhi and Chairman of Bihar State Cooperative Marketing Union Limited, stated that 50% women are partners in cooperative institutes of Bihar, and the government in Gujarat should give this due consideration.

Sri Ishwarsinh T. Patel Hon'ble Minister of Cooperation, Gujarat released the souvenir "Sahakare Mahila Samridhi" on the occasion of the state level women cooperative seminar. The highlight of this seminar was that the passing of a historical resolution for providing 33% reservation to women in cooperatives.

The inauguration ceremony of the 64th All India Cooperative Week was held on 14th November, 2017 at Ahmedabad under the aegis of the Gujarat State Cooperative Union. The function was inaugurated by Shri Arvindbhai Tagadia, Hon'ble Secretary of Gujarat State Cooperative Union. He said that cooperatives provide warmth in the life of the people. One person out of every five persons is associated with cooperative activity. Addressing the function as Chief Guest, Smt. Diptiben Patel, the Chairperson of Women Committee of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, stated that cooperative activity is meant to ensure development of everyone and society as well.

Shri Shitalbhai P. Bhatt, Executive Officer of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, read the message of the International Cooperative Alliance and explained the significance of the Cooperative week. He stated that cooperative activity must ensure the development of the people at grass root level. The All India Cooperative Week is celebrated in distinct manner by district cooperative unions. More than 74000 cooperative

societies join in the celebration of All India Cooperative Week.

Welcoming the guests and participants to the inauguration function of All India Cooperative week. Shri K. B. Raval, Cooperative Education Officer of Gujarat State Cooperative Union stated that International Cooperative Alliance is an apex international organisation of the cooperative sector. He also said that the Alliance is always active in strengthening the cooperative movement.

Shri C. J. Dave, Assistant Information Officer of Gujarat State Cooperative Union, proposed the Vote of Thanks at the end of the function. The credit for the success of Inaugural function of 64th All India Cooperative Week goes to the hard work and painstaking efforts put in by all the employees of Gujarat State Cooperative Union.



The Gujarat State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank Ltd., Gujarat

his bank was established by Late Shri Udaybhansinghji in 1951 in the erstwhile state of Saurashtra, as an apex body for providing long term agricultural loans to agriculturists and was named as Saurashtra State Central Cooperative Land Mortgage Bank Ltd. to be commensurate with financing for non-farm sector and other activities allied to rural development. The name of the bank is now "Gujarat State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank". The total number of members stood at 673827 at the end of the year. Last year the share capital as on 31st March, 2017 was Rs. 45.63 crores. The share capital at the end of the year i.e. as on 31st March, 2018 stood at Rs. 45.90 crores. The state government contribution to share capital is nil as on 31st March 2018 as the bank has fully repaid government contribution to the state government. Last year, the balance of statutory and other reserve fund was Rs. 539.01 crores and this year as on 31st March 2018 the balance of statutory and other reserve fund is Rs. 548.59 crores. During the year under report, the reserve fund has increased by Rs. 9.58 crores as compared to previous year. The bank has introduced the scheme of accepting fixed deposits from 1991-92.Under this scheme, the outstanding balance of fixed deposit as on 31st March 2018 stood at

Rs. 260.78 crores. 0.50% additional interest is given to the members, employees of the bank and senior citizens on their fixed deposits with the bank. The bank disburses loans to farmers against mortgage of their agricultural land. Thus, the fixed deposits mobilised by the bank are fully secured.

Targets for disbursement of loans to farmers had been assigned to the branches for the year 2017-18 by taking into consideration the recovery, NPA and loan disbursed by the branches during the period 1-4-2017 to 31-3-2018. During the financial year 2017-18, total loans disbursed by the bank was Rs. 177.63 crores an increase of Rs. 35 crores as compared to the previous year. The bank has to observe some regulatory guidelines and norms for disbursement of production oriented loans to the farmers for agriculture and allied agricultural activities. During the year under report, the bank disbursed loans amounting to Rs. 126.08 crores under the medium-term kisan credit card scheme. The bank disburses loans for more than 300 activities in the farm and non-farm sectors. During the financial year, the bank has started the "Kheti Bank" cash credit scheme. Under this scheme, loans will be disbursed to borrowers at the rate of 10% simple interest. If the borrower repays the loan annually along with the interest, he is eligible to get a new loan. Under this scheme, mortgage deed has to done once in five years. The bank has been established to disburse medium term and long term loan (investment credit) to farmers. As per the Gujarat Cooperative Societies Act, 1961, the bank could not disburse crop loans, but as per the amendment made in Section 116 of the Gujarat Cooperative Societies Act 1961, the bank can now do so. For long term loans, the bank is not getting benefit of interest subvention from either Government of India or state government. The rate of interest on refinance available from NABARD is very high. The bank has therefore submitted a proposal to the state government to avail the benefit of 5% interest subvention on the loan disbursed by the bank to farmers. The total demand for the financial year 2017-18 was Rs. 633.61 crores, against which an amount of Rs. 226.97 crores was recovered. Thus, recovery is 35.82%. During the year 2017-18, against the demand of Rs. 225.83 crores, the bank has made a recovery of Rs. 146.17 crores under KVL scheme which is 64.72%.

During the financial year, the bank invested its fund with nationalised banks, DCCBs, GSCB, Gujarat Dena Gramin Bank and Mehsana Urban Cooperative Bank, the value of fund invested in fixed deposit as on 31.03.2018 was Rs. 211.20 crores. As on 31.03.2018 the bank has made investment of Rs. 422.83 crores. For the purpose of investment, the bank has constituted the "Investment Committee" and for its review "Investment Review Committee"d. Arrangement has been made for the surprise checking of investment and cash. During the year, the bank's income from its investment was Rs. 36.70 crores.

The bank organised training programmes at National Institute of Cooperative Management, Gandhinagar for the employees of all cadres. The bank has recruited staff on contract basis. The bank arranged the training programme for all of them at NICM, Gandhinagar. The bank started the facility of safe deposit vault (locker) at Mehsana district office for the first time in Gujarat. In this regard, the bank has received very good response and therefore the bank wants to start "safe deposit vault (locker)" facility in all the district offices, where the banks are located. This will facilitate disbursement of gold loan by the branches situated at district level. The Board has approved the proposal of National Informatics Centre (NIC), Government of India for computerisation of all the operations of the bank. After full computerisation of these branches, all the branches and district offices of the bank can be brought under core banking.

HARYANA

Haryana State Cooperative Supply and Marketing Federation (HAFED)

AFED is the largest apex cooperative federation of Haryana State. It came into existence on November 1st, 1966 alongwith the formation of Haryana as a separate State. Since then it plays a leading role in serving the farmers of Haryana as well as consumers in India and overseas. Over the years, HAFED has become one of the leading organizations in the State in the following segments:-

 Largest food grains procurement agency of the state.

- ◆ A premier warehousing agency of the state for scientific storage of food grains.
- Largest chain of agro processing units in the state.
- Major supplier of quality, hygienic and safe consumer products, cattle/animal feeds in the domestic and overseas markets.
- Largest supply chain network upto the village level in Haryana state for distribution of agri-inputs like fertilizers, pesticides, seeds etc.

Infastructure facilities of HAFED such as godowns, open plants, animal feed plants, pesticides plant, mustard oil plants, etc are well developed. While 15.88 lakh MT of godown capacity exists, storage capacity is of 11.02 lakhs. while 26.84 lakh MT of wheat was procured in the year 2017-18. HAFED is the state agency for procurement of oil seeds and pulses on behalf of NAFED in Haryana. 36,940 MT of mustard seed, and 8,459 MT of sunflower seed was procured in the year 2017-18. The procurement of bajra made by HAFED at support price was 25,114 MT in 2017-18. The purchase of moong is being done for the first time in Haryana under PSF scheme. 1069.35 MT of moong was procured for the year 2016-17. For paddy procurement, the share allotted was 33 per cent and the share procured was also 33%.

HAFED was declared as a nodal agency by the state government for construction of approximately 39.56 Lac MT godowns in the state of Haryana under the private entrepreneur godown (PEG) Scheme, 2008 of the Government of India. Out of this a capacity of 33.81 Lac MTs has been completed upto 31.03.2018, 0.91 Lac MTs capacity is under construction and 0.33 Lac MTs is yet to start.

Major Processing Units

An Oil Mill was set up at Rewari in 1986. This mill produces 'Kachchi Ghani 'Agmark' mustard oil, the quality of which is comparable with the best available in the country.

The processing and marketing facilities in the oil mill have also been improved. Various measures have been taken up to enhance the crushing

capacity and to improve the quality of the oil. Godowns of 3,300 MT have been constructed in the oil mills and a packing section of 1500 MT. HAFED also set up a modern kachchi ghani mustard oil mill at Narnaul of 30 TPD capacity in 2003. While the turnover was 4,871 MT in 2017-18, the profit was Rs. 90 lakhs.

A Cattle Feed plant of 100 TPD capacity was set up in 1976 at Rohtak. The consistency in quality and regular supply has earned a lot of goodwill for HAFED cattle feeds. While the cattle feed produced at Rohtak in 2017-18 was 16,544 MT, the profit was Rs. 50 lakhs.

HAFED set up an animal feed plant at Saktakhera of 50 TPD capacity in the year 2001. While the feed produced was 7,178 MT in 2017-18, the profit was Rs. 25 lakhs.

With a view to make available quality insecticides and weedicides at reasonable prices. HAFED established a Pesticide Plant at Taraori in 1974, which made a profit of Rs. 43.27 lakhs in 2017-18. HAFED has set up a sugar mill of 2500 TCD capacity alongwith incidental co- generation and 2 MW power exportable to state grid at Assandh at an approximate cost of Rs. 80.00 crores during the year 2008. The sugarcane sowing area has been increased remarkably since its inception. Hafed Sugar Mill, Assandh has been awarded National Level 3rd prize in financial management for the year 2013-14, 2nd prize for the year 2014-15 and 1st prize for the year 2016-17 among the cooperative sugar mills situated in India. In order to provide marketing support to local turmeric growing farmers, HAFED has set up a turmeric Plant at Radaur (Yamuna-Nagar) during the year 2009.

The capacity of the plant is 14 MT per day of raw turmeric. With the aim to provide good quality seeds to the farmers at a reasonable price, HAFED has diversified into a new activity of seed production during the year 2010-2011. The profit was Rs. 252.27 lakhs in 2016-17. It has been decided to lease out HAFED Barley Malt Plant, Jatusana to a private party i.e. M/s Piccadily Agro Industries Ltd, Karnal (Haryana) for an annual rent of Rs.83.00 lakh for 5 years with a further enhancement of 5% per annum on the preceding year rent. The rice mill was set up by HAFED at

Taraori in 1970 and up-gradations have been made in the mill from time to time. In the year 2012-13, the rice mill has been modernized and the capacity of the newly set up paddy shelling, polishing and sortex units have increased to 4 MT, 4 MT and 6 MT per hour respectively. The flour mill has been set up at Taraori in the year 2012-13 with a capacity of 20 tons per day. The sale of HAFED consumer products in 2017-18 was Rs. 95 crores. HAFED is the sole state nodal agency for arrangement and distribution of fertilizers through the cooperative network in Haryana and is successfully making timely arrangements of all kinds of fertilizers. Over the years, through the network of its cooperatives, HAFED has been ensuring that the farmers get quality inputs at reasonable prices. HAFED's role in Input supply is important not only from an economy point of view but also from the fact that the farmer is sure of the quality/ purity and is saved the possibility of any damage to his crops.

HAFED has played a vital role in controlling shortage of urea and DAP in the state by taking timely action for advance stocking. HAFED has made advance tie ups with IFFCO, Kribhco, NFL & the Indian Potash Limited for advance stocking of DAP & UREA in the state. For 2017-18, the turnover of HAFED was Rs. 9,051 crores, while the profit was Rs. 50.87 crores.

HIMACHAL PRADESH

H.P. Sate Cooperative Development Federation, Shimla

he cooperative movement is playing a significant role in the upliftment of socioeconomic life of the people of Himachal Pradesh. There are 4875 different types of cooperative societies with a membership of 16.96 lakh. These societies have share capital of Rs. 33203.09 lakh and deposits of Rs. 2584739.42 lakhs. The total working capital of these societies is Rs. 3378241.99 lakh. In the preceding year, these cooperative societies distributed essential items to the tune of Rs. 244772.82 lakh under public PDS. They have supplied fertiliser and agriculture inputs to the tune of RS. 40479.17 lakh. In the same period, agriculture and non-agriculture loan to the tune of Rs. 1224883.44 lakh has also been distributed by the societies to its members. Efforts

have been made to explore the possibility of formation of cooperative societies in hydro electric, floriculture, tourism, ply houses for off-seasonal vegetables and production of medicine herbs etc.

The Himachal Pradesh State Cooperative Development Federation Ltd., Shimla came into being in the year 1960, at the initiative of the Department of Cooperation, H.P. Government. Cooperative education programme was first introduced in Himachal Pradesh in the year 1957 with two cooperative educational units under the charge of a cooperative education officer, in state cooperative bank. This federation is running two cooperative training centres at Mashobra, Distt. Shimla and Garli, Distt Kangra to cater to the training needs of junior personnel of the cooperative department and employees of cooperative institutions. In both training centres one Diploma in Cooperative Management Course of 16 week duration is organised in a year in keeping with the guidelines and syllabus prescribed by National Council for Cooperative Training (NCCT).

4747 persons were trained under various courses for secretary/manager, managing committee members, youth camps, SC/ST campus, etc.

Apart from implementation of cooperative education and training programme, this federation is also undertaking publication and propaganda activities. The main activities under the programme are as below:

- Publication of monthly Magazine "Sahkar Darpan"
- Publication of cooperative literature and pamphlets.
- Organisation of All India Cooperative Week.
- Conferring of awards for outstanding cooperative societies.

A printing press was established by this federation in 1971. In recent years, the printing unit has been modernised by installation of three offset printing machines. In the year 2017-18, the printing press has executed printing work of worth Rs. 5.24 crore.

KARNATAKA

Karnataka State Cooperative Federation Ltd., Bangalore

M ember education programme under the cooperative education scheme has been successfully implemented since 1957 with the guidance from National Cooperative Union of India.

To bring the women folk into the cooperative fold, a separate women's wing was started in 1966. The Federation has been running 8 cooperative training centres, through which a diploma in cooperative management training is conducted for a period of 26 weeks.

In the larger interest of the staff of cooperatives, efforts are being made to start distance education through KICMs from this year.

The Federation has been publishing a "Sahakara" News Weekly, which is in its 50th year of publication and provides vital information on the cooperative movement.

With a view to make the member education programme more effective and also to help face the global challenges, it was decided to arrange cluster type training programmes including 2 or 3 cooperative institutions in a group at the village level, and impart the required training to the participants.

The cluster programme has been widely appreciated. Directors of the societies, women members, members belonging to SC/ST and youth are participating in this programme and the progress for the year 2017-18 is encouraging. While 764 classes were conducted, the number of participants was 24078.

Education and training programmes pertaining to all sectors of cooperative movement have been organized in all the districts of the state. 194 classes were conducted in which the number of participants was 14384.

Details of Training Programmes conducted for LAMPS Cooperative Societies in the year 2017-18

Under training programmes conducted for

LAMP cooperative societies in the year 2017-18, four training programmes were conducted and 148 members attended these programmes. 789 candidates have undergone the training conducted by the federation through KICMs.

The federation arranges state level training programmes on different sectors of the cooperative movement. During 2017-18, 52 such programmes were arranged and 5339 people participated. The Federation has been arranging essay and debate competitions on cooperation for the students of schools and colleges at the district level though district cooperative unions. 576 students have participated in debating competitions and 700 students have participated in essay competitions from 29 districts of the state. 68 students have participated in the state level debating competition drawn from pre-degree, degree and post degree colleges.

The federation has a separate research and evaluation cell, the objective of which is to study and evaluate the working of cooperatives and schemes. The cell has been studying the implementation of some of the schemes launched by the government through cooperatives like zero per cent agricultural loan, subsidy for supply of milk etc. Further the cell in coordination with Regional Institute of Cooperative Management, has taken up the study of computerization of accounts in PACS in the state.



The Karnataka State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank Ltd., Bangalore

arnataka State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank was established in 1929. With the establishment of Agriculture Refinance and Development Corporation (ARDC) in 1963, the bank started changing its policies and since 1965 the bank has been advancing various types of development loans to agriculturists of the state. The bank has changed its name to Karnataka State Cooperative Agriculture and Rural Development Bank Ltd.

There are 178 taluka level primary cooperative agriculture and rural development banks (PCARDB) spread over all the 175 taluks in the state, of which two PCARDBs are under

liquidation. The 25 branch offices of the KSCA & RD bank at district level are supervising the activities of the PCARD banks in their jurisdiction. The bank is functioning in a federal set-up where loaning is made in two tiers. The PCARD banks are individual autonomous bodies and are members of the KSCARD bank. The bank has five associated members, which are semi state government institutions, viz., Karnataka Agro Industires Corporation, Ware Housing Corporation, Karnataka Electricity Board and Command Area Development Authorities of Major Irrigation Progrects, Karnataka State Cooperative Marketing Federation Ltd., etc. The KSCARDB and each PCARDB are managed by their board of management consisting of elected directors. government nominees and ex-officio directors.

The main activity of the bank is dispensation of long term credit (investment credit) for agricultural and rural development under schematic lending approved by NABARD for leveling and bunding, fencing, and construction of cattle shed, farm house, etc. The lending programmes cover productive purposes like minor irrigation, horticulture and plantation crops, farm forestry, waste land development, dairy development, etc. The bank has facilitated 81 PCARDBs so far to undertake e-stamping business under a tie up with the Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd.

The main financial sources of the bank are its share capital, reserves, deposits and borrowings in the form of refinance from NABARD, state governments and Government of India. Since inception up to 31.03.2018, the bank has floated Rs. 342.03 crores of debentures under the ordinary programme, Rs. 3234.10 crores under special development programmes and Rs. 63.18 crores under Rural Housing Bank (NHB). Debenture and direct loan outstanding as on 31.03.2018 is Rs. 1487.31 crores. From inception till 31.03.2018, the bank has advanced a sum of Rs. 5670.49 crores the covering 1836056 accounts. The bank has advanced agri loans of Rs. 21981.98 crores covering 207642 accounts at the rate of 3% interest from 2008 to 2018.

The bank has introduced E-stamping business in the selected 80 PCARDBs in consultation with Stock Holding Corporation of

India. Further, the bank has decided to take up remaining PCARDBs to introduce E-Stamping business in consultation with the Stock Holding Corporation of India.

The bank has established a women development cell to promote entrepreneurship among women. It identifies women borrowers in the rural areas by assigning suitable projects to motivate their self-confidence to lead an independent life.

Almost every scheme implemented by the bank has a bearing on the upliftment of vulnerable sections of the society, namely small holders, scheduled caste and scheduled tribe farmers, in particular. Many of the schemes like dairy, piggery, bullock and bullock-carts, sheep/goat rearing are beneficial for such farmers.

The KSCA and RD bank is extending long-term agriculture and non-agriculture loans to farmers through its 178 PCARD banks in the state. The amount of loans so advanced is being recovered every year depending on the demand out of the loan outstanding every year. 55.06% was recovered from the members from 1.4.2017 till 31.3.2018.



General Insurance Employees' Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Udupi, Karnataka

General Insurance Employees' Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Udupi, Karnataka was initially registered with Joint Registrar of Cooperative Societies (urban bank cell), Bangalore on 27.01.1994 with area of operation being the entire Karnataka state, which expanded its' operations to Goa. The total membership of the society stands at 1,369 as on 31.03.2018 from the states of Karnataka and Goa. The society provides credit facilities to members through raising funds from them in the form of share capital, thrift/recurring and term deposits and mobilising funds from the nominal members.

The society has also set up an educational institution named Jnanaganga Pre-University College in a rural area in Udupi District from the Academic year 2011-12, by obtaining permission from the Karnataka Education Department,

Bangalore for the benefit of members' children and students hailing from the economically backward section of the community. A circulating library under the title 'The Wisdom' for members children and public was also opened.



Shree Mata Cooperative Credit Society Ltd., Belagavi, Karnataka

he society was registered under the Multi-State Act under No. MSCS-PR-270-2008 with the aim to help the common man to become a member of the society and avail the facilities for overall development. Till today there are 40 branches of the society, of which 21 are in Karnataka, 16 in Maharashtra and 3 in Goa state. There are ordinary (A-class) members of the society with a share capital of Rs. 85,22,125.

Share capital	Rs. 85,2	22,125
Reserve fund and other fund	Rs. 38,83,6	63,802
Loan and advances	Rs. 251,54,	56,312
All types of deposits	Rs. 267,29,8	39,413
Working capital	Rs. 310,00,0	00,000
Turn over	Rs. 1,578,00,0	00,000
Net profit	Rs. 2,55,	54,828

The following activities were carried out by the society during the year for members :

- 217 merit students were honoured and encouraged to pursue future education.
- Vaisha Poornima, Ganesh festival and various competitions such as food, rangoli exhibition, fashion show, hindi sangit and drama competitions were organised.
- Religious and national festivals are celebrated on a grand scale. Staff training workshops are also conducted.
- National and religious festivals are celebrated for generating awareness among the members of the society.
- The society is working in a satisfactory manner and dividend is also given to the

members. Maximum help is provided to the members and their familesy as per their needs. Health camps are also arranged and materials are provided to them. Yashasvini, health care, insurance facilities are also provided to the members.

KERALA

State Cooperative Union, Kerala

n Kerala, the State Cooperative Union is playing a major role in strengthening cooperative education and training through 13 cooperative training colleges, 10 cooperative training centres, 6 JDC extension centres, 14 cooperative member education units and 7 women cooperative member education units. MBA Degree is provided through Kerala Institute of Cooperative Management (KICMA).

Cooperative Week is celebrated every year as per the guidelines of NCUI. During this year, the 64th AII India Cooperative Week was celebrated in a grand manner at Kozhikode. The celebration was inaugurated by the Hon'ble Chief Minister Shri Pinarayi Vijayan and was presided over by Shri Kadakampally Surendran, Hon'ble Minister for Cooperation. The state level valedictory function of the cooperative week celebration was held under the auspices of the State Cooperative Union and Kottayam district cooperative bank. The function was inaugurated by Shri Kadakampally Surendran, Hon'ble Minister for Cooperation and presided over by Shri Thiruvanchoor Radhakrishnan, MLA.

The State Cooperative Union also conducted an Essay and Elocution competition in connection with "All India Cooperative Week celebration" for school and college students. State Cooperative Union is also conducting Kalotsavam every year to promote cultural talents of HDC & BM and JDC students who are studying in the various cooperative colleges. On 1st July, 2017 the State Cooperative Union also celebrated 95th International Cooperative Day, as per the direction of NCUI. To commemorate the Cooperative Day, the State Cooperative Union launched one lakh cooperative stamps, which were distributed throughout Kerala. The stamp was launched by the Hon'ble Cooperative Minister, Shri

Kadakampally Surendran. During this period, the State Cooperative Union also started construction of a new building for the cooperative training centre at Munnad, Kasargod, in which hi-tech class rooms, library with Wi Fi and computer lab are provided. "Malayalam Sreshta Bhasha Day" was celebrated in the Head Office, cooperative training colleges and centres.

State Cooperative Union and Kerala Institute of Cooperative Management (KICMA) jointly conducted a state level workshop on "Professionalism in Cooperative Sector" at Thiruvananthpuram on 15th February 2018. The workshop was inaugurated by Shri Kadakampally Surendran, Hon'ble Minister for Cooperation. The recommendations of the workshop were submitted to Shri Pinarayi Vijayan, Hon'ble Chief Minister of Kerala.

State Cooperative Union, Kerala is publishing a monthly journal "The Kerala Cooperative Journal" since the last six decades. The monthly circulation of the magazine is nearly 11000 copies. During this year, member education programmes were conducted effectively throughout the state in collaboration with circle cooperative unions and district co-ordination committees. Department of Cooperation, Government of Kerala and State Cooperative Union, Kerala jointly organised the 8th Cooperative Congress at Kannur on February, 10-11 & 12, 2018. The Cooperative Congress was inaugurated by Shri Pinarayi Vijayan, Hon'ble Chief Minister of Kerala. Shri Kadakampally Surendran, Hon'ble Minister for Cooperation presided over the function. NCUI Chief Executive, Shri N. Satya Narayana, Shri Balu Subramaniyam G. Iyer, Regional Director, ICA Asia Pacific, V.K. Ramachandran, Vice Chairman, State Planning Board, Bhima Subramaniyam, MD, NAFSCOB, Shri Anil Karanjkar, Head, VAMNICOM, Shri K.K. Ravendran, MD, NCARDB, Shri B.K. Mishra, MD, NFFC Ltd. presented papers on the occasion.

ODISHA

Odisha State Cooperative Union

All the primary, central and apex cooperative societies of the state are members of the Odisha State Coopertive Union. The total membership of the Union as on 31.03.2018 is

1265. The activities of the Odisha State Cooperative Union comprise of cooperative education, training, publicity and propaganda.

The training infrastructure arrangement of the Odisha State Cooperative Union comprises of 5 (five) Centers for Cooperative Management, and 17 (Seventeen) field level Cooperative Training Centers functioning at Central Cooperative Bank level of the state. The field level cooperative training centers at Central Cooperative Bank level are conducting member education and awareness programmes for the members, potential members, office bearers, employees of the primary cooperatives working at grass root level in the state. The Union has also conducted member education programmes, special member education programmes. cooperative leadership education programmes and awareness programme for the members and elected committee members. During the year 2017-18, 76 member education programmes were conducted and 2121 participants were trained. During the year 2017-18, 134 education programmes with 6433 participants were organised.

The Odisha State Cooperative Union is organizing different training programmes including D.C.M Course for the employees and office bearers at 4 (four) CCMs. During the year 2017-18, the Union conducted 110 training programmes and trained 8950 participants. For information activities, the Union is bringing out a fortnightly News Letter, "The Samabaya Samachar" and one quarterly Magazine "The Kalyani". The Union also undertakes the publication of Profiles and Brochures issued by Registrar, Cooperative Societies, Odisha. The total cost of printing is borne by the Union from the annual grant-in-aid received from the Government . The Union undertakes the important activity of publishing books, booklets on different subjects of cooperatives in Odisha and distributes them among the cooperative societies. The "Samabaya Samachar" acts as main spokesman of the Odisha State Cooperative Union in which news covering different aspects of cooperatives in Odisha as well as other parts of the country is published. It also covers news in the field of agriculture and rural development. During the year 2017-18, the Union published 8 issues of Samabaya Samachar. In addition, the

Union also published the special issue of Samabaya Samachar and Souveniur on the eve of the All India Cooperative Week celebration. "The Kalyani" is a very popular name in the field and well recognized in every corner of Odisha. During the year 2017-18, two issues of Kalyani were published as it is a quarterly magazine. On the occasion of All India Cooperative Week celebration, the Union published a "Guideline Booklet" in Odiya Language and distributed the same to almost all cooperatives of the state. During the year 2017-18, the Union published and circulated 4000 guideline booklets on the eve of the 64th All India Cooperative Week Celebration. The Union publishes a Soochana Pustika book for the Board of Directors, containing information on cooperation, values and principles different Government schemes of the cooperation department and other allied departments. The Union also publishes Soochana Pustika containing information about the duties and responsibilities of the members of the cooperative societies.

Odisha State Cooperative Union has published a book containing information about the registration procedure of cooperative societies and self help groups. It also publishes a leaflet on benefits available in the PACS & LAMPS. It further publishes a booklet containing guidelines related to formation of joint liability group for the landless. small and marginal farmers. The Union initiates publication of all types of bye-laws and application forms of cooperative societies and supplies the same to needy persons at nominal price. Odisha State Cooperative Union organizes state level workshops, symposiums seminars, cooperatives, both at district and state level, to discuss the problems and prospects of different sectors of the cooperative movement of the state. During the year 2017-18, a state level seminar was held on 18.06.2017 in collaboration with National Cooperative Union of India involving 150 participants.

PONDICHERRY

Pondicherry State Cooperative Union

The Pondicherry State Cooperative Union was registered on 10.02.1975 and started working from 23-2-1976. The cooperative societies in the Union Territory of Puducherry are

members of this Union. It is an apex level cooperative institution with the prime objective of propagating the principles of cooperation among the public. Its sources of funds are subscription from member societies, cooperative education fund from cooperative societies, and grant-in-aid provided by the government.

During the year, the Union celebrated the 64th All India Cooperative Week on the main theme, "Empowering People through Digitalisation of Cooperatives".

The Pondicherry Institute of Cooperative Management, which is a unit of the Pondicherry State Cooperative Union is a junior level cooperative institution, established by the Union in 1980. The objective of the Pondicherry State Cooperative Union is to propagate principles of cooperation including inculcation of cooperative education at various levels in the society. In order to realise the goal, the Union has started the Pondicherry Institute of Cooperative Management which conducts Degree and Diploma course such as BCA, MCA, MBA, PGDCA and B.Sc., other need based courses, Diploma/certificate in job oriented courses for rural and urban youth and also to the employees of cooperative societies such as other courses like JAT, Tally Course, and Certificate course in Cooperation, computer operations etc., for the employees of cooperative institutions.

This Institute (PICM) is a partner institution of Bharathiar University, Coimbatore, conducting U.G. and P.G. courses like BCA, B.Sc., (Computer Science) MBA, MCA and PGDCA from the academic year 2011-12 on regular-week end courses. In addition to the above courses, the Institute has obtained the approval to conduct B.Com., MSW, M.Sc., (Computer Science), M.Sc., (Information Technology from the academic year 2017-18 and admitted students in B.Com. degree course. It is also a partner institution of the National Institute of Electronics and Information Technology (NIELIT) an autonomous scientific society of the Department of Information Technology, Ministry of Communications and Information Technology, Government of India (formerly called as DOEACC society). The Institute has been authorized by NIELIT to conduct the online examination and skill development programme for Basic Computer

Course, Course on Computer Concepts and Rural Skill Development Programme.

The Government of Pondicherry, Information Technology Department authorized the PICM to provide computer training (Office Automation) to the Pondicherry government officials in the evening hours. So far this Union has trained 400 government officials during the year 2015-16 and 2016-17, while during 2017-18, 138 government officials were trained.

In order to provide opportunity for professional education and capacity building among the student community in the Union Territory, the "Cooperative College of Education" B.Ed., Degree course was started during the academic year 2005-06. The said degree course was approved by the National Council for Teacher Education, Bangalore and affiliated to the Pondicherry University. The fee for the course is fixed by the Government of Puducherry. From the academic year (2015-16), the NCTE revised the norms of the B.Ed., course i.e. the duration of the B.Ed. course has been changed to two years with the student strength of 50 per year. This Institute is having well equipped air-conditioned computer labs.

RAJASTHAN

Rajasthan Rajya Bunkar Sahakari Sangh Ltd.

R ajasthan Rajya Bunkar Sahakari Sangh Ltd. is a state level apex cooperative society in handloom sector. It was constituted on 26th August 1957. At present, 501 PACS are members of the Sangh of which 193 are working. At present, Bunkar Sangh has 15 outlets in the state and one outlet at Delhi. As per the bye-laws of Bunkar Sangh, the Board is constuituted of 17 board members of which 12 are elected members. Since 04.04.2018 an elected board is in position at the Bunkar Sangh.

Against 141 sanctioned posts, only 30 employees are working. Out of them 41 employees are on reverse deputation in another department. The authorized share capital of Bunkar Sangh is Rs. 500 lakh on 31.03.2016. The share capital is Rs. 471.27 lakh.

Bunkar Sangh has been running in losses of Rs. 743.09 as on 31.3.2017. Bunkar Sangh has fixed assets of Rs. 50 crores. For the year 2017-18, the Bunkar Sangh has achieved a target of Rs. 1251.44 lakhs.



Rajasthan Rajya Sahakari Bhoomi Vikas Bank Limited, Jaipur : Role of Land Development Banks in Rural Development

There is a federal structure of land development banks in the State. State Land Development Bank at state level was established on March 26, 1957. At district level, primary land development banks are working. Long term loans are being distributed through 132 branches of 36 primary land development banks in 33 districts of the state.

In the financial year 2017-18, loans of Rs.243.63 crore have been disbursed by the primary land development banks against the long-term loan target of Rs.300.00 crore, which is 81.21 percent of the targeted. Besides this, crop loans of Rs. 23.38 crore and mortgage loans of Rs 4.53 crore have also been distributed by primary land development banks. Thus, in the year 2017-18, a total of 271.54 crore loans were distributed by the primary banks. During financial Year 2017-18, Rs 1192.62 lakh have been disbursed by the banks under minor irrigation. The loan amount of Rs. 1833.29 lakh was disbursed by the banks during year 2017-18.

For diversified activities like fruit plantations, dairy, fisheries, sheep / goat rearing, market yard, land leveling, land conservation, poultry farming, etc. Rs 16511.77 lakh was disbursed by the banks during year 2017-18.

With view to improve the economic condition of farmers in rural areas, loans are being provided to rural artisans and small entrepreneurs for the development of small cottage industries. Rs. 1775.59 lakh was disbursed by the banks during year 2017-18 in the non farm sector. Rs. 3049.98 lakh was disbursed by the banks during 2017-18 in the field of rural

housing. Rs. 2338.44 lakh was disbursed by the banks as crop loan during 2017-18. Rs. 452.52 lakh was disbursed by the banks as mortagage loan distribution during 2017-18.

Keeping in view the interests of the farmers, several schemes have been implemented by the land development banks in collaboration with the state government.

In the financial year 2017-18, under the 5% interest subsidy scheme, interest subsidy of 1125.00 lakhs was provided to 13927 farmers by the state government. From the initial year of the scheme i.e. from the financial year 2014-15 to 2017-18, interest subsidy of 2075.00 lakhs has been provided to 29935 farmers by the state government. In view of the increasing NPA of land development banks, the one-time settlement scheme has been implemented for defaulters after the acceptance of the state government. Under this scheme, in the year 2017-18, if a defaulter repays his overdue loan, 50% relief in overdue interest and 100% relief in penal interest / other expenses is being provided to him. Till March, 2018, relief for 926.30 lakhs has been provided to 3916 eligible defaulters under this scheme.

SIKKIM

Sikkim State Cooperative Union

he exposure visit of 100 progressive farmers of different cooperative societies of Sikkim was conducted as a part of the training and awareness programme on cooperative education under RKVY. The programme was conducted by Sikkim State Cooperative Union for two days i.e. from 21st to 22nd April, 2017. Important institutions visited on this occasion were — ICAR, Tadong, East Sikkim, National Orchid Research Centre, ICAR, Pakyong, Horticulture Farm, Mazitar, East Sikkim, etc.

A five days exposure visit from 1st May to 5th May, 2017 to the cooperatively developed state of Gujarat, for 20 progressive farmers of selected MPCS of all districts of Sikkim was conducted by Sikkim State Cooperative Union. During the visit, various important institutions in Gujarat like

Madhur Dairy, Amul Dairy, Kheda District Cooperative Union, Gujarat State Cooperative Union, etc. were visited.

Sikkim State Cooperative Union (SICUN), in collaboration with National Cooperative Development Corporation organized four training programmes for the presidents and managers of multi purpose cooperative societies of Sikkim, during the year 2017-18 aimed at developing cooperatives as rural growth centre. A two days district wise sensitization programme for Board of Directors of MPCS was organized on 18th August, 2017 in collaboration with Indian Farmer's Fertilizer Cooperative Society Ltd. (IFFCO) to enroll IFFCO membership. Sikkim State Cooperative Union organized awareness programmes for students of Class XI, XII of Assam Lingzey Sr. Sec. School i.e. on 29th January, 2018 and 13th February, 2018 of one day each, emphasizing topics such as cooperative Ideology, values & principles, procedure of registration of student's cooperative society, etc.

All India Cooperative Week was observed by Sikkim State Cooperative Union from 14th November to 20th November, 2017. The programme was graced by the Hon'ble Vice Chairman of Sikkim State Cooperative Union, who was the Chief Guest on the occasion. On 17th March, 2018, Sikkim State Cooperative Union organized a state level workshop on labour cooperatives of Sikkim, in collaboration with National Labour Cooperative Federation of India, New Delhi at the auditorium hall of Sikkim State Cooperative Union. The programme was chaired by the Hon'ble Advisor, Cooperation Deptt.

TAMIL NADU

Indian Cooperative Network for Women Promoted by Working Women's Forum (India)

The Indian Cooperative Network for Women (ICNW), the first co-operative society in the south for poor women and of poor women was initiated in the year of May 1981. During the year April 2017 to March 2018, Indian Cooperative Network for Women, one of the most recognized cooperatives of women in India working for the enhancement of women's empowerment

organised numerous national and international activities that are mentioned below:-

Dr. Nandini Azad President, Indian Cooperative Network for Women, an accomplished co-operator and development practitioner was invited to participate at the *UN SDG High Level Political Forum at UN Plaza, New York* from 10-19 July 2017. On 13 and 14 November 2017 at the meeting of the ICA Gender Equality Committee and ICA-AP Regional Board at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia Dr.Nandini Azad, President ICNW & Acting Chairperson of ICA-AP Women's Committee presented the Activity Report of 2017.

Alongwith Ms. Kanako Miyazawa of JCCU, Dr. Nandini Azad also conducted a Workshop on Integrating Gender Equality in Cooperatives at the ICA Global Conference on November 15, 2017 at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. During the Session on 'Gender Affirmatives - Why Women in Cooperatives', she briefed the audience about the low participation of women in the labour market as compared to men and the prevalence of the high concentration of women in the informal sector. At this event, another significant development took place when IRU Secretary General, Mr. Andreas Kappes met Dr. Nandini Azad, Special Appointee Gender to the Board of IRU at this Global Conference and General Assembly in Kuala Lumpur. Mr. Kappes explicitly welcomed her important work and strong commitment to gender equality and the same was published both in the IRU newsletter and website.

Dr. Nandini Azad was invited to speak at the High-Level luncheon at the United Nations in New York on 1st February 2018 at the 56th Social Development Ministers Conference. She shared ICNW's experience in helping women in the informal economy to come out of poverty, secure their livelihood and seek life time development opportunities.

Dr.Nandini Azad was part of the ICA delegation to the UN Commission on the status of women (UNCSW) in New York, March.12-17, 2018. She was asked to speak on the India's official panel by the Ministry Of Women And Child Development on 14th March, 2018 on the 'Beti Bachao - Beti Padao' national campaign that was very much appreciated.

ICNW continues to inspire the organization to formulate / implement various programmes in this regard. Dr. Jaya Arunachalam, President Working Women's Forum (India) was invited to participate in the working group session on civic engagement on 14 September, 2017. She said that since 35 years WWF/ICNW in its orientation programme has always placed a greater emphasis on creating awareness about the improved sanitation and solid waste management practices that pollute the environment and increases the risk of diseases due to non-cleaning of the drainage.

Similarly, Dr. Jaya Arunachalam, President Working Women's Forum (India) was invited as Chief Guest for the Women's Day Celebration at Mohammed Sathak College for Arts & Science, Chennai to enlighten the women staff and girl students with her speech.

To provide opportunities for the younger generation towards development work, ICNW accommodates students to undergo internship/visits to facilitate them to be change agents. As a result Ms. Ateba and Ms. Aleena, students of integrated B.A.,L.L.B., Course Mar Gregorios College of Law, Thiruvananthapuram, interned from April 20 to 30, 2017 at ICNW.

Professor Dr. Bruni Landwehr led a team of 18 students who are pursuing a teacher training course at University of Leipzig, Germany to visit Indian Cooperative Network of Women Chennai headquarters on February 14, 2018. Dr. Jaya Arunachalam, President, Working Women's Forum (India) and Dr.Nandini Azad, President, Indian Cooperative Network for Women briefed them about the origin and activities of the organisation and shared their ideas.

As part of the curriculum, 12 students of Madras Medical Mission led by Senior Lecturer Mr.S.P. Raj, visited WWF/ICNW on March 14, 2018. A two day orientation programme for 30 women co-operators of Indian Cooperative Network for Women promoted by Working Women's Forum (India) was organized on 9 & 10 February 2018 at Chennai Headquarters. The women co-operators from all the 14 branches of Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka participated in this orientation programme.

The two day training programme focused on cooperatives principles, byelaws, important provisions/ amendment, credit appraisal, accounting /auditing of cooperatives, basics of using Microsoft windows desktop properties, etc.

WEST BENGAL

West Bengal State Cooperative Union

Week Diploma Course as well as short term courses were conducted at our CCMs. While 417 courses was 10480.

Members Education Programmes are conducted at grass root level i.e. society level by the DCEI (District Cooperative Education Instructor) engaged in every District Cooperative Union. While 1926 classes were held, the number of participants was 76445.

International Cooperative Day was celebrated on Saturday, the 1st July, 2017. The role of cooperatives in sustainable development was discussed on the occasion. The West Bengal State Cooperative Union observed the 64th All India Cooperative Week from 14.11.2017 to 20.11.2017. The programme was inaugurated by the Hon'ble MIC, Cooperation, Sri Arup Roy. Sri Swarna Kamal Saha, MLA & Hon'ble Chairman was the President of the programme.

State and district level debates and quiz competitions were also organized for the students of Class IX- XII by the West Bengal State Cooperative Union. The winners and runners up of district level debate & quiz competitions took part in the State level competition. The Debate competition was held on 12.02.2018 in the Seminar Hall of West Bengal State Cooperative Union. The debate and quiz competitions are organized by West Bengal State Cooperative Union to spread the idea of cooperation among the students at school level. The monthly Cooperative Journal "BHANDAR" is being published every year.

mÙkj i*i*nsk

mùkj insk dksvkijsVo; sfu; u fy-

उत्तर प्रदेश कोआपरेटिव यूनियन लि. (पी.सी.यू.) एक राज्य स्तरीय व्यावसायिक सहकारी संस्था है जिसका मुख्य उद्देश्य सहकारी शिक्षा एवं प्रशिक्षण की व्यवस्था करना तथा सहकारी कार्यक्रमों का व्यापक प्रचार—प्रसार करना है। इस संस्था का गठन वर्ष 1928 में हुआ था।

उपर्युक्त उद्देश्यों की पूर्ति हेतु प्रदेश के जनपदों में सहकारी शिक्षा हेतु सचल इकाइयों की स्थापना की गई है, तथा निम्न 06 सहकारी प्रबंध प्रशिक्षण केन्द्र स्थापित किये गये हैं:

मेरठ, 2. वाराणसी, 3 हैबरा (इटावा), 4. महोबा,
 अयोध्या (फैजाबाद), एवं 6. बिलारी (मुरादाबाद)।

सहकारी शिक्षा कार्यक्रम के अर्न्तगत सहकारी सदस्यों/भावी सदस्यों एवं सहकारी बंधुओं/पदाधिकारियों को गोष्टियों एवं सभाओं के माध्यम से सहकारी सिद्धांत, दर्शन तथा व्यवहार आदि की शिक्षा दी जाती है। वर्ष 2017—18 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2017 से 31.03. 2018 तक कुल 12653 सहकारी बन्धुओं/सदस्यों/भावी सदस्यों को शिक्षित किया गया।

संस्था द्वारा संचालित 6 प्रशिक्षण केन्दों पर पत्रोपाधि सत्र (डिप्लोमा कोर्स) एवं अल्पकालिक सत्र आयोजित किये जाते हैं। वर्ष 2017—18 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2017 से 31.03.2018 तक कुल 263 कार्मिकों को प्रशिक्षित किया गया। सहकारी शिक्षा एवं प्रशिक्षण कार्यक्रमों के संचालन हेतु सहकारी संस्थाओं द्वारा सहकारी शिक्षा निधि में अंशदान किये जाने का प्रावधान उ.प्र. सहकारी नियमावली के नियम संख्या—138 में किया गया है, जिसके आधार पर वर्ष 2017—18 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2017 से 31.03.2018 तक कुल रु. 38.20 लाख शिक्षा निधि के मद में प्राप्त हुए।

सहकारी कार्यक्रमों के व्यापक प्रचार—प्रसार हेतु संस्था द्वारा "सहकारिता साप्ताहिक" समाचार पत्र एवं "सहकारिता मासिक" पत्रिका का नियमित प्रकाशन हेतु संस्था का एक अपना सहकारी प्रेस वर्ष 1969 से स्थापित है। इस प्रेस के द्वारा सहकारी क्षेत्र की संस्थाओं के उपयोगार्थ विभिन्न प्रकार की स्टेशनरी छपाई का कार्य भी किया जाता है। चालू वर्ष 2017—18 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2017 से 31.03.2018 तक कुल रु. 113.76 लाख का व्यवसाय किया गया।

वित्तीय संसाधनों में वृद्धि लाने के उद्देश्य से प्रदेश की सहकारी संस्थाओं की परिसम्पत्तियों / कैश की सुरक्षा तथा सहकारी सदस्यों की किसी दुर्घटना में मृत्यु / अपंगता की स्थिति में उन्हें बीमा की सुविधा एक समान एवं न्यूनतम दर पर उपलब्ध कराये जाने की व्यवस्था पी.सी.यू. द्वारा साधारण बीमा कम्पनी के सहयोग से सुलभ कराई जा रही है। वर्ष 2017—18 में इस योजना के अन्तर्गत दिनांक 01.04.2017 से 31.03.2018 तक कुल रु. 68.23 लाख का बीमा कमीशन मद में आय प्राप्त हुई। संस्था द्वारा वर्ष 2017—18 में किसानों से 156352.54 मि. टन गेहूं एवं 418355.33 मी. टन धान क्रय किया गया है जिसे संस्था को प्रशासनिक शुल्क के रूप में 1162.39 लाख प्राप्त हुई।

संस्था द्वारा भू—तल पर आधुनिक सुविधाओं से युक्त वातानुकूलित ओडिटोरियम का संचालन किया जा रहा है जो सहकारी तथा गैर—सहकारी संस्थाओं / संगठनों को गोष्ठी, सेमिनार, सम्मेलन आदि हेतु उचित दरों पर उपलब्ध कराया जाता है।

वर्ष 1996–97 के पूर्व तक शिक्षा / प्रशिक्षण एवं प्रचार-प्रसार के लिए राज्य सरकार से पी.सी.यू. को वित्तीय सहायता उपलब्ध करायी जाती रही है, जो 1996–97 के पश्चात से पूर्णतया बन्द कर दी गयी है, जिसके फलस्वरूप संस्था को अपने कार्यक्रमों के संचालन हेतु वित्तीय किटनाईयों का सामना करना पड़ रहा है।

संस्था की आय का मुख्य स्रोत विभिन्न सहकारी संस्थाओं से प्राप्त होने वाली सहकारी शिक्षा निधि की धनराशि है। वर्तमान में बैंकिंग सहकारी संस्थाओं यथा— पैक्स, उ.प्र. सहकारी बैंक के लिए शिक्षा निधि ऐच्छिक होने के कारण उनसे शिक्षा निधि में धनराशि प्राप्त नहीं हो पा रही है।

वित्तीय वर्ष 2017—18 के आय—व्यय में उत्तर प्रदेश को आपरेटिव यूनियन लि., लखनऊ के 6 सहकारी प्रबंध प्रशिक्षण केन्द्रों के संचालन हेतु रु. 100.00 लाख की अनुदान स्वरूप वित्तीय सहायता का बजट में प्रावधान कराने का अनुरोध भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ से किया गया था, जिससे सहकारी क्षेत्र के मानव संसाधन के विकास एवं सहकारी प्रशिक्षण—व्यवस्था को सुदृढ़ बनाने के लिए प्रभावी प्रशिक्षण कार्यक्रम संचालित किये जायेंगे। इससे सहकारी आंदोलन को गित मिलेगी।



mÙkj insk Igdkjh ∨kokI fuxe

उत्तर प्रदेश के निवासियों की आवास की मूलभूत आवश्यकता की पूर्ति हेतु सहकारी आवास समितियों की शीर्ष सहकारी संस्था के रूप में निगम (पूर्ववर्ती नाम उत्तर प्रदेश सहकारी आवास संघ लि.) का गठन वर्ष 1969 में किया गया। निगम की स्थापना का मुख्य उद्देश्य अपनी सदस्य सहकारी आवास समितियों के माध्यम से एवं सीधे अपने सदस्यों को आवासी ऋण उपलब्ध कराने के अतिरिक्त सहकारी आवास समितियों के माध्यम से आवासीय कालोनी विकसित करना एवं सदस्य सहकारी आवास समितियों को मार्गदर्शन प्रदान करना है।

विगत वर्षों में निगम के सदस्यों की संख्या में सतत् वृद्धि हुई है जो बढ़कर वर्ष 2016—17 में 14033 हो गयी है, जिसमें सदस्य सहकारी आवास समिति की संख्या 1475 है एवं व्यक्तिगत सदस्यों की संख्या 12558 है। 2016—17 में निगम द्वारा वितरित ऋण रु. 25824.77 लाख थी।

वित्तीय वर्ष 2003—04 से वित्त पोषक संस्थाओं से ऋण न प्राप्त होने के कारण आवास निगम के ऋण वितरण पर प्रतिकूल प्रभाव पड़ा है। ऋण वितरण वित्तीय वर्ष 2003—04 से आवास निगम द्वारा अपने श्रोतों से सीमित संसाधनों के अन्तर्गत किया जा रहा है। इसी कारणवश निगम की कुल अंशपूजी में भी ऋणी सदस्यों के योगदान से होने वाली वृद्धि पर्याप्त नहीं हो सकी है, चूंकि काफी सदस्यों का ऋण समाप्त हो चुका है एवं उनकी अंशपूजी का समायोजन हो गया है।

माह सितम्बर 2003 में निगम की प्रबंध समिति को असंवैधानिक रूप से भंग किये जाने के पश्चात निगम के ऋण वितरण एवं ऋण की वसूली पर प्रतिकूल प्रभाव पड़ा एवं वर्ष 2008 तक निगम का ऋण वितरण लगभग शून्य हो गया तथा ऋण की वसूली में लगभग 40 प्रतिशत की गिरावट आई। मा. उच्च न्यायालय के आदेश के अनुपालन में निगम की प्रबंध समिति द्वारा माह जून 2009 में पुनः कार्य करना प्रारम्भ किया गया। उसके पश्चात प्रबंध तंत्र द्वारा ऋण वितरण एवं ऋण की वसूली बढ़ाने हेत् हर सम्भव प्रयास किया जा रहा है।

निगम द्वारा वितरित ऋण की वसूली को बढ़ाने हेतु लगातार प्रयास किया जा रहा है। किसी भी वित्तीय संस्था के वित्तीय प्रबंधन एवं विकास हेतु उसके द्वारा वितरित किये गये ऋणों की वसूली की महत्वपूर्ण भूमिका होती है, उसी क्रम में निगम की वसूली वर्ष 2016—17 में रु. 607.01 लाख हुई है। गत वर्षों की तुलना में वसूली का प्रतिशत कम होने का मुख्य कारण भारतीय जीवन बीमा निगम द्वारा वित्त संसाधन न

उपलब्ध कराने से ऋण वितरण का कार्य अवरुद्ध रहा तथा मात्र बकायेदारों से ही वसूली की जानी थी, जिससे समितियों द्वारा वसूली में पर्याप्त सहयोग नहीं किया गया। चालू वर्ष की वसूली में यथेष्ठ प्रगति लाने के लिये वर्ष के आरम्भ से ही वसूली अभियान चलाया जा रहा है। वर्ष 2016—17 में वसूली 14.60 प्रतिशत थी।

निगम द्वारा विगत वर्षों में वित्तीय संस्थाओं से वित्त पोषण प्राप्त करने का प्रयास किया गया परन्तु कितपय कारणों से वित्त पोषक संस्थाओं से वित्त पोषण नहीं प्राप्त हो सका है। इस संबंध में भारतीय जीवन बीमा निगम, मुम्बई के शीर्ष / विरुष्ठ अधिकारियों के स्तर पर पत्राचार / वार्ता कर वित्त पोषण प्राप्त करने हेतु कार्यवाही की जा रही है। आन्ध्रा बैंक से रु. 5.00 करोड़ की कैश लिमिट 2013—14 में प्राप्त की गयी, जो लिमिट अभी भी जारी है। आशा है कि वित्तीय संस्थाओं से आगामी वित्तीय वर्ष में वित्त पोषण प्राप्त हो जायेगा। वर्ष 2016—17 में वित्तीय संस्थाओं से प्राप्त क्रमिक ऋण की धनराशि रु. 3820.81 लाख थी। पूर्वी विहार आवासीय योजना के वित्तपोषण के लिए हडको से ऋण प्राप्त करने हेतु भी कार्यवाही की जा रही है।

निगम द्वारा वित्तीय संस्थाओं से प्राप्त ऋण की किश्तों का प्रतिदान/भुगतान सुनिश्चित करने का प्रयास किया जा रहा है। आवास निगम द्वारा पूर्वी विहार आवासीय योजना हेतु हुडको एवं यूनियन बैंक ऑफ इण्डिया से लिए गए ऋण का पूर्ण भुगतान पूर्ण रूप से किया जा चुका है। भारतीय जीवन बीमा निगम के ऋण का एकमुश्त भुगतान के लिए धनराशि की व्यवस्था निगम द्वारा की जा रही है।

निगम द्वारा अपने सदस्यों तथा सहकारी आवास समितियों के सदस्यों को प्रारम्भ से किए गये ऋण वितरण के फलस्वरूप उ.प्र. में आवासीय समस्या के निराकरण में योगदान किया गया है।

कम्प्यूटरीरकृत करने हेतु एक एप्लीकेशन साफटवेयर विकसित कराया गया था जो कि वर्ष 1999 से कार्य कर रहा है जिसके अन्तर्गत लेखा एवं वित्त, वजट, फण्ड एवं ऋण वितरण के कार्य सुचारू रूप से कम्प्यूटर द्वारा पिछले 12 वर्षों से क्रियान्वित है तथा वसूली के अन्तर्गत आश्रयहीन योजना के समस्त सछसयों के ऋण / वसूली खाते भी ऑन लाइन है। वर्ष 2011–12 से निगम मुख्यालय पर जंससल ERP-9 पर लेखा सम्बंधी कार्य किये जा रहे हैं।

ऋण वितरण एवं वसूली के लिए भी शाखाओं को कम्प्यूटरीकृत करने एवं इसका टैली आधारित सॉफटवेयर डेवलप करने हेतु भी कार्यवाही की जा रही है जिसके लिए टेली सॉफटवेयर की अधिकृत कम्पनी UV Systems & Softwares लखनऊ को साफ्टवेयर डेवलप करने के आदेश निर्गत किये जा चुके हैं तथा उनके द्वारा सॉफ्टवेयर डेवलप कर स्थापित कर दिया गया है जिस पर निगम की शाखा लखनऊ का डाटा डाला जा रहा है।

सहकारी आवास निर्माण एवं वित्त निगम की संशोधित उपविधि केन्द्रीय निबन्धक, कृषि मंत्रालय भारत सरकार द्वारा अनुमोदित की जा चुकी है। संशोधित उपविधि में क्रमांक—5ए—21 पर निगम को निर्माण एजेंसी के रूप में कार्य करने हेतु कार्यकलाप में सम्मिलित किया गया। शासन से लगातार इस हेतु पत्राचार / वार्ता की जा रही है।

उ.प्र. शासन के शासनादेश द्वारा सहकारी आवास निर्माण एवं वित्त निगम लि., (तत्कालीन आवास संघ) लखनऊ को प्रदेश के 12 जनपदों के विकास क्षेत्रों में स्थित सहकारी आवास समितियों के ले—आऊट प्लान स्वीकृत करने का अधिकार दिया गया। अभी तक कुल 64 सहकारी आवास समितियों द्वारा अपने ले—आऊट प्लान स्वीकृत करने हेतु प्रस्तुत किए गये हैं, जिसमें से अभी तक कुल 12 तलपट मानचित्र स्विकृत किये गये हैं। शासन द्वारा तैयार की जा रही आवास नीति—2013 में सहकारिता के क्षेत्र को प्रोत्साहित करने के लिए निगम को उपरोक्तानुसार अधिकार दिये जाने हेतु सुझाव प्रेषित किये गये हैं।

उ.प्र. शासन द्वारा शासनादेश के तहत कुछ तहसीलों की कुल 656.49 एकड़ भूमि अधिग्रहण प्रस्ताव वर्ष 1998 में जिलाधिकारी लखनऊ को प्रेषित किया गया।

सहकारी आवास निर्माण एवं वित्त निगम लि. द्वारा अर्जन व्यय एवं अग्रिम प्रतिकर के मद में 33.10 करोड़ की धनराशि जिलाधिकारी लखनऊ के पी.एल.ए. में जमा कराकर अर्जित समस्त भूमि का कब्जा वर्ष 2003 तक प्राप्त कर लिया गया। उक्त भूमि के विकास के लिए उ.प्र. राज्य औद्योगिक विकास निगम लखनऊ को दिनांक 21.01.14 को एक प्रस्ताव Joint venture हेत् प्रेषित किया गया है जिस पर सैद्वान्तिक रूप से UPSIDC के बोर्ड द्वारा सहमति प्रकट की गयी है तथा कतिपय बिन्दुओं पर स्थिति स्पष्ट करने हेत् कहा गया है। उक्त के संदभ्र में मुख्य सचिव, उ.न्न. शासन स्तर पर दिनांक 09.05.2015 को एक बैठक भ्ज्ञी सम्पन्न हो चुकी है एवं निर्णयानुसार पूर्वी विहार योजना तथा UPSIDC की पूर्व से देवा रोड स्थित औद्योगिक योजना के बीच की भूमि को सम्मिलित करते ह्ये UPSIDC द्वारा एक वृहत योजना औद्योगिक एवं आवासीय उपयोग हेत् तैयार की जायेगी जिसमें पूर्वी विहार योजना का भी समावेश रहेगा। UPSIDC

द्वारा इसका Layout Plan तैयार कराया जा रहा है तथा सम्पूर्ण क्षेत्र की विज्ञप्तियां UPSIDC द्वारा जारी होने के उपरांत एम.ओ.यू. निष्पादित कर योजना के क्रियान्वयन करने की कार्यवाही की जायेगी। उ.प्र. में नयी सरकार गठन के उपरांत मुख्य सचिव एवं मा. मुख्यमंत्री से उक्त योजना को शीघ्र क्रियान्वित कराने के लिए निर्देशित करने हेतु अनुरोध किया गया है। योजना के वित्तीय संसाधन जुटाने हेतु राष्ट्रीय सहकारी विकास निगम से कार्यशील पूंजी प्राप्त करने हेतु प्रस्ताव प्रेषित किया गया है जिस पर उनके द्वारा सैद्वांतिक सहमति दी जा चुकी है।

निगम में बकाया ऋण की वसूली के लिए लाभार्थी की बंधक रखी गयी सम्पत्ति की नीलामी करने का प्रावधान है । उक्त कार्य सुचारू रूप से सम्पादित करने हेतु निगम में नीलामी नियमावली तैयार की गयी है एवं लागू की गयी है। इसके अतिरिक्त पूर्व में निर्गत वसूली प्रमाण पत्रों हेतु राजस्व अवशेष के रूप में भी वसूली की कार्यवाही भी की जा रही है। निगम द्वारा वसूली को बढ़ाने के लिये विभिन्न कार्यवाहियों को सम्पादित किया गया है।

सहकारी संस्थायें वर्तमान में आरम्भिक काल के स्वैच्छिक संगठनों की तुलना में अधिक व्यवस्थित और व्यावसायिक क्षमता से युक्त हो पाई है। अतः इससे संलग्न कार्यकर्ताओं के प्रशिक्षण की नितान्त आवश्यकता है। सहकारी आवास संस्थाओं के तकनीकी और वित्तीय पक्षों को देखते हुये यह आवश्यकता और अधिक बढ़ जाती है। सहकारिता की सामान्य तौर पर तथा आवास समितियों की जानकारी विशेष रूप से सुलभ न होने के कारण संस्थाओं की कार्यप्रणाली में ऐसे दोष आ जाते हैं, जिनका परिमार्जन बाद में नहीं हो पाता है। अतः सहकारी आवास समितियों व निगम के कर्मचारियों को सहकारी सिद्धांतों, सहकारी विधान, लेखा प्रणाली, ऋण वितरण व्यवस्था एवं कम्प्यूटर इत्यादि की जानकारी संस्था के व्यवस्थित संचालन व व्यावसायिक क्षमता में सुधार हेतु विभिन्न प्रशिक्षण संस्थान एवं राष्ट्रीय सहकारी आवास संघ के सहयोग से प्रशिक्षण दिलाया जाता रहा है।

निगम द्वारा वर्ष 2014—15 में विभिन्न जनपदों में खनन की निविदायें डाली गई थीं परन्तु मा. उच्चतम न्यायालय में एस.एल.पी. लम्बित होने के कारण कार्यवाही स्थगित रही। इसके उपरांत मा. उच्चतम न्यायालय द्वारा पारित निर्णय के अनुपालन में शासन द्वारा जारी विज्ञप्ति के क्रम में वर्ष 2015—16 में निगम द्वारा खनन कार्य हेतु 12 क्षेत्रों के लिए निविदायें डाली गयी थीं जिसमें 7—8 स्थानों की निविदा सर्वोच्च थी जिनमें 31.03.2016 तक रु. 846.25 लाख विभिन्न जनपदों के जिलाधिकारियों के नाम निविदा की धनराशि जमा की गई थी। मा. उच्च्तम न्यायालय द्वारा पारित आदेश के अनुपालन में निगम को उपरोक्त समस्त धनराशि वापस प्राप्त हो गयी। पुनः नई निविदायें (अल्पकाल 06 माह हेतु) आमंत्रित की गयी थीं जिसमें निगम द्वारा 05 जनपदों में निविदायें डाली गयीं जिनमें से जिलाधिकारी, बाराबंकी कार्यालय द्वारा जनपद बाराबंकी हेतु तहसील सिरौलीगौसपुर ग्रामी हुसैनपुर क्षेत्रफल 11.12 एकड़ में निगम की ओर से डाली गयी निविदा में निगम की सर्वोच्च बोली होने के कारण उक्त क्षेत्र के बालू खनन कार्य हेतु निगम के पक्ष में निविदा स्वीकृत हो गयी है जो दिनांक 21.06.2017 से 20.12.2017 तक मान्य है। निगम द्वारा भविष्य में दीर्घकालीन निविदाओं में भाग लिया जा रहा है।

∨kU/kz i ms k

,-ih-egsk dksvkijsVo volu câd fy-

सहकारी क्षेत्र की बैंकों की प्रतिस्पर्द्धा निजी एवं सरकारी क्षेत्र से है। परस्पर सहयोग से सहकारी बैंक राष्ट्रीय अर्थव्यवस्था को मजबूत बनाने में रचनात्मक योगदान दे रहे हैं। उपरोक्त उद्गार महेश बैंक के निजामशाही रोड स्थित प्रधान कार्यालय में नेफकेब, नई दिल्ली के पूर्व अध्यक्ष एवं कॉसमास ई सल्यूशन पूणे के चेयरमैन श्री मुकुन्द लक्ष्मण अभयंकर ने बैंक के निदेशक एवं वरिष्ठ अधिकारियों के समक्ष व्यक्त किए।

श्री अभयंकर ने कहा कि सहकारी क्षेत्र की बैंकों ने अपने ग्राहकों के साथ जो सौहार्दपूर्ण संबंध बनाये हैं, वही सहकारी बैंकों की सफलता का मूलमंत्र है। श्री अभयंकर ने बताया कि नवीनतम तकनीक का अनुसरण तथा ग्राहकों के लिए सुविधाजनक बैंकिंग सेवाएं उपलब्ध कराना सहकारी बैंकों के लि नितांत अनिवार्य हो गया है।

महेश बैंक के चेयरमैन इमीरेट्स श्री रमेश कुमार बंग ने श्री अभयंकर के साथ कॉसमास सहकारी बैंक के दक्षिण क्षेत्र के महा प्रबंधक श्री विश्वास का सम्मान करते हुए बैंक की गतिविधियों का संक्षिप्त विवरण दिया।

महेश बैंक के प्रबंध निदेशक श्री उमेशचंद असावा ने निदेशकगण एवं वरिष्ठ अधिकारियों के समक्ष श्री अभयंकर का परिचय दिया।

तेलंगाणा सरकार के उपमुख्य मंत्री मोहम्मद महबूब अली ने नोवाटेल होटल में बैंकों पुरस्कार — 2017 के पुरस्कार विजेताओं को बधाई देते हुए कहा कि सहकारी क्षेत्र देश के आर्थिक विकास में महत्वपूर्ण भूमिका निभा रहा है। विशेषरूप

से मध्यम आय वर्ग एवं ग्रामीण स्तर पर माइक्रो फाइनेंस द्वारा कमजोर वर्ग की वित्तीय जरूरतों की पूर्ति में सहकारी बैंकों का योगदान सराहनीय है।

तकनीकी ज्ञान, कर्मचारी का ग्राहक से व्यवहार व परस्पर टीम वर्क की भावना, काम के प्रति समर्पण ही संस्था की प्रगति को सुनिश्चित करता है। उपरोक्त विचार आईडीबीआरटी के निदेशक डॉ. ए.एस. रामाशास्त्री ने बैंकों एवं गेलेक्सी इन्मा द्वारा आयोजित बैंकों पुरस्कार—2017 में देशभर से पधारे सहकारी बैंकों के चेयरमैंन, निदेशक एवं मुख्य कार्यकारी अधिकारियों के समक्ष होटल नोवाटेल में आयोजित पुरस्कार वितरण समारोह में व्यक्त किये।

देशभर की सहकारी बैंकों द्वारा तकनीकी उपयोग, ग्राहक सेवा एवं पारदर्शी कार्यप्रणाली के लिए उच्च गुणवत्तापूर्ण प्रदर्शन पर विशेषज्ञों की टीम द्वारा चयनित बैंकों पुरस्कार—2017 तेलंगाणा सरकार के उपमुख्यमंत्री मोहम्मद महमूद अली, नेफकॅब, नई दिल्ली के निदेशक एवं महेश बैंक के चेयरमैन इमीरेट्स रमेश कुमार बंग एवं आइडीबीआरटी के निदेशक डॉ. ए.एस. रामाशाली द्वारा प्रदान किये गये।

सहकारिता बैंकिंग क्षेत्र तकनीकी परिवर्तन को अपनाते हुए राष्ट्र के आर्थिक विकास में बहुत महत्वपूर्ण भूमिका निभा रहा है। न केवल तकनीकी दृष्टि से अपितु बड़े व्यावसायिक बैंकों के समकक्ष नये उत्पाद के द्वारा ग्राहकों को संतोषजनक सेवायें उपलब्ध करा रहा है। उपरोक्त उद्गार महेश बैंक के चेयरमैन इमीरेट्स रमेश बंग ने एयरपोर्ट रोड़ पर स्थित नोवोटेल होटल में कोल्हापुर से प्रकाशित बैंकों पत्रिका द्वारा देश की सहकारी बैंकों के निदेशकगण मुख्य कार्यकारी अधिकारियों के लिए आयोजित एडवान्टेज—2018 प्रशिक्षण कार्यक्रम का शुभारम्भ करते हुए उपस्थित प्रतिनिधियों के समक्ष व्यक्त किये।

श्री बंग ने अपने उद्घाटन भाषण में कहा कि सहकारी बैंकिंग क्षेत्र वित्तीय क्षेत्र के समक्ष आने वाली चुनौतियां का समना करने में सक्षम हैं। देश का बैंकिंग व्यवसाय केन्द्र सरकार की आर्थिक नीतियों की सफलता में अपनी सकारात्मक भूमिका निभा रहा है। तीन दिवसीय प्रशिक्षण सत्र का आयोजन कोल्हापुर से प्रकाशित बैंकों पत्रिका एवं पुणे स्थित गेलेक्सी इन्मा द्वारा संयुक्त रूप से आयोजित किया गया। बैंकों के प्रधान सम्पादक अविनाश शिन्तरे गुन्डाले ने सभी प्रतिनिधियों का स्वागत करते हुए बताया कि विगत पांच वर्ष से यह कार्यक्रम प्रतिवर्ष देश के विभिन्न स्थानों पर हो रहा है।

दक्षिण भारत की सहकारिता क्षेत्र में बहुराज्यीय अनुसूचित

बैंकों में अग्रणी महेश बैंक के चेयरमैन इमीरेट्स श्री रमेश कुमार बंग को आल इण्डिया एमएसएमई स्थित एसोसिएशन के राष्ट्रीय अध्यक्ष डॉ. अविनाश दलाल ने हैदराबाद विश्वविद्यालय के सभागृह में आयोजित एक समारोह में एमएसएमई फ्रेन्डली बैंकर के रूप में मानद सदस्यता प्रदान की। एमएसएमई सेक्टर को राष्ट्रीय अर्थव्यवस्था की रीढ़ भी कहा जा सकता है। आल इण्डिया एमएसएमई एसोसिएशन देश के एमएसएमई उद्यमियों के चह्म्खी विकास के लिए सक्रियता से कार्य कर रहा है। उल्लेखनीय है कि श्री रमेश कुमार बंग राष्ट्रीय एवं प्रांतीय स्तर की विभिन्न बैंकिंग संस्थाएं, जैसे नई दिल्ली स्थित नेशनल फेडरेशन ऑफ अर्बन कोऑपरेटिव बैंक्स एण्ड क्रेडिट सोसायटीज के निदेशक, भारतीय रिजर्व बैंक द्वारा अर्वन कोआपरेटिव बैंकों के लिएउडत्रीसा प्रदेश की टॉस्क फोर्स समिति के सदस्य भी हैं। भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ, नई दिल्ली की राष्ट्रीय सहकारी प्रशिक्षण समिति के सदस्य, ए.पी. कोऑपारेटिव अर्बन बैंक्स एण्ड क्रेडिट सोसायटीज फेडरेशन के अध्यक्ष के रूप में भी अपनी सेवायें प्रदान कर रहे हैं।

NRrhI x<+

NRrhl x < + jkT; I gdkjh I 2k e; kInr] jk; ig

छत्तीसगढ़ राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्यादित रायपुर, राज्य में सहकारिता आन्दोलन के विकास और उसके हितो की रक्षा हेतु मान्य प्रतिनिधि संस्था एवं सहकारिता विभाग के अधीनस्थ एक शीर्षस्थ सहकारी संस्था है। संघ का मुख्य उद्देश्य सदस्य सहकारी शिक्षा योजना, सहकारी प्रशिक्षण योजना, प्रचार—प्रसार / प्रकाशन, शोध और सम्मेलन आयोजित करना है। सदस्य सहकारी शिक्षा योजना के अंतर्गत दो योजानाएं कार्य कर रही है। प्रथम सामान्य सहकारी शिक्षा योजना एवं दूसरी आदिवासी सहकारी षिक्षा योजना, इन दोनों योजनाओं के अंतर्गत सहकारी संस्थाओं के सदस्यों, कार्यकारिणी सदस्यों एवं पदाधिकारियों को सहकारिता में शिक्षित किया जाता है।

संघ द्वारा संचालित सहकारी प्रशिक्षण केन्द्रों बिलासपुर एवं रायपुर द्वारा अपने वार्षिक कार्यक्रम के अंतर्गत नियमित एवं अल्पाविध दो प्रकार के सत्रों का आयोजन करता है। नियमित सत्र 16 सप्ताह का "सहकारी प्रबंध में पत्रोपािध पाठ्यक्रम" एवं अल्पाविध सत्र 1 दिवसीय से 14 दिवसीय तक का विभिन्न विषयों में आयोजन करता है।

form; o"k1 2017&18 es f'k{kk; kstukUrx1r y{;

豖.	केन्द्र का नाम	लक्ष्य प			पूर्ति
सं.		सत्र	प्रशिक्षित	सत्र	प्रशिक्षित
		संख्या	संख्या	संख्या	संख्या
1.	नियमित सत्र	4	120	4	80
2.	विशेष अल्पावधि	सत्र 40	1200	19	1129
	; k sx	44	1320	23	1209

नवगठित छत्तीसगढ़ राज्य में सहकारिता आन्दोलन के विकास हेतु संघ माह अगस्त 2003 से छत्तीसगढ़ सहकारी समाचार पाक्षिक का प्रकाशन कर रही है। सहकारी समिति से जुड़े सदस्यों एवं आम कृषकों के हित में राज्य शासन एवं केंद्र शासन द्वारा संचालित विभिन्न योजनाओं का प्रकाशन सहकारी

form; o"k1 2017&18 eaf'k{kk; kstukUrx1r y $\{;, oaifir1\}$

			J			
क्र.	वर्ग प्रकार	अवधि		लक्ष्य	पूरि	f
सं.			वर्ग	प्रशिक्षित	वर्ग	प्रशिक्षित
l n	L; f′k{kk vk;k u& rj@vk;kstu					
1.	समिति सेवक वर्ग	5 दिवसीय	5	100	1	11
2.	प्रबंघकारिणी वर्ग	3 दिवसीय	60	1200	13	217
3.	सदस्य हेतु वर्ग	2 दिवसीय	180	3600	188	3631
4.	महिला वर्ग	1 दिवसीय	180	3600	172	3327
	; k x		425	8500	374	7186

समाचार पत्र के माध्यम से करके आम लोगों तक योजनाओं की जानकारी देने का प्रयास किया जाता है। छ.ग. सहकारी समाचार को अब 12 पृष्ठीय रंगीन एवं चिकनाई युक्त पेपर में प्रिंट किया जा रहा है जिसके लिए विभिन्न राज्यों से इसकी प्रशंसा हो रही है तथा प्रशस्ति पत्र प्राप्त हो रहा है। उक्त सहकारी समाचार पाक्षिक को विगत वर्शो में आल इंडिया बेस्ट को आपरेटिव्ह जर्नल एवार्ड एवं आल इंडिया लेबल पर द्वितीय स्थान प्राप्त हुआ है।

छ.ग. राज्य के स्थापना दिवस पर आयोजित राज्योत्सव कार्यक्रम में सहकारिता विभाग का स्टाल लगाया जाता है। इसमें संघ द्वारा प्रत्येक वर्ष सहकारिता के प्रचार—प्रसार के लिए विभिन्न विषयों पर फोल्डर एवं पाम्पलेट्स तथा संघ द्वारा प्रकाशित छ.ग. सहकारी समाचार का वितरण कर सहकारिता का प्रचार—प्रसार किया जाता है।

गणतंत्र दिवस के अवसर पर जिला जगदलपुर में छत्तीसगढ़ राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्या, रायपुर संभागीय कार्यालय जगदलपुर द्वारा अन्य सहकारी संस्थाओं के सहयोग से शासन की योजनओं एवं सहकारिता से संबंधित जानकारी का झांकी तैयार किया गया था। उक्त झांकी का प्रदर्शन गंणतत्र दिवस समारोह अवसर पर किया गया।

छ.ग. शासन द्वारा छ.ग. में हुए विकास को जन—जन तक पहुचांने हेतु विकास यात्रा का आयोजन किया गया था। इसमें संघ द्वारा चलाये जा रहे जनकल्याणकारी योजनाओं की जानकारियों का फ्लेक्स, फोल्डर, पाम्पलेट्स एवं ब्रोचर तैयार कर तथा संघ द्वारा प्रकाशित छ.ग. सहकारी समाचार के माध्यम से उपस्थित जनसमुदाय, कृषकों, महिलाओं को जानकारी देकर सहकारिता का प्रचार—प्रसार किया गया।

विकास के तीन साल पर छत्तीसगढ़ शासन द्वारा सरदार बलवीर सिंह जुनेजा इंडोर स्टेडियम बुढ़ातालाब रायपुर में दिनांक 10.06.2017 को आयोजित प्रर्दशनी में सहकारिता विभाग एवं सहकारी संस्थाओं के सहयोग से स्टॉल लगाकर पाम्पलेटस, ब्रोचर, सहकारी प्रशिक्षण सामाग्री आदि वितरित कर सहकारी योजनाओं / गतिविधियों से आमजनों को अवगत कराकर जानकारी प्रदान की गई। इस आयोजन में माननीय श्री अमित शाह, राष्ट्रीय अध्यक्ष भाजपा, माननीय डाँ. रमन सिंह मुख्यमंत्री छत्तीसगढ़ शासन एवं अन्य मंत्रीगण श्री बृजमोहन अग्रवाल, कृषि मंत्री, श्री अजय चन्द्राकर, पंचायत एवं ग्रामीण विकास मंत्री, श्रीमती रमशीला साहू, महिला एवं बाल विकास मंत्री, आदि ने सहकारिता के स्टॉल का निरीक्षण एवं अवलोकन किया।

हमर छत्तीसगढ़ योजना में सहकारी संस्थाओं / सिमितियों के पदाधिकारियों को सहकारिता से संबंधित जानकारी संघ द्वारा दिया गया। माह अक्टूबर 2017 में छ.ग. शासन द्वारा 3 लाख से अधिक किसानों को खरीफ वर्ष 2016—17 के धान खरीदी पर बोनस वितरण हेतु बोनस तिहार का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त कार्यक्रम में छ.ग. राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्या., रायपुर द्वारा भी सहकारिता विभाग के स्टॉल पर विभागीय योजनाओं एवं राज्य शासन के विभिन्न जनकल्याणकारी योजनाओं से संबंधित बैनर, पोस्टर एवं फ्लैक्स लगाकर प्रचार—प्रसार किया गया।

कृषि विभाग छत्तीसगढ़ शासन द्वारा वर्ष 2017—18 में भी तीन दिवसीय राष्ट्रीय कृषि मेला का आयोजन किया गया। उक्त मेला में सहकारिता विभाग के स्टाल डोम में सहकारिता विभाग, सहकारी बैंकों एवं छ.ग. राज्य सहकारी संघ मर्यादित रायपुर एवं शासन द्वारा चलाये जा रहे जनकल्याणकारी योजनाओं की जानकारियों को लोगों तक पहुंचाया गया।

'अखिल भारतीय सहकारी सप्ताह' के अवसर पर जिला सहकारी संघों को पूर्ण सहयोग देकर सात दिवसीय सहकारी सप्ताह 14 से 20 नवंबर मनाया जाता है। विगत वर्ष बालोद / जगदलपुर जिला सहकारी सहकारी संघों द्वारा आयोजित सहकारी सप्ताह कार्यक्रम में संघ द्वारा सहयोग प्रदान किया गया।

छ.ग. में संभावित दुग्ध सहकारी समितियों के गठन के लिए जिला सहकारी संघ बालोद आयोजित शिक्षण—प्रशिक्षण कार्यक्रम में संघ द्वारा तकनीकी सहयोग प्रदान कर नवीन दुग्ध सहकारी समितियों के गठन हेतु प्रशिक्षण दिया गया जिसके फलस्वरूप बालोद जिले में 27 नवीन दुग्ध उत्पादक सहकारी समितियों का पंजीयन संभव हो पाया। समितियों के गठन उपरांत जिला स्तरीय शिविर का आयोजित कर 69 सहकारी समितियों को जिला संघ के अन्तर्गत सहयोग प्रदान किया गया। सहकारिता, दुग्ध उत्पादन, पशुपालन, विपणन व आर्थिक प्रबंधन पर विषय विशेषज्ञ उपलब्ध कराकर संघ द्वारा बालोद जिला सहकारी संघ मर्या, बालोद को सहयोग प्रदान किया गया। बालोद जिले में नवीन बुनकर सहकारी समितियों के गठन हेतु जिला सहकारी संघ बालोद को संघ द्वारा उचित मार्गदर्शन एवं सहयोग प्रदान किया गया।

संघ मुख्यालय एवं सहकारी प्रषिक्षण केंद्र में ग्रंथालय संचालित है। यहाँ पर शोधार्थी छात्रों एवं सहकारी क्षेत्र से जुड़े पदाधिकारियो/अधिकारियों/कर्मचारियों को सहकारिता एवं सहकारी योजनाओं के सन्दर्भ ग्रन्थ/अध्ययन सामग्री उपलब्ध कराकर आवश्यक मार्गदर्शन एवं सहयोग दिया जाता है। राज्य संघ की उपविधि अनुसार संघ प्रत्येक तीन वर्ष में 1 बार राज्य स्तरीय सहकारी सम्मलेन आयोजित करता हैं। इसमें प्रदेश की समस्त राज्य स्तरीय, जिला स्तरीय सहकारी संस्थाओं के पदाधिकारियों/प्रतिनिधियों को आमंत्रित किया जाता है।

fcgkj

fcgkj dksvkWjfVo QMjsku fy-

बिहार कोऑपरेटिव फेडरेशन लि., पटना द्वारा वर्ष 2017—18 में सहकारिता आंदोलन के प्रचार—प्रसार हेतु किये गये कार्यों के अतिरिक्त अपने सीमित संसाधनों एवं भारतीय राष्ट्रीय सहकारी संघ की आर्थिक सहायता से वर्ष 2017—18 में निम्नांकित मुख्य कार्य सम्पादित किये गये हैं:

- फेडरेशन के निदेशक मंडल के सदस्य, केन्द्रीय सहकारी बैंकों के अध्यक्ष तथा सहकारी नेताओं के कुल 12 सदस्यीय दल द्वारा अध्ययन भ्रमण हेतु पुणे, नासिक तथा मुम्बई का भ्रमण किया गया और वहां के केन्द्रीय सहकारी बैंकों एवं अन्य सहकारी संस्थाओं का भ्रमण कर वहां के कार्यप्रणाली, उपलब्धियों तथा सफलता के कारकों का अध्ययन किया गया। वहां के अध्यक्ष, उपाध्यक्ष और प्रबंध निदेशक से आवश्यक विचार—विमर्श किया गया।
- फेडरेशन द्वारा सहकारिता सप्ताह—2017 का शुभारम्भ दिनांक 14.11.2017 को फेडरेशन के मुख्यालय परिसर में सहकारिता के ध्यजारोहण से किया गया और फेडरेशन हॉल मे बिहार राज्य के प्रमुख सहकारी नेताओं तथा पैक्स अध्यक्षों की एक बैठक कर सहकारी समितियों में "अच्छा प्रशासन एवं व्यवसायीकरण (Good Governance and Professionalisation)" विषय पर विचार—विमर्श किया गया। साथ ही सहकारिता सप्ताह के प्रत्येक क्षेत्र में मनाये जाने के लिए लोगों को प्रोत्साहित किया गया।
- दिनांक 02.02.2018 को बिहार राज्य के जिला केन्द्रीय सहकारी बैंकों के नवनिर्वाचित अध्यक्षों को फेडरेशन भवन में इस फेडरेशन द्वारा अभिनन्दन समारोह में सम्मानित किया गया और उनसे अनुरोध किया गया कि वे अपने स्वच्छ प्रशासन एवं दक्ष नेतृत्व से बैंक,

सहकारी समितियों तथा समिति के सदस्यों को अधिकाधिक सेवा देने का प्रयास करेंगे।

वर्ष 2017—18 में फेडरेशन द्वारा दिनांक 26.03.2018 को नालंदा जिले तथा दिनांक 30.03.2018 को नवादा जिले की सहकारी समितियों के अध्यक्षों के लिए जिला सहकारी सेमिनार आयोजित किये गये और "महिला सशक्तिकरण एवं सहकारितायें" तथा "किसानों की समृद्धि सहकारिता का ध्येय" विषयों पर विस्तृत रूप में विचार—विमर्श किया गया।

e/; insk

e/; innsk jkT; y?kq ouksit 140;kikj ,oa fodkl ½ Igdkjh la?k

वनोपज के संग्रहण एवं व्यापार से वनवासियों को लाभ दिलाने की दृष्टि से वर्ष 1984 में मध्य प्रदेश राज्य लघ् वनोपज (व्यापार एवं विकास) सहकारी संघ का गठन मध्य प्रदेश सहकारिता अधिनियत, 1960 के अन्तर्गत हुआ। मध्य प्रदेश शासन द्वारा वर्ष 1988 में लघु वनोपज के संग्रहण, भण्डारण एवं व्यापार से बिचौलियों को पूर्णतः समाप्त करने के लिये वास्तविक संग्रहणकर्त्ताओं की त्रिस्तरीय सहकारी संस्थाओं का गठन किया गया। प्राथमिक स्तर पर वास्तविक संग्राहकों की सदस्यता से 1072 प्राथमिक वनोपज सहकारी समितियां, जिला स्तर पर 60 जिला वनोपज सहकारी संघ तथा शीर्ष स्तर पर मध्य प्रदेश राज्य लघु वनोपज (व्यापार एवं विकास) सहकारी संघ मर्यादित कार्यरत है। वनोपज को राष्ट्रीयकृत एवं अराष्ट्रीयकृत दो श्रेणियों में बांटा गया है। राष्ट्रीयकृत वनोपज में वर्तमान में मात्र तेन्द्रपत्ता एवं कुल्लू गोंद हैं। अराष्ट्रीयकृत वनोपज जैसे हर्रा, बहेडा, लाख, अचार, महुआ, शहद, माह्ल पत्ता, आंवला एवं औषधीय वनोपजों का संग्रहण विपणन करने की स्वतंत्रता है। मध्य प्रदेश राज्य लघ् वनोपज संघ, राष्ट्रीयकृत वनोपज का संग्रहण एवं व्यापार समितियों के माध्यम से करता है। अराष्ट्रीयकृत वनोपज के संग्रहण, विपणन में समन्वयक की भूमिका निभाता है।

- 1. ouki t
- (अ) jk"V1); Ñr
- (i) तें दूपत्ता

विगत तीन वर्षों में संग्रहण एवं निर्वर्तन की जानकारी तालिका—1 पर दर्शाई गई है :

rkfydk&1

संग्रहण वर्ष	संग्रहण दर (रु. प्रति मा. बो.)	कुल गोदामीकृत मात्रा	संग्रहण मजदूरी की राशि (करोड़ रुपये में)	अब तक विक्रय कीगई मात्रा (लाख मानक बोरा में)	विक्रय मूल्य मूल्य (करोड़ रु. में)
2015	950	16.05	152.47	16.05	329.27
2016	1250	18.57	232.07	18.57	627.25
2017	1250	23.37	292.13	23.37	1339.37
2018	2000	19.17	381.40	18.50	926.60

rkfydk&2

संग्रहण वर्ष	संग्रहित मात्रा (क्विंटल में)	निर्वर्तित मात्रा (क्विंटल में)	प्राप्त विक्रय मूल्य (लाख में)	औसत विक्रय दर (रु. प्रति क्विंटल)
2015	11161.72	11161.72	37.71	338.00
2016	3966.10	3966.10	29.75	750.00
2017	1159.50		कार्रवाई प्रचलित है।	

(ৰ) <u>vjk"V1); Ñr</u>

(ii) सालबीज

सालबीज संग्रहण वनवासी परिवारों की अजिविका में महत्पपूर्ण भूमिका अदा करता है। सालबीज संग्रहण एवं निर्वर्तन की जानकारी तालिका—2 पर दर्शाई गई है।

rtJnni Ùkk laxkgdkagsrqeq[; eæh rtJnni Ùkk laxkgd dY; k.k lgk; rk; kstuk

प्रदेश में भारतीय जीवन बीमा निगम के माध्यम से वर्ष 1991 से संचालित सामाजिक सुरक्षा समूह योजना दिनांक 31.3.2018 को समाप्त कर दिनांक 01.04.2018 से लघु वनोपज संघ द्वारा मुख्यमंत्री तेन्दूपत्ता संग्राहक कल्याण सहायता योजना प्रारंभ की गई है। जिसके अंतर्गत 18 से 60 वर्ष की उम्र के संग्राहक की सामान्य मृत्यु पर रु. 10,000/—, आंशिक अपंगता की स्थिति पर रु. 25,000/—, पूर्ण अपंगता की स्थिति पर रु. 25,000/—, पूर्ण अपंगता की स्थिति पर रु. 25,000/— एवं दुर्घटना में मृत्यु की दशा में रु. 2.00 लाख की आर्थिक सहायता लघु वनोपज संघ द्वारा प्रदाय की जाती है। दुर्घटना में मृत्यु की दशा में प्रदाय की जाने वाली आर्थिक सहायता रु. 2.00 लाख में से रु. 1.00 लाख की प्रतिपूर्ति म.प्र. शासन वन विभाग द्वारा "मुख्यमंत्री

तेन्दूपत्ता संग्राहक कल्याण दुर्घटना सहायता योजना" के अन्तर्गत की जाती है।

з. , dyC; f'k{kk fodkl ; kstuk

लघु वनोपज संघ द्वारा "एकलव्य शिक्षा विकास योजना" नवंबर 2010 में प्रारंभ की गई है। इस योजना का उद्देश्य वनक्षेत्रों में निवास करने वाले तेन्दूपता संग्राहकों के बच्चों की शिक्षा की ऐसी व्यवस्था करना है, जिससे उनके होनहार बच्चे धनाभाव के कारण उच्च शिक्षा प्राप्त करने से वंचित न रह जाएं। इस उद्देश्य की पूर्ति हेतु उत्कृष्ट शिक्षण संस्थानों में प्रवेश एवं शिक्षा का व्यय वनोपज संघ द्वारा वहन किया जाता है। 2017–18 में 756 छात्राओं को 542 लाख की राशि स्वीकृत की गई थी।

4. प्रोत्साहन पारिश्रमिक

संविधान के 73वें संशोधन के फलस्वरूप लघु वनोपज का स्वामित्व ग्राम सभाओं को सौंपा गया है। प्रदेश में लघु वनोपज व्यवसाय से ग्रामीणों को उचित लाभ दिलाने के लिए अनेक नीतिगत निर्णय लिये गये हैं। लघु वनोपज के अंतर्गत तेन्दूपत्ता के व्यवसाय से होने वाली संपूर्ण शुद्ध आय प्राथमिक सहकारी वनोपज समितियों को उपलब्ध कराई जा रही है। इस व्यवस्था को लागू करने वाला मध्य प्रदेश देश का पहला राज्य है।

वर्तमान में शुद्ध आय का 70 प्रतिशत भाग संग्राहकों को उनके द्वारा संग्रहित मात्रा के अनुपात में प्रोत्साहन पारिश्रमिक के रूप में नगद भुगतान करने का प्रावधान है। शेष 30 प्रतिशत में से 15 प्रतिशत भाग वनों के पुनरोत्पादन पर लगाया जा रहा है तथा 15 प्रतिशत की अवशेष राशि सहकारी समितियों को उनकी प्राथमिकता के आधार पर उनकी मांग अनुसार ग्राम की मूलभूत सुविधाओं के विकास में दी जा रही है। 2017 में 618.98 करोड़ प्रारिश्रमिक राशि वितरित की गई थी।

5. y?kqouksit izlaldj.k , oa vuq akku dslnz ¼, e-, Q-ih-&ikd½ ou ifilij ci[ksMk i Bkuh] Hkksiky

इस केन्द्र की स्थापना वर्ष 2004-05 में की गई। इसकी स्थापना का सैद्वान्तिक आधार माननीय मुख्यमंत्री, मध्य प्रदेश शासन की घोषणा के अनुरूप है, जिसमें वनोषधियों के मूल्य संवर्धन के उपरांत प्रसंस्कृत उत्पादों का निर्माण किया जाता है। पूर्व में प्रदेश से वनोषधियों का विपणन बिना मूल्य संवर्धन के ही प्रचलन में था। मध्य प्रदेश राज्य लघु वनोपज सहकारी संघ की प्रसंस्करण इकाई लघु वनोपज प्रसंस्करण एवं अनुसंधान केन्द्र (एम.एफ.पी.-पार्क), वन परिसर, बरखेड़ा पठानी, भोपाल द्वारा "विन्ध्य हर्बल्स ब्राण्ड" के अन्तर्गत आयुर्वेदिक एवं हर्बल औषधियों का उत्पादन कार्य विगत 12 वर्षों से अधिक समय से किया जा रहा है। इस केन्द्र द्वारा उत्पादित उत्पादों की आपूर्ति देश के विभिन्न राज्यों के आयुष विभागों को की जाती है, तथा प्रदेश में स्थापित संजीवनी केन्द्रों एवं वितरकों के माध्यम से निर्मित उत्पादों के खुदरा विपणन का कार्य किया जाता है। गुणवत्ता आधारित नीतियों के चलते ISO एवं GMP प्रमाणपत्र, पर्यावरणीय प्रबंधन हेत् EMS-14001 प्रमाणपत्र भी निरंतर प्राप्त होते रहे हैं। वर्तमान में इस केन्द्र की उत्पादन क्षमता 350 प्रकार की विभिन्न क्लासिकल शास्त्रोक्त-265 प्रोपराइटरी-76 एवं विटनी-09 प्रकार आयुर्वेदिक औषधियों के प्रसंस्करण की सुविधाएं उपलब्ध हैं। इस केन्द्र द्वारा बढ़ती हुई बाजार स्पध् र्गा के बाद भी निरंतर आय में उत्तरोत्तर वृद्धि अर्जित की जा रही है। विगत वर्षों में मध्य प्रदेश आयुष विभाग के अलावा आन्ध्र प्रदेश, कर्नाटक, पंजाब, राजस्थान, हरियाणा, पांडुचेरी, उडीसा, उत्तराखण्ड, महाराष्ट्र, मिजोरम, सिक्किम, तेलंगाना, असम, अरूणाचल प्रदेश, नई दिल्ली, झारखंड, जम्मू एवं कश्मीर एवं अंडमान एवं निकोबार इत्यादि (18) राज्यों को शासकीय आपूर्ति की गई है। केन्द्र द्वारा गुणवत्ता युक्त

आयुर्वेदिक औषधियों के निर्माण कर देश के विभिन्न राज्यों के आयुष विभागों के माध्यम से आमजनों को उपलब्ध कराई जाती है।

केन्द्र की प्रयोगशाला को NABL प्रमाणीकरण प्राप्त होने की मान्यता की पुष्टि की गई है।

आयुष प्रीमियम मार्क प्रमाणीकरण पंजीयन की कार्यवाही प्रचलन में है। शीघ्र ही आयुष प्रीमियम मार्क प्रमाणीकरण प्राप्त होने की संभावना है।

केन्द्र की गुणवत्ता आधारित नीतियों के चलते बढ़ती हुई कड़ी बाजार प्रतिस्पर्धा के बाद भी उत्पादन कार्यों एवं राजस्व प्राप्तियों में उत्तरोत्तर वृद्धि हो रही है। संस्था के कुशल संचालन एवं प्रबंधन तथा संघ मुख्यालय के अनुश्रवण का ही परिणाम है कि संस्था लाभप्रद स्थिति में बनी हुई है।

वित्तीय वर्ष	प्राप्त राजस्व (राशि करोड़ रु. में)
2012-13	24.58
2013-14	10.86
2014—15	11.31
2015—16	18.41
2016—17	38.12
2017.18	21.48

I athouh dynz dh LFkki uk

औषधीय पौधों एवं प्रसंस्करण केन्द्रों द्वारा उत्पादित औषधियों के विपणन के लिये भोपाल, बालाघाट, पूर्व छिन्दवाड़ा, पश्चिम छिन्दवाड़ा, देवास, इत्यादि में "संजीवनी आयुर्वेद" के नाम से 27 विक्रय केन्द्र प्रारम्भ किये गये हैं। इन विक्रय केन्द्रों के माध्यम से अर्द्ध तथा पूर्ण प्रसंस्कृत लघुवनोपजों तथा औषधीय उत्पाद आम जनता को विक्रय किया जाता है।

vllrjkľVh; gcly esyk

मध्य प्रदेश शासन वन विभाग एवं मध्य प्रदेश राज्य लघु वनोपज संघ, भोपाल के संयुक्त तत्वाधान में प्रति वर्ष अन्तर्राष्ट्रीय हर्बल वन मेले का आयोजन किया जाता है। इस तरह के मेलों का आयोजन राष्ट्रीय स्तर पर 2001 से किया जाता रहा है लेकिन अंतर्राष्ट्रीय प्रतिभागियों के आने एवं इस मेले के प्रति उनके उत्साह को देखकर वर्ष 2011 से अंतर्राष्ट्रीय वन मेले

का स्वरूप दिया गया । हर वर्ष की भांति वर्ष 2017 में भी (14 से 20 दिसम्बर) अंतर्राष्ट्रीय वन मेले का आयोजन किया गया। लघु वनोपजों के संग्राहकों, कृषकों, व्यापारियों, निर्माताओं को एक मंच उपलब्ध करवाने हेतु क्रेता—विक्रेता सम्मेलन का आयोजन 18 दिसम्बर 2017 को किया गया जिसमें लगभग 156 लाख रुपये का अनुबंध किया गया है।

लघु वनोपजों के संवहनीय विदोहन, प्राथमिक प्रसंस्करण, मूल्य संवंधन तथा बाजार प्रबंधन से अवगत कराने हेतु संग्राहकों, कृषकों, व्यापारियों, निर्माताओं के लिए 15—16 दिसम्बर को कार्यशाला का आयोजन किया गया जिसमें राष्ट्रीय एवं अंतर्राष्ट्रीय स्तर के संगठनों के प्रतिनिधियों एवं विषय विशेषज्ञयों द्वारा अपनी—अपनी प्रस्तुति दी गई। इसमें लगभग 108 प्रतिभागियों ने भाग लिया

l fpr __.k fuf/k l s 4 i fr'kr C; kt dh nj ij jkf'k
dk i nk;

संचालक मण्डल की 87वीं बैठक दिनांक 29.06.2010 में निर्णय लिया गया था कि संचित ऋण निधि से लघु वनोपज के संग्रहण, प्रसंस्करण एवं विपणन हेतु जिला यूनियनों को 4 प्रतिशत ब्याज की राशि से ऋण उपलब्ध कराए जाएं। प्रदेश में लघु वनोपजों तथा औषधीय पौधों के प्रसंस्करण को बढ़ावा देने एवं उनके बाजार को प्रोत्साहन देने के उद्देश्य से विभिन्न जिला यूनियनों को संघ मुख्यालय से ऋण निधि से कम दर के ब्याज (4 प्रतिशत) पर /पये 614.94 लाख की राशि उपलब्ध कराई गई है। दिनांक 16.08.2010 को संचालक मंडल द्वारा लिये गये निर्णय अनुसार प्राथमिक वनोपज सहकारी समितियों को मोटर साईकिल के वास्तविक क्रय मूल्य अथवा रु. 50,000/— जो भी अधिक हो, के ऋण 4 प्रतिशत ब्याज की दर पर देने हेतु नियम बनाये गये हैं। वर्ष 2015—16 में 11 मोटर साईकिल ऋण के रूप में 07 समिति प्रबंधकों को रु. 2,99,651/— की राशि विमुक्त की गई। वर्ष 2013—14 से 2017—18 में तेन्दूपता के व्यापार से प्राप्त लाभांश की राशि से वनों के विकास एवं अधोसंरचना विकास कार्य के अन्तर्गत कार्य स्वीकृत किये गये।

मध्य प्रदेश के वन क्षेत्रों में सयुक्त वन प्रबंधन समितियों के लघु वनोपजों के प्रसंस्करण हेतु प्रसंस्करण केन्द्र निर्माण, गोदाम निर्माण, क्षमता विकास तथा संग्रहण की प्रक्रिया के तहत सही एवं उचित लघु वनोपज संग्रहण हेतु प्रशिक्षण आदि हेतु रु. 580 लाख के प्रावधान के विरुद्ध रु. 500 लाख प्राप्त हुए। जिसमें अभी तक 268.50 लाख व्यय हो चुके हैं।

APPENDIX

NATIONAL COOPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA List of Members of the Governing Council (As on 31.03.2018)

1. Dr. Chandrapal Singh Yadav, MP

President

President, National Cooperative Union of India, 466, Masiha Ganj, Sipri Bazar, Jhansi (U.P.)

2. Dr. Bijender Singh, Ex-MLA

Vice-President

President, Delhi State Coop. Bank Ltd., 31, Netaji Subhash Marg, Daryaganj, New Delhi-110 002

3. Shri G.H. Amin Vice-President

President, Gujarat State Cooperative Union, Shilp Park, Behind Bandhu Samaj Society, Usmanpura, Ahmedabad – 380 013 (Gujarat)

4. Shri K. Sivadasan Nair, Ex-MLA

Member

Vice-Chairman, National Cooperative Agriculture & Rural Development Banks' Federation Ltd. 701, A-Wing, BSEL Tech Park (Opp. Railway Station), Vashi Navi Mumbai – 400703

5. Shri Balvinder Singh Nakai

Member

Chairman, Indian Farmers Fertilizer Cooperative Ltd., IFFCO, Sadan, C-1, District Centre, Saket Place, New Delhi–110017

6. Shri V. R. Boda

Member

Director, National Coop. Consumer Federation Ltd.,& Chairman, National Agricultural Coop. Mktg. Fedn. of India C/o NAFED House, Sidhartha Enclave, Ring Road, Ashram Chowk, New Delhi-110014

7. Shri S.N. Sharma, MLA

Member

Chairman, National Coop. Housing Federation of India Ltd., 6A/6, Siri Fort Institutional Area, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi -110049

8. Shri H. K. Patil, MLA

Member

Director, National Federation of Urban Coop. Banks & Credit Societies Ltd.
B-14, 3rd Floor, A-Block Shopping Complex,
Naraina Vihar, Ring Road, New Delhi–110 028

9. Shri V.P. Singh

Member

President, Delhi State Cooperative Union 9/3 Sarve Priya Vihar, New Delhi-110016

10. Shri Kiran Kakati

Member

President, Assam State Cooperative Union Institute of Cooperative Management VIP Road, Hengarabari, Guwahati-781036 (Assam) 11. Shri Vinayakrao D. Patil Member

Director, National Coop. Dairy Federation of India Ltd. C/o Rajarambapu Patil Sahakari Dudh Sangh Ltd.

H.O. A/16 to 19 MIDC, Islampur-415 409,

Taluka Walwa, District Sangli (Maharashtra)

12. Shri Ramachandra Govind Naik Mule Member

Chairman, Goa Pradesh Rajya Sahakari Sangh Ltd., Davanand Smriti. IInd Floor. Swami Vivekanand Road.

Panaji- 403001 (Goa)

13. Shri G.T. Devegowda, MLA Member

Director, Karnataka State Coop. Federation Ltd., No. 32 D. Devaraj Urs Road (Race Course Road),

3rd Floor, Bangalore – 560 001 (Karnataka)

14. Shri Swarna Kamal Saha, MLA Member

Chairman, West Bengal State Cooperative Union Acharyya Prafulla Chandra Samabaya Bhavan, DD-18/6, Bidhannagar, Sector-1, Kolkata- 700 064 (W.B.)

15. Shri Rajendra Singh Negi Member

Director, Uttarakhand State Cooperative Union Ltd. A-8 Palam City, Near T.P. Nagar, Dewal Choaud, Haldwani District - Nainital (Uttrakhand)

16. Shri Devinder Singh Thakur

Member

Chairman, Himachal Pradesh State Coop. Development Federation Ltd. Sahakar Bhavan, Near Dogra Lodge, Shimla- 171 004 (H.P)

Shri Gurpratap Singh Khushalpur 17.

Member

Chairman, The Punjab State Coop. Labour & Construction Federation Ltd. S.C.O. No. 2, Industrial Area, Phase II, Chandigarh 160 001

18. **Shri Pramod Kumar Singh** Member

Chairman, Farmer's Agri Business Coop. Society Ltd. 53/11, Rajpur Road, Dehradun – 248 001 (Uttrakhand)

Shri Lakhan Lal Sahu 19.

Member

(मानसेवी संचालक)

Chhatisgarh Rajya Sahakari Sangh Ltd.

22, Mihir Path, New Aadarsh Nagar, Pottiya Road, Durg (Chhatisgarh)

20. Shri Jyotindra Mansukhalal Mehta Govt. Nominee

Chairman, Rajkot Nagarik Sahakari Bank Ltd. 301, Royal Orchid, 3/8, Geet Gurjari Society, Near Airport, Rajkot- 360001 (Gujarat)

21. Tmt. A. Amudha Arunachalam **Co-opted Member**

Chairperson, Tamil Nadu Cooperative Union 170, Periyar E.V.R. High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai- 600 010 (Tamil Nadu)

22. Shri N. Satyanarana **Ex-officio Member**

Chief Executive, National Cooperative Union of India 3, Siri Institutional Area, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi- 110016